
Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       1                                                                                                              August 18, 2020 

           

County of Inyo 
Board of Supervisors 

Board of Supervisors Room 
County Administrative Center 

224 North Edwards 
Independence, California 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Public Notices: (1)  In Compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting please contact the Clerk of the Board at 
(760) 878-0373.  (28 CFR 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the County to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility 
to this meeting. Should you because of a disability require appropriate alternative formatting of this agenda, please notify the Clerk of the Board 72 hours prior to the meeting to 
enable the County to make the agenda available in a reasonable alternative format. (Government Code Section 54954.2).  (2) If a writing, that is a public record relating to an 
agenda item for an open session of a regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors, is distributed less than 72 hours prior to the meeting, the writing shall be available for public 
inspection at the Office of the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, 224 N. Edwards, Independence, California and is available per Government Code § 54957.5(b)(1).               

Note: Historically the Board does break for lunch; the timing of a lunch break is made at the discretion of the Chairperson and at the Board’s convenience. 

 

August 18, 2020 – 9:00 AM 

  
 

 1. PUBLIC COMMENT (Join meeting via Zoom here) 
  

 

CLOSED SESSION  
  

 

  2. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION – – The County 
of Inyo v. Two Brothers Ocean Pine, LLC (Inyo County Superior Court Case No. SI-
CV-CV2065575). 

  
 

OPEN SESSION (With the exception of timed items, all open-session items may be considered at any 
time and in any order during the meeting in the Board’s discretion.) 

  
 

10 A.M. 3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
  

 

  4. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION AS REQUIRED BY LAW. 
  

 

  5. PUBLIC COMMENT 
  

 

  6. COUNTY DEPARTMENT REPORTS (Reports limited to two minutes) 
  

 

NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC: In order to minimize the spread of the COVID-19 virus, Governor Newsom has issued 

Executive Orders that temporarily suspend certain requirements of the Brown Act. Please be advised that the Board 
of Supervisors Chambers are closed to the public, and the Board will be conducting its meetings exclusively online. 
Board Members and Staff will participate via Zoom videoconference from individual, separate locations. The 
videoconference is accessible to the public at https://zoom.us/j/868254781. Individuals will be asked to provide 
their name and an email address in order to access the videoconference. Anyone who does not want to provide their 
email address may use the following generic, non-functioning address to gain access: donotreply@inyocounty.us.  
 
Anyone wishing to make either a general public comment or a comment on a specific agenda item prior to the 
meeting, or as the item is being heard, may do so either in writing, or by utilizing the “hand-waving” feature when 
appropriate in the Zoom meeting (the Board Chair will call on those who wish to speak). Written public comment, 
limited to 250 words or less, may be emailed to the Assistant Clerk of the Board at boardclerk@inyocounty.us. 
Your emailed comments may or may not be read aloud, but all comments will be made a part of the record. Please 
make sure to submit a separate email for each item that you wish to comment upon. 

 

https://zoom.us/j/868254781
https://zoom.us/j/868254781
mailto:donotreply@inyocounty.us
mailto:boardclerk@inyocounty.us


Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       2                                                                                                              August 18, 2020 

  7. COVID-19 STAFF UPDATE 
  

 

DEPARTMENTAL - PERSONNEL ACTIONS  
  

 

 8. Sheriff - Request Board find that, consistent with the adopted Authorized Position 
Review Policy: A) the availability of funding for the requested position comes from 
the General Fund, as certified by the Sheriff and concurred by the County 
Administrator and the Auditor-Controller; B) where internal candidates may meet the 
qualifications for the position and the position could possibly be filled by an internal 
recruitment, an open recruitment is more appropriate to ensure the position is filled 
with the most qualified applicant; and C) approve the open recruitment and hiring of 
one (1) Food Cook position at Range 51A-51C ($3,047 - $3,525). 

  
 

CONSENT AGENDA (Approval recommended by the County Administrator) 
  

 

 9. Health & Human Services - Request approval to pay County Behavioral Health 
Directors Association (CBHDA) dues for fiscal year 2020-2021 in an amount not to 
exceed $16,083.80, contingent upon Board’s adoption of FY 2020/2021 Budget. 

  
 

 10. Public Works - Request Board approve and award the contract for Engineering 
Consultant Services for the Lone Pine Sidewalk Construction and ADA Improvement 
Project to Eastern Sierra Engineering of Bishop, CA in an amount not to exceed 
$317,473.44, and authorize the Chairperson to sign contingent on all appropriate 
signatures being obtained. 

  
 

DEPARTMENTAL (To be considered at the Board's convenience) 
  

 

 11. Child Support Services - Request Board approve a proclamation declaring August 
2020 as Child Support Awareness Month in Inyo County. 

  
 

 12. County Administrator - Request Board: 

A) Adopt the Restoring Vital & Valuable Inyo County Commerce (REVIVE) grant 
program to be funded with up to $800,000 of CARES Act funding, as proposed or 
amended, contingent upon funds being received by the County; 

B) Authorize CAO, Clint Quilter, to sign agreements with grantees; and  

C) Authorize staff to make non-substantive changes to the grant documents. 
  

 

 13. County Administrator - Information Services - Request Board: A) declare the 
California Broadband Cooperative, lnc. (CBC) of Vallejo, CA a sole-source provider 
of symmetrical lnternet Access Services; B) approve the corrected Service 
Agreement between the County of lnyo and the CBC for the provision of symmetrical 
lnternet Access Services in an amount not to exceed $141,200 ($20,160 annually for 
7 years, paid monthly at $1,680) for the period of June 1, 2020 through May 31, 
2027, contingent upon the Board's approval of future budgets; and C) authorize the 
lnformation Services Director or Deputy Director to sign, contingent upon all 
appropriate signatures being obtained. 

  
 

 14. Clerk of the Board - Request Board approve the minutes of the regular Board of 



Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       3                                                                                                              August 18, 2020 

Supervisors meeting of August 11, 2020. 
  

 

COMMENT (Portion of the Agenda when the Board takes comment from the public and County staff) 
  

 

  15. PUBLIC COMMENT 
  

 

BOARD MEMBERS AND STAFF REPORTS  
  
 
 

 
 

CORRESPONDENCE - INFORMATIONAL  
  

 

  16. Inyo County Public Health - Letter to the Community from Dr. James Richardson, 
Inyo County Public Health Officer. 

  
 

  17. Inyo County Sheriff - Sheriff 's and Jail Overtime Reports for June 2020. 
  

 

 



County of Inyo

Sheriff
 

DEPARTMENTAL - PERSONNEL ACTIONS -
 ACTION REQUIRED

 
MEETING:  August 18, 2020 

FROM:  Jared Sparks 
 
SUBJECT:  Authorize Hiring of Food Cook Due to Vacancy 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board find that, consistent with the adopted Authorized Position Review Policy: A) the availability of 
funding for the requested position exists in the General Fund, as certified by the Sheriff and concurred by the 
County Administrator and the Auditor-Controller; B) where internal candidates may meet the qualifications for the 
position and the position could possibly be filled by an internal recruitment, an open recruitment is more 
appropriate to ensure qualified candidates apply; and C) approve the open recruitment and hiring of one (1) Food 
Cook position at Range 51A-51C ($3,047 - $3,525).
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
Recently a Sheriff's Food Cook was promoted causing the position to become vacant. We request your Board to 
authorize, the hiring of one Food Cook to back fill the vacant position. Filling this position falls within the Sheriff s 
Office current authorized strength. 

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
Recently a Sheriff's Food Cook was promoted causing the position to become vacant. Filling this position falls 
within the Sheriff s Office current authorized strength. 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could chose not to authorize the hiring of one Food Cook position. This would increase overtime and 
the burden to existing personnel of covering shifts.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Personnel Department
Auditor's Office
 
FINANCING:
This Food Cook position is included in the 2020-2021 Sheriff's Kitchen Services budget (022701).
 
ATTACHMENTS:



Agenda Request 
Page 2

 
APPROVALS:
Jared Sparks Created/Initiated - 8/6/2020
Darcy Ellis Approved - 8/10/2020
Jared Sparks Approved - 8/10/2020
Sue Dishion Approved - 8/11/2020
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 8/11/2020
Amy Shepherd Approved - 8/12/2020
Riannah Reade Approved - 8/12/2020
Jeffrey Hollowell Final Approval - 8/12/2020



County of Inyo

Health & Human Services
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  August 18, 2020 

FROM:  Lucy Vincent 
 
SUBJECT:  Approval to Pay Association Dues 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board authorize payment of the County Behavioral Health Directors Association (CBHDA) dues for 
Fiscal Year 2020-2021 in an amount not to exceed $16,083.80, contingent upon the Board’s adoption of the 
Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Budget.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
This request comes before you, consistent with the County Purchasing Policy, for approval of payment of annual 
dues. CBHDA, the association of Behavioral Health Directors, is staffed by an experienced team that works 
closely with CSAC, RCRC and other State partners to ensure education of legislators, advocacy with statewide 
stakeholders, and fiscal advocacy with the State and the Department of Healthcare Services (DHCS) for public 
behavioral health programs. In addition to its role in providing leadership, advocacy, and support for public 
behavioral health programs, CBHDA convenes behavioral health professionals for the purpose of informing 
public policy and improving the delivery of behavioral health services. 

CBHDA has proved to be an effective organization, bringing needed resources, especially for small counties, to 
track and advocate around MediCal policies and regulations as related to the functioning as the Specialty Mental 
Health MediCal and Drug MediCal Plan. In addition, CBHDA provides advocacy and support in such areas as the 
implementation of the Mental Health Services Act, the Substance Abuse Block Grant, the Mental Health Block 
Grant, LPS reform and the Continuum of Care reform. 

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
If dues are not paid, Inyo County would not have direct access to the resources, education and information 
available to participating counties.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
All of California’s County Behavioral Health programs
 
FINANCING:



Agenda Request 
Page 2

The funding is a combination of Federal, State, and Behavioral Health Realignment funds. This expense will be 
budgeted in Behavioral Health (045200) in General Operating (5311).
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. CBHDA 2020-21 Annual Update
2. CBHDA 20-21 Dues Invoice
 
APPROVALS:
Lucy Vincent Created/Initiated - 7/27/2020
Darcy Ellis Approved - 7/27/2020
Lucy Vincent Approved - 7/27/2020
Marilyn Mann Approved - 8/4/2020
Meaghan McCamman Approved - 8/12/2020
Melissa Best-Baker Approved - 8/12/2020
Amy Shepherd Approved - 8/12/2020
Marilyn Mann Final Approval - 8/12/2020

















County of Inyo

Public Works
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  August 18, 2020 

FROM:  Trevor Taylor 
 
SUBJECT:  Approval of consultant contract with Eastern Sierra Engineering for the Lone Pine Sidewalk 
Construction and ADA Improvement Project 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve and award the contract for Engineering Consultant Services for the Lone Pine Sidewalk 
Construction and ADA Improvement Project to Eastern Sierra Engineering of Bishop, CA in an amount not to 
exceed $317,473.44, and authorize the Chairperson to sign contingent on all appropriate signatures being 
obtained.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The County was awarded a Cycle 4 Active Transportation Program (ATP) grant for the Lone Pine Sidewalk 
Construction and ADA Improvement project in January of 2019.  The project proposes to install new sections of 
sidewalk at locations in the community of Lone Pine chosen to promote connectivity within the downtown 
business center and to establish a safety corridor along Jackson Street from Whitney Portal Road to East Begole 
Street for access to the Lo-Inyo Elementary School.  The project will also identify and design for ADA corrective 
action on existing curb ramps and section of existing sidewalk within the project area.  A Request for Proposals 
for Environmental, Design, PS&E, and Construction Support services was advertised to interested consultants in 
January of 2020. 

Three proposals were received from the following consultants:

Eastern Sierra Engineering of Bishop, CA
Triad Holmes and Associates of Mammoth Lakes, CA
Cardno, Inc. of Bishop, CA

Eastern Sierra Engineering was chosen by a proposal review committee as the top ranked consultant for the 
project.  Project work will begin as soon as the contract is fully executed with the Environmental and PS&E 
phases scheduled to be completed in roughly 1 year.  The not-to-exceed amount of $317,473.44 includes 
required work in addition to $17,968.44 worth of optional tasks.  A breakdown of required work and optional tasks 
is included in Attachment B of the Contract.  If an increase to the estimated projected cost is expected, request 
for approval of the increase will be made in writing by the Consultant to the County prior to incurring the increase, 
and sent to the Board for approval.  Any increase would be effective only by written Amendment to the Contract.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose not to approve this contract with Eastern Sierra Engineering and instruct Public Works 
to re-advertise the RFP.  This is not recommended as a qualified consultant is necessary for advancing this 
project to and through the design and construction phases.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Auditor for payment to the consultant after contract award.
County Counsel for review and approval of contract documents.
Caltrans for reimbursement of County costs incurred.
 
FINANCING:
The cost of the contract will be paid through budget unit 034601 (State Funded Road Budget), object code 5708 
(Lone Pine Sidewalk ATP).  This project is 100% reimbursable through the Active Transportation Program.  
There is sufficient funds in the preliminary budget to cover expenses that will be incurred before budget adoption.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Lone Pine Sidewalks Contract - ESE
 
APPROVALS:
Trevor Taylor Created/Initiated - 7/28/2020
Darcy Ellis Approved - 7/28/2020
Trevor Taylor Approved - 8/11/2020
Breanne Nelums Approved - 8/11/2020
Michael Errante Approved - 8/11/2020
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 8/11/2020
Amy Shepherd Approved - 8/12/2020
Michael Errante Final Approval - 8/12/2020



County of Inyo Contract No. 146.1 - Actual Cost-Plus Fixed Fee 
(Independent Consultant – Local Assistance Federal Aid Projects)  

Page 1 of 21  07012018 

CONTRACT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO 

AND ___________________________________________________ 

FOR THE PROVISION OF CONSULTANT SERVICES 

INTRODUCTION 

WHEREAS, the County of Inyo (hereinafter referred to as "County") has the need for 
consultant services, and is heretofore entering this contract with ____________________________ 
___________________ (hereinafter referred to as “Consultant”), in consideration of the mutual 
promises, covenants, terms, and conditions hereinafter contained, the parties hereby agree as set forth 
below.   

Any Forms or Exhibits herein referred to may be located and downloaded at:  
   http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/LocalPrograms/lam/forms/lapmforms.htm

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

1. STATEMENT OF WORK

The Consultant shall furnish to the County, upon its request, those services and work set forth
in Attachment A attached hereto and by reference incorporated herein. Requests by the County to the 
Consultant to perform under this Contract will be made by the Public Works Director, Michael 
Errante. Requests to the Consultant for work or services to be performed under this Contract will be 
based upon the County's need for such services.  The County makes no guarantee or warranty, of any 
nature, that any minimum level or amount of services or work will be requested of the Consultant by 
the County under this Contract.  County by this Contract incurs no obligation or requirement to 
request from Consultant the performance of any services or work at all, even if County should have 
some need for such services or work during the term of this Contract. 

Services and work provided by the Consultant at the County's request under this Contract will 
be performed in a manner consistent with the requirements and standards established by applicable 
Federal, State, and County laws, ordinances, regulations, and resolutions.  Such laws, ordinances, 
regulations, and resolutions include, but are not limited to, those which are referred to in this 
Contract and, as applicable, as set forth, in Attachment E, attached hereto and incorporated herein.  

2. PERFORMANCE PERIOD

(Choose Option 1 or Option 2) 

 Option 1 – Standard Contract 
A. This Contract shall go into effect on _8/18/2020_________, contingent upon approval 

by County, and Consultant shall commence work after notification to proceed by County’s Contract 
Administrator. The Contract shall end on __8/18/2023___________, unless extended by Contract 
amendment.  

X

Eastern Sierra Engineering

Eastern Sierra Engineering

ttaylor
Highlight

ttaylor_1
Highlight



County of Inyo Contract No. 146.1 - Actual Cost-Plus Fixed Fee 
(Independent Consultant – Local Assistance Federal Aid Projects)  

Page 2 of 21  07012018 

B. Consultant is advised that any recommendation for Contract award is not binding on 
County until the Contract is fully executed and approved by County.  

 Option 2 – On-Call Contracts 
A. This Contract shall go into effect on __________________, contingent upon approval 

by County, and Consultant shall commence work after notification to proceed by County’s Contract 
Administrator. The Contract shall end on __________________, unless extended by Contract 
amendment.  

B. Consultant is advised that any recommendation for Contract award is not binding on 
County until the Contract is fully executed and approved by County.  

C. The period of performance for each specific project shall be in accordance with the 
Task Order for that project.  If work on a Task Order is in progress on the expiration date of this 
Contract, the terms of the Contract shall be extended by Contract amendment.  

3. WORK SCHEDULE

Consultant's obligation is to perform, in a timely manner, those services and work identified
in Attachment A which is requested by the County.  It is understood by Consultant that the 
performance of these services and work will require a varied schedule.  Consultant  will arrange 
his/her own schedule, but will coordinate with County to insure that all services and work requested 
by County under this Contract will be performed within the time frame set forth by County.  This 
work schedule shall be included in Attachment A to the Contract, Scope of Work. 

4. ALLOWABLE COSTS AND PAYMENTS

A. The method of payment for this contract will be based on actual cost plus a fixed fee.  
County will reimburse Consultant for actual costs (including labor costs, employee benefits, travel, 
equipment rental costs, overhead and other direct costs) incurred by Consultant in performance of the 
work.  Consultant will not be reimbursed for actual costs that exceed the estimated wage rates, 
employee benefits, travel, equipment rental, overhead, and other estimated costs set forth in the 
approved Consultant’s Cost Proposal, found in Attachment B, unless additional reimbursement is 
provided for by contract amendment.  In no event, will Consultant be reimbursed for overhead costs 
at a rate that exceeds County’s approved overhead rate set forth in the Cost Proposal.  In the event 
that County determines that a change to the work from that specified in the Cost Proposal and 
contract is required, the contract time or actual costs reimbursable by County shall be adjusted by 
contract amendment to accommodate the changed work.  The maximum total cost as specified in 
Paragraph “H” shall not be exceeded, unless authorized by contract amendment.  

B. In addition to the allowable incurred costs, County will pay Consultant a fixed fee of 
$_27,227.73___.  The fixed fee is nonadjustable for the term of the contract, except in the event of a 
significant change in the scope of work and such adjustment is made by contract amendment.  

C. Reimbursement for transportation and subsistence costs shall not exceed the rates 
specified in the approved Cost Proposal, Attachment B.  

ttaylor_2
Highlight



County of Inyo Contract No. 146.1 - Actual Cost-Plus Fixed Fee 
(Independent Consultant – Local Assistance Federal Aid Projects)  

Page 3 of 21  07012018 

D. When milestone cost estimates are included in the approved Cost Proposal, 
Consultant shall obtain prior written approval for a revised milestone cost estimate from the Contract 
Administrator before exceeding such cost estimate.  

E. Progress payments will be made monthly in arrears based on services provided and 
allowable incurred costs. A pro rata portion of Consultant’s fixed fee will be included in the monthly 
progress payments. If Consultant fails to submit the required deliverable items according to the 
schedule set forth in the Statement of Work, County shall have the right to delay payment or 
terminate this Contract in accordance with provisions of Item 17 - Termination.  

F. No payment will be made prior to approval of any work, nor for any work performed 
prior to approval of this Contract.  

G. Consultant will be reimbursed, as promptly as fiscal procedures will permit upon 
receipt by County’s Contract Administrator of itemized invoices in triplicate.  Invoices shall be 
submitted no later than 45 calendar days after the performance of work or which Consultant is 
billing.  Invoices shall detail the work performed on each milestone and each project as applicable.   
Invoices shall follow the format stipulated for the approved Cost Proposal and shall reference this 
contract number and project title.  Final invoice must contain the final cost and all credits due County 
including any equipment purchased under the provisions of Item 10 - Equipment Purchase of this 
Contract. The final invoice should be submitted within 60 calendar days after completion of 
Consultant’s work.  Invoices shall be mailed to County’s Contract Administrator at the following 
address:  

Trevor Taylor
County of Inyo, Public Works 
Department P.O. Drawer Q 
Independence, CA 93526   

H. The total amount payable by County including the fixed fee shall not 
exceed $317,473.44.  

I. Salary increases will be reimbursable if the new salary is within the salary range 
identified in the approved Cost Proposal, found in Attachment B, and is approved by County’s 
Contract Administrator.  

For personnel subject to prevailing wage rates as described in the California Labor 
Code, all salary increases, which are the direct result of changes in the prevailing wage rates are 
reimbursable.  

J. A Task Order is of no force or effect until returned to County and signed by an 
authorized representative of County.  No expenditures are authorized on a project and work shall not 
commence until a Task Order for that project has been executed by County. 

ttaylor_3
Highlight



County of Inyo Contract No. 146.1 - Actual Cost-Plus Fixed Fee 
(Independent Consultant – Local Assistance Federal Aid Projects)  

Page 4 of 21  07012018 

5. STATE PREVAILING WAGE RATES

A. Consultant shall comply with the State of California’s General Prevailing Wage Rate 
requirements in accordance with California Labor Code, Section 1770, and all Federal, State, and 
local laws and ordinances applicable to the work.  

B. Any subcontract entered into as a result of this contract, if for more than $25,000 for 
public works construction, or more than $15,000 for the alternation, demolition, repair, or 
maintenance of public works, shall contain all of the provisions of this Section, unless the awarding 
agency has an approved labor compliance program by the Director of Industrial Relations.  

C. When prevailing wages apply to the services described in the scope of work, 
transportation and subsistence costs shall be reimbursed at the minimum rates set by the Department 
of Industrial Relations (DIR) as outlined in the applicable Prevailing Wage Determination.  See 
http://www.dir.ca.gov. 

6. REQUIRED LICENSES, CERTIFICATES, AND PERMITS

A. Any licenses, certificates, or permits required by the federal, state, county, or 
municipal governments for Consultant to provide the services and work described in Attachment A 
must be procured by Consultant and be valid at the time Consultant  enters into this Contract or as 
otherwise may be required. Further, during the term of this Contract, Consultant must maintain such 
licenses, certificates, and permits in full force and effect.  Licenses, certificates, and permits may 
include, but are not limited to, driver's licenses, professional licenses or certificates, and business 
licenses.  Such licenses, certificates, and permits will be procured and maintained in force by 
Consultant at no expense to the County.  Consultant will provide County, upon execution of this 
Contract, with evidence of current and valid licenses, certificates and permits which are required to 
perform the services identified in Attachment A.  Where there is a dispute between Consultant and 
County as to what licenses, certificates, and permits are required to perform the services identified in 
Attachment A, County reserves the right to make such determinations for purposes of this Contract. 

B. Consultant warrants that it is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for 
debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in covered transactions 
by any federal department or agency.  Consultant also warrants that it is not suspended or debarred 
from receiving federal funds as listed in the List of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement or 
Non-procurement Programs issued by the General Services Administration available at: 
http://www.sam.gov.  

7. DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION CERTIFICATION

A. Consultant’s signature affixed herein, shall constitute a certification under penalty of 
perjury under the laws of the State of California, that Consultant has complied with Title 2 CRF, Part 
180, “OMB Guidelines to Agencies on Government wide Debarment and Suspension (non-
procurement)”, which certifies that he/she or any person associated therewith in the capacity of 
owner, partner, director, officer, or manager, is not currently under suspension, debarment, voluntary 
exclusion, or determination of ineligibility by any federal agency; has not been suspended, debarred, 
voluntarily excluded, or determined ineligible by any federal agency within the past three (3) years; 



County of Inyo Contract No. 146.1 - Actual Cost-Plus Fixed Fee 
(Independent Consultant – Local Assistance Federal Aid Projects)  

Page 5 of 21  07012018 

does not have a proposed debarment pending; and has not been indicted, convicted, or had a civil 
judgment rendered against it by a court of competent jurisdiction in any matter involving fraud or 
official misconduct with the past three (3) years. Any exceptions to this certification must be 
disclosed to County.  

B. Exceptions will not necessarily result in denial of recommendation for award, but will 
be considered in determining Consultant’s responsibility. Disclosures must indicate to whom 
exceptions apply, initiating agency, and date of action.  

C. Exceptions to the Federal Government Excluded Parties List System maintained by 
the General Services Administration are to be determined by the Federal highway Administration.  

8. STATUS OF CONSULTANT

All acts of Consultant, its agents, officers, and employees, relating to the performance of this
Contract, shall be performed as independent Consultant’s, and not as agents, officers, or employees 
of County.  Consultant, by virtue of this Contract, has no authority to bind or incur any obligation on 
behalf of County.  Except as expressly provided in Attachment A, Consultant has no authority or 
responsibility to exercise any rights or power vested in the County.  No agent, officer, or employee of 
the Consultant is to be considered an employee of County. It is understood by both Consultant and 
County that this Contract shall not under any circumstances be construed or considered to create an 
employer-employee relationship or a joint venture.  As an independent Consultant: 

A. Consultant shall determine the method, details, and means of performing the work 
and services to be provided by Consultant under this Contract. 

B. Consultant shall be responsible to County only for the requirements and results 
specified in this Contract, and except as expressly provided in this Contract, shall not be subjected to 
County's control with respect to the physical action or activities of Consultant in fulfillment of this 
Contract. 

C. Consultant, its agents, officers, and employees are, and at all times during the term 
of this Contract shall, represent and conduct themselves as independent Consultant’s, and not as 
employees of County. 

9. OFFICE SPACE, SUPPLIES, EQUIPMENT, ET CETERA

Consultant shall provide such office space, supplies, equipment, vehicles, reference materials,
and telephone service as is necessary for Consultant to provide the services identified in Attachment 
A to this Contract.  County is not obligated to reimburse or pay Consultant, for any expense or cost 
incurred by Consultant in procuring or maintaining such items.  Responsibility for the costs and 
expenses incurred by Consultant in providing and maintaining such items is the sole responsibility 
and obligation of Consultant. 



County of Inyo Contract No. 146.1 - Actual Cost-Plus Fixed Fee 
(Independent Consultant – Local Assistance Federal Aid Projects)  

Page 6 of 21  07012018 

10. EQUIPMENT PURCHASE

A. Prior Authorization in writing, by County’s Contract Administrator shall be required 
before Consultant enters into any unbudgeted purchase order, or subcontract exceeding $5,000 for 
supplies, equipment, or Consultant services. Consultant shall provide an evaluation of the necessity 
or desirability incurring such costs.  

B. For purchase of any item, service or consulting work not covered in Attachment B, 
the Consultant’s Cost Proposal, and exceeding $5,000 prior authorization by County’s Contract 
Administrator; three competitive quotations must be submitted with the request, or the absence of 
bidding must be adequately justified.  

C. Any equipment purchased as a result of this contract is subject to the following: 
“Consultant shall maintain an inventory of all nonexpendable property.  Nonexpendable property is 
defined as having a useful replacement and is sold or traded in, County shall receive a proper refund 
or credit at the conclusion of the contract, or if the contract terminated, Consultant may either keep 
the equipment and credit County in an amount equal to its fair market value, or sell such equipment 
at the best price obtainable at a public or private sale, in accordance with established County 
procedures; and credit County in an amount equal to the sale price.  If Consultant elects to keep the 
equipment, fair market value shall be determined at Consultant’s expense, on the basis of a 
competent independent appraisal of such equipment.  Appraisals shall be obtained from an appraiser 
mutually agreeable by County and Consultant, if it is determined to sell the equipment, the terms and 
conditions of such sale must be approved in advance by County.” 49 CFR, Part 18 requires a credit to 
Federal funds when participating equipment with a fair market value greater than $5,000 is credited 
to the project.  

11. COUNTY PROPERTY

A. Personal Property of County.     Any personal property such as, but not limited to, 
protective or safety devices, badges, identification cards, keys, etc. provided to Consultant by County 
pursuant to this Contract are, and at the termination of this Contract remain, the sole and exclusive 
property of County.  Consultant will use reasonable care to protect, safeguard and maintain such 
items while they are in Consultant's possession. Consultant will be financially responsible for any 
loss or damage to such items, partial or total, which is the result of Consultant's negligence. 

B. Products of Consultant's Work and Services.     Any and all compositions, 
publications, plans, specifications, blueprints, maps, formulas, processes, photographs, slides, video 
tapes, computer programs, computer disks, computer tapes, memory chips, soundtracks, audio 
recordings, films, audio-visual presentations, exhibits, reports, studies, works of art, inventions, 
patents, trademarks, copyrights, or intellectual properties of any kind which are created, produced, 
assembled, compiled by, or are the result, product, or manifestation of, Consultant 's services or work 
under this Contract are, and at the termination of this Contract remain, the sole and exclusive 
property of the County.  At the termination of the Contract, Consultant will convey possession and 
title to all such properties to County. 



County of Inyo Contract No. 146.1 - Actual Cost-Plus Fixed Fee 
(Independent Consultant – Local Assistance Federal Aid Projects)  

Page 7 of 21  07012018 

12. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

For the duration of this Contract Consultant shall procure and maintain insurance of the scope
and amount specified in Attachment D and with the provisions specified in that attachment. 

13. SUBCONTRACTING

A. Nothing contained in this Contract or otherwise, shall create any contractual relation 
between County and any subconsultant(s), and no subcontract shall relieve Consultant of its 
responsibilities and obligations hereunder. Consultant agrees to be as fully responsible to County for 
the acts and omissions of its subconsultant(s) and of persons either directly or indirectly employed by 
any of them as it is for the acts and omissions of persons directly employed by Consultant. 
Consultant’s obligation to pay it subconsultant(s) is an independent obligation from County’s 
obligation to make payments to the Consultant.  

B. Consultant shall perform the work contemplated with resources available within its 
own organization and no portion of the work pertinent to this Contract shall be subcontracted without 
written authorization by County’s Contract Administrator, except that, which is expressly identified 
in the approved Cost Proposal, Attachment B.  

C. Consultant shall pay its subconsultants within ten (10) calendar days from receipt of 
each payment made to Consultant by County.  

D. All subcontracts entered into as a result of this Contract shall contain all the 
provisions stipulated in this Contract to be applicable to subconsultants.  

E. Any substitutions of subconsultant(s) must be approved in writing by County’s 
Contract Administrator prior to the start of work by the subconsultant(s).  

14. DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFICATION

For  professional services rendered under this Contract, Consultant agrees to indemnify,
including the cost to defend County and its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers from and 
against any and all claims, demands, costs, or liability that arise out of, or pertain to, or relate to the 
negligence, recklessness, or willful misconduct of Consultant and its employees or agents in the 
performance of  professional services under this contract, but this indemnity does not apply to 
liability for damages arising from the sole negligence, active negligence, or willful acts of the 
County.  

Contractor shall hold harmless, defend, and indemnify County and its officers, officials, 
employees, and volunteers from and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses including 
attorney fees arising out of the performance of the work described herein, caused in whole or in part 
by any negligent act or omission of the Consultant, any subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly 
employed by any of them, or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable, except where caused 
by the active negligence, sole negligence, or willful misconduct of the County.  



County of Inyo Contract No. 146.1 - Actual Cost-Plus Fixed Fee 
(Independent Consultant – Local Assistance Federal Aid Projects)  

Page 8 of 21  07012018 

Consultant's obligation to defend, indemnify, and hold the County, its agents, officers, and 
employees harmless under the provisions of this paragraph is not limited to, or restricted by, any 
requirement in this Contract for Consultant  to procure and maintain a policy of insurance. If the 
Consultant maintains higher limits than the minimum required on the Insurance attachment to this 
Contract, the County requires and shall be entitled to coverage for the higher limits maintained by the 
Consultant. 

To the extent permitted by law, County shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless 
Consultant, its agents, officers, and employees from and against all claims, damages, losses, 
judgments, liabilities, expenses, and other costs, including litigation costs and attorney's fees, arising 
out of, or resulting from, the active negligence, or wrongful acts of County, its officers, or employees. 

15. RETENTION OF RECORDS/AUDIT

For the purpose of determining compliance with Public Contract Code 10115, et seq. and
Title 21, California Code of Regulations, Chapter 21, Section 2500 et seq., when applicable and other 
matters connected with the performance of the contract pursuant to Government Code 8546.7; 
Consultant, subconsultants, and County shall maintain and make available for inspection all books, 
documents, papers, accounting records, and County shall maintain and make available for inspection 
all books, documents, papers, accounting records, and other evidence pertaining to the performance 
of the contract, including but not limited to, the costs of administering the contract.  All parties shall 
make such materials available at their respective offices at all reasonable times during the contract 
period and for three years from the date of final payment under the contract.  The state, State Auditor, 
County, FHWA, or any duly authorized representative of the Federal Government shall have access 
to any books, records, and documents of Consultant and it’s certified public accountants (CPA) work 
papers that are pertinent to the Contract and indirect cost rates (ICR) for audit, examinations, 
excerpts, and transactions, and copies thereof shall be furnished if requested.  

16. AUDIT REVIEW PROCEDURES

A. Any dispute concerning a question of fact arising under an interim or post audit of this 
Contract that is not disposed of by Contract, shall be reviewed by County’s Administrative Officer.  

B. Not later than 30 days after issuance of the final audit report, Consultant may request 
a review by County’s Administrative Officer of unresolved audit issues.  The request for review will 
be submitted in writing.  

C. Neither the pendency of a dispute nor its consideration by County will excuse 
Consultant from full and timely performance, in accordance with the terms of this Contract.  

D. Consultant and subconsultant contracts, including cost proposals and ICR, are subject 
to audits or reviews such as, but not limited to, a contract audit, an incurred cost audit, an ICR Audit, 
or a CPA ICR audit work paper review.  If selected for audit or review, the contract, cost proposal 
and ICR and related work papers, if applicable, will be reviewed to verify compliance with 48 CFR, 
Part 31 and other related laws and regulations.  In the instances of a CPA ICR audit work paper 
review it is Consultant’s responsibility to ensure federal, state, or local government officials are 
allowed full access to the CPA’s work papers including making copies as necessary.  The contract 



County of Inyo Contract No. 146.1 - Actual Cost-Plus Fixed Fee 
(Independent Consultant – Local Assistance Federal Aid Projects)  

Page 9 of 21  07012018 

cost proposal, and ICR shall be adjusted by Consultant and approved by County contract manager to 
conform to the audit or review recommendations.  Consultant agrees that individual terms of costs 
identified in the audit report shall be incorporated into the contract by this reference if directed by 
County at its sole discretion. Refusal by Consultant to incorporate audit or review recommendations, 
or to ensure that the federal, state or local governments have access to CPS work papers, will be 
considered a breach of contract terms and cause for termination of the contract and disallowance of 
prior reimbursed costs.  

E. Consultant Cost Proposal is subject to a CPA ICR Audit Work Paper Review by 
Caltrans’ Audit and Investigation (Caltrans). Caltrans, at its sole discretion, may review and/or audit 
and approve the CPA ICR documentation.  The Cost Proposal shall be adjusted by the Consultant 
and approved by the County’s Contract Administrator to conform to the Work Paper Review 
recommendations included in the management letter or audit recommendations included in the audit 
report.  Refusal by the Consultant to incorporate the Work Paper Review recommendations included 
in the management letter or audit recommendations included in the audit report will be considered a 
breach of the contract terms and cause for termination of the contract and disallowance of prior 
reimbursed costs. 

1. During a Caltrans’ review of the ICR audit work papers created by the Consultant’s
independent CPA, Caltrans will work with the CPA and/or Consultant toward a
resolution of issues that arise during the review. Each party agrees to use its best
efforts to resolve any audit disputes in a timely manner.  If Caltrans identifies
significant issues during the review and is unable to issue a cognizant approval letter,
County will reimburse the Consultant at a provisional ICR until a FAR complaint ICR
{e.g. 48 CRF, part 31; GAGAS (Generally Accepted Auditing Standards); CAS (Cost
Accounting Standards), if applicable; in accordance with procedures and guidelines of
the American Association of State Highways and Transportation Officials Audit
Guide; and other applicable procedures and guidelines] is received and approved by
A&I.  Provisional rates will be as follows:

a. If  the proposed rebate is less than 150% - the provisional rate reimbursed will
be 90% of the proposed rate.

b. If  the proposed rate is between 150% and 200% - the provisional rate will be
85% of the proposed rate.

c. If  the proposed rate is greater than 200% - the provisional rate will be 75% of
the proposed rate.

2. If Caltrans is unable to issue a cognizant letter per paragraph E.1. above, Caltrans may
require Consultant to submit a revised independent CPA-audited ICR and audit report
within three (3) months of the effective date of the management Letter.  Caltrans will
then have up to six (6) months to review the Consultant’s and/or the independent
CPA’s revisions.

3. If  the Consultant fails to comply with the provisions of this Section E, of if Caltrans
is still unable to issue a cognizant approval letter after the revised independent CPA-
audited ICR and audit report within three(3) months of the effective date of the



County of Inyo Contract No. 146.1 - Actual Cost-Plus Fixed Fee 
(Independent Consultant – Local Assistance Federal Aid Projects)  

Page 10 of 21  07012018 

management letter.  Caltrans will then have up to six (6) months to review the 
Consultant’s and/or the independent CPA’s revisions.  

4. Consultant may submit to County final invoice only when all of the following items
have occurred: (1) Caltrans approves or rejects the original or revised independent
CPA-Audited ICR; (2) all work under this contract has been completed to the
satisfaction of County; and (3) Caltrans has issued its final ICR review letter.  The
Consultant MUST SUBMIT ITS FINAL INVOICE TO local agency no later than 60
days after occurrence of the last of these items.

The provisional ICR will apply to this contract and all other contracts executed between 
County and the Consultant, either as a prime or subconsultant, with the same fiscal period ICR.  

17. TERMINATION

A. County reserves the right to terminate this contract upon thirty (30) calendar days’ written 
notice to Consultant with the reasons for termination stated in the notice.  

B. County may terminate this contract with Consultant should Consultant fail to perform the 
covenants herein contained at the time and in the manner herein provided.  In the event of such 
termination, County may proceed with the work in any manner deemed proper by County. If County 
terminates this contract with Consultant, County shall pay Consultant the sum due to Consultant 
under this contract prior to termination, unless the cost of completion to County exceeds the funds 
remaining in the contract. In which case the overage shall be deducted from any sum due Consultant 
under this contract and the balance, if any, shall be paid to Consultant upon demand.  

18. COST PRINCIPLES AND ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS

A. Consultant agrees that the Contract Cost Principles and Procedures, 48 CFR, Federal 
Acquisition Regulations System, Chapter 1, Part 31.000 et seq., shall be used to determine the cost 
allowability of individual items. 

B. Consultant also agrees to comply with federal procedures in accordance with 49 CFR, Part 
18, Uniform Administrative Requirements for Grants and Cooperative Agreements to State and 
Local Governments. 

C. Any costs for which payment has been made to Consultant that are determined by subsequent 
audit to be unallowable under 49 CFR, Part 18 and 48 CFR, Federal Acquisition Regulations System, 
Chapter 1, Part 31.000 et seq., are subject to repayment by Consultant to County. 

19. ASSIGNMENT

This is a Contract for the services of Consultant. County has relied upon the skills,
knowledge, experience, and training of Consultant as an inducement to enter into this Contract.  
Consultant shall not assign or subcontract this Contract, or any part of it, without the express written 
consent of County.  Further, Consultant shall not assign any monies due or to become due under this 
Contract without the prior written consent of County. 



County of Inyo Contract No. 146.1 - Actual Cost-Plus Fixed Fee 
(Independent Consultant – Local Assistance Federal Aid Projects)  

Page 11 of 21  07012018 

20. DEFAULT

If the Consultant abandons the work, or fails to proceed with the work and services requested
by County in a timely manner, or fails in any way as required to conduct the work and services as 
required by County, County may declare the Consultant in default and terminate this Contract upon 
five (5) days written notice to Consultant. Upon such termination by default, County will pay to 
Consultant all amounts owing to Consultant for services and work satisfactorily performed to the date 
of termination.  Default shall also apply if the contract is terminated because of circumstances 
beyond the control of consultant.  The provisions of section 11.B “County Property,” shall apply to 
any partially completed work if the contract is terminated or abandoned. 

21. WAIVER OF DEFAULT

Waiver of any default by either party to this Contract shall not be deemed to be waiver of any
subsequent default.  Waiver or breach of any provision of this Contract shall not be deemed to be a 
waiver of any other or subsequent breach, and shall not be construed to be a modification of the 
terms of this Contract unless this Contract is modified as provided in Section 30 (thirty) below. 

22. CONFIDENTIALITY OF DATA

A. All financial, statistical, personal, technical, or other data and information relative to 
County’s operations, which are designated confidential by County and made available to Consultant in 
order to carry out this contract, shall be protected by Consultant from unauthorized use and disclosure.  

B. Permission to disclose information on one occasion, or public hearing held by County 
relating to the contract, shall not authorize Consultant to further disclose such information, or 
disseminate the same on any other occasion.  

C. Consultant shall not comment publically to the press or any other media regarding the 
contract or County’s actions on the same, except to County’s staff, Consultant’s own personnel 
involved in the performance of this contract, at public hearings or in response to questions from a 
Legislative committee.  

D. Consultant shall not issue any news release or public relations item of any nature, 
whatsoever, regarding work performed or to be performed under this contract without prior review of 
the contents thereof by County, and receipt of County’s written permission.  

E. Any subcontract entered into as a result of this contract shall contain all of the 
provisions of this Article.  (For PS&E contracts add paragraph F, below, to paragraphs A through E, 
above). 

F. All information related to the construction estimate is confidential, and shall not be 
disclosed by Consultant to any entity other than County.  



County of Inyo Contract No. 146.1 - Actual Cost-Plus Fixed Fee 
(Independent Consultant – Local Assistance Federal Aid Projects)  

Page 12 of 21  07012018 

23. CONFLICT OF INTEREST

A. Consultant shall disclose any financial, business, or other relationship with County 
that may have an impact upon the outcome of this contract, or any ensuing County construction 
project. Consultant shall also list current clients who may have a financial interest in the outcome of 
this contract, or any ensuing County construction project, which will follow.  

B. Consultant hereby certifies that it does not now have, nor shall it acquire any financial 
or business interest that would conflict with the performance of services under this contract.  

 Check here if C and D DO NOT APPLY.  
         (C and D do not apply if contract is NOT for preparation of Plans, Specs and Estimates) 

C. Consultant hereby certifies that neither Consultant, nor any firm affiliated with 
Consultant will bid on any construction contract, or on any contract to provide construction 
inspection for any construction project resulting from this contract.  An affiliated firm is one, which 
is subject to the control of the same persons through joint-ownership, or otherwise.  

D. Except for subconsultants whose services are limited to providing surveying or 
materials testing information, no subconsultant who has provided design services in connection with 
this contract shall be eligible to bid on any construction contract, or on any contract to provide 
construction inspection for any construction project resulting from this contract.  

 Check here if E, F and G DO NOT APPLY.   
(E, F and G do not apply if Contract is NOT for Construction Contract Administration) 

E. Consultant hereby certifies that neither Consultant, its employees, nor any firm 
affiliated with Consultant providing services on this project, prepared the Plans, Specifications, 
and Estimate for any construction project included within this contract. An affiliated firm is one, 
which is subject to the control of the same persons through joint- ownership, or otherwise. 

F. Consultant further certifies that neither Consultant, nor any firm affiliated with 
Consultant, will bid on any construction subcontracts included within the construction contract. 
Additionally, Consultant certifies that no person working under this contract is also employed by 
the construction contractor for any project included within this contract. 

G. Except for subconsultants whose services are limited to materials testing, no 
subconsultant who is providing service on this contract shall have provided services on the design 
of any project included within this contract.  

H. If a Consultant is hired in a Management Position, complete and submit Caltrans 
LPMA Exhibit 10-U “Consultant in Management Position Conflict of Interest Statement,” to 
County. 

X



County of Inyo Contract No. 146.1 - Actual Cost-Plus Fixed Fee 
(Independent Consultant – Local Assistance Federal Aid Projects)  

Page 13 of 21  07012018 

24. REBATES, KICKBACKS OR OTHER UNLAWFUL CONSIDERATION

Consultant warrants that this contract was not obtained or secured through rebates kickbacks
or other unlawful consideration, either promised or paid to any County employee.  For breach or 
violation of this warranty, County shall have the right in its discretion; to terminate the contract 
without liability; to pay only for the value of the work actually performed; or to deduct from the 
contract price; or otherwise recover the full amount of such rebate, kickback or other unlawful 
consideration.  

25. PROHIBITION OF EXPENDING LOCAL AGENCY STATE OR FEDERAL FUNDS
FOR LOBBYING    

A. Consultant certifies to the best of his or her knowledge and belief that:  

1. No state, federal or local agency appropriated funds have been paid, or will be
paid by-or-on behalf of Consultant to any person for influencing or attempting
to influence an officer or employee of any state or federal agency; a Member
of the State Legislature or United States Congress; an officer or employee of
the Legislature or Congress; or any employee of a Member of the Legislature
or Congress, in connection with the awarding of  any state or federal contract;
the making of any state or federal grant; the making of any state or federal
loan; the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension,
continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any state or federal
contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

2. If any funds other than federal appropriated funds have been paid, or will be
paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or
employee of any federal agency; a Member of Congress; an officer or
employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress; in
connection with this federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement;
Consultant shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, “Disclosure Form
to Report Lobbying”, and/or Caltrans Exhibit 10-Q in accordance with the
instructions.

B. This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed 
when this transaction was made or entered into.  Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for 
making or entering into this transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code.  Any person 
who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 
and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.   

C. Consultant also agrees by signing this document that he or she shall require that the 
language of this certification be included in all lower-tier subcontracts, which exceed $100,000 and 
that all such sub recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.   



County of Inyo Contract No. 146.1 - Actual Cost-Plus Fixed Fee 
(Independent Consultant – Local Assistance Federal Aid Projects)  

Page 14 of 21  07012018 

26. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

A. Consultant’s signature affixed herein, and dated, shall constitute a certification under 
penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that Consultant has, unless exempt, 
complied with, the nondiscrimination program requirements of Government Code Section 12990 and 
Title 2, California Administrative Code, Section 8103. 

B. During the performance of this Contract, Consultant and its subconsultants shall not 
unlawfully discriminate, harass, or allow harassment against any employee or applicant for 
employment because of sex, race, color, ancestry, religious creed, national origin, physical disability 
(including HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical condition (e.g., cancer), age (over 40), marital 
status, and denial of family care leave.  Consultant and subconsultants shall insure that the evaluation 
and treatment of their employees and applicants for employment are free from such discrimination 
and harassment.  Consultant and subconsultants shall comply with the provisions of the Fair 
Employment and Housing Act (Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) et seq.) and the 5 applicable regulations 
promulgated there under (California Code of Regulations, Title 2, Section 7285 et seq.). The 
applicable regulations of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission implementing Government 
Code Section 12990 (a-f), set forth in Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the California Code of 
Regulations, are incorporated into this Contract by reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in 
full. Consultant and it subconsultants shall give written notice of their obligations under this clause to 
labor organizations with which they have a collective bargaining or other Agreement. 

 Check here as C and D DO NOT APPLY. 
(If NO Federal Funds will be used for this project, C and D do not apply.) 

C. The Consultant shall comply with regulations relative to Title VI (nondiscrimination 
in federally-assisted programs of the Department of Transportation – Title 49 Code of Federal 
Regulations, Part 21 – Effectuation of Title VI of the 1064 Civil Rights Act). Title VI provides that 
the recipients of federal assistance will implement and maintain a policy of nondiscrimination in 
which no person in the State of California shall, on the basis of race, color, nationality, origin, 
religion, sex, age, disability, be excluded from participation in, denied the benefits of or subject to 
discrimination under any program or activity by the recipients of federal assistance or their assignees 
and successors in interest.  

D. The Consultant, with regard to the work performed by it during the Agreement shall 
act in accordance with Title VI.  Specifically, the Consultant shall not discriminate on the basis of 
race, color, national origin, religion, sex, age, or disability in the selection and retention of 
Subconsultants, including procurement of materials and leases of equipment.  The Consultant shall 
not participate either directly or indirectly in the discrimination prohibited by Section 21.5 of the U.S. 
Dot’s Regulations, including employment practices when the Agreement covers a program show 
goal is employment.  

27. POST CONTRACT COVENANT

Consultant agrees not to use any confidential, protected, or privileged information which is
gained from the County in the course of providing services and work under this Contract, for any 
personal benefit, gain, or enhancement.  Further, Consultant agrees for a period of two years after the 

X



County of Inyo Contract No. 146.1 - Actual Cost-Plus Fixed Fee 
(Independent Consultant – Local Assistance Federal Aid Projects)  

Page 15 of 21  07012018 

termination of this Contract, not to seek or accept any employment with any County, association, 
corporation, or person who, during the term of this Contract, has had an adverse or conflicting 
interest with the County, or who has been an adverse party in litigation with the County, and 
concerning such, Consultant by virtue of this Contract has gained access to the County's confidential, 
privileged, protected, or proprietary information. 

28. SEVERABILITY

If any portion of this Contract or application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be
declared invalid 
by a court of competent jurisdiction, or if it is found in contravention of any federal, state, or county 
statute, ordinance, or regulation, the remaining provisions of this Contract, or the application thereof, 
shall not be invalidated thereby, and shall remain in full force and effect to the extent that the 
provisions of this Contract are severable. 

29. FUNDING REQUIREMENTS

A. It is mutually understood between the parties that this contract may have been written 
before ascertaining the availability of funds or appropriation of funds, for the mutual benefit of both 
parties, in order to avoid program and fiscal delays that would occur if the contract were executed 
after that determination was made.  

B. This contract is valid and enforceable only, if sufficient funds are made available to 
County for the purpose of this contract.  In addition, this contract is subject to any additional 
restrictions, limitation, conditions, or any statute enacted by the Congress State Legislature, or 
County governing board that may affect the provisions, terms, or funding of this contract in any 
manner.  

C. It is mutually agreed that if sufficient funds are not appropriated, this contract may be 
amended to reflect any reduction in funds.  

D. County has the option to void the contract under the 30-day termination clause 
pursuant to Article VI, or by mutual agreement to amend the contract to reflect any reduction of 
funds.  

30. AMENDMENT/CHANGE IN TERMS

A. This contract may be amended or modified only by mutual written agreement of the 
parties.  

B. Consultant shall only commence work covered by an amendment after the 
amendment is executed and notification to proceed has been provided by County’s Contract 
Administrator.  

C. There shall be no change in Consultant’s Project Manager or members of the project 
team, as listed in the approved Cost Proposal, which is a part of this contract without prior written 
approval by County’s Contract Administrator.  



County of Inyo Contract No. 146.1 - Actual Cost-Plus Fixed Fee 
(Independent Consultant – Local Assistance Federal Aid Projects)  

Page 16 of 21  07012018 

31. NOTICE

Any notice, communication, amendments, additions, or deletions to this Contract, including
change of address of either party during the terms of this Contract, which Consultant or County shall 
be required, or may desire, to make, shall be in writing and may be personally served, or sent by 
prepaid first class mail to, the respective parties as follows: 

County of Inyo:  
Public Works___________________________  Department  
PO Drawer Q__ __________________________  Address 

__ _________________  City and State 

Consultant: 
________________________________________ Name 
________________________________________ Address 
________________________________________ City and State 

32. ENTIRE CONTRACT

This Contract contains the entire Contract of the parties, and no representations, inducements,
promises, or Contracts otherwise between the parties not embodied herein or incorporated herein by 
reference, shall be of any force or effect.  Further, no term or provision hereof may be changed, 
waived, discharged, or terminated, unless the same be in writing executed by the parties hereto.  

---o0o--- 

IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND 
SEALS THIS _______ DAY OF _________________________,    _________. 

COUNTY OF INYO CONSULTANT 

By:______________________________ By:___________________________________ 
Signature Signature 

     _______________________________      ____________________________________ 
       Print or Type Name          Print or Type Name 

Dated: ____________________________ Dated:_________________________________ 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY: APPROVED AS TO PERSONNEL REQUIREMENTS: 

____________________________________  _________________________________________ 
County Counsel Personnel Services 

APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM: APPROVED AS TO INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS:  

___________________________________  _______________________________________ 
County Auditor County Risk Manager  

Independence, CA 93526   



County of Inyo Contract No. 146.1 - Actual Cost-Plus Fixed Fee 
(Independent Consultant – Local Assistance Federal Aid Projects)  

Page 17 of 21  07012018 

ATTACHMENT A 

CONTRACT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 
AND __Eastern Sierra Engineering__ 

FOR THE PROVISION OF CONSULTANT SERVICES 

TERM: 

FROM: ______________________________ TO:_____________________________ 

SCOPE OF WORK: 

Eastern Sierra Engineering of Bishop, CA will be providing engineering design and environmental 
services for the Lone Pine Sidewalk Construction and ADA Improvement Project 
#ATPSB1L-5948(096).  Services include preliminary engineering, design, and environemental services 
as included in the attached Scope of Work.  The scope of work attached below includes proposed 
project manager Michael Collins.  David Grah will replace Michael Collins as the proposed project 
manager due to staffing changes as reflected in the cost proposal.

The Scope of Work includes a few Optional Tasks, totaling $17,968.44.  The Consultant shall not incur 
costs on these tasks without prior approval from the County.

The hourly rates, other direct costs and fees paid by the County for these services will be those shown in 
Attachment B to the Contract.

Prior to incurring any expenses above the estimated project cost of $317,473.44, a request for approval 
of the increase must be made in writing by the Consultant to the County, and approved by the Board of 
Supervisors.  Any increase to the not-to-exceed amound will be effective only by written Amendment to 
the Contract.

August 18, 2020 August 18, 2023



12 

Eastern Sierra Engineering 

RFP for Environmental, Design, PS&E and Construction Support Services in support of 

ATP Lone Pine Sidewalk Construction and ADA Improvement Project 

Task 1 - Project Management -ESE 
ESE’s project manager, Michael Collins, will be responsible for management of this project from the 
Bishop, CA office with support from the Reno, NV office. He will work closely with the Inyo County 
Project Manager to coordinate and be responsible for scheduling meetings, managing the project 
schedule, preparing and distributing minutes, conducting field reviews, tracking action items for the 
County and consultant sub‐contractors, and preparing all submissions for the County to submit to 
Caltrans Local Assistance. Mr. Collins has established working relationships with Caltrans District 9 
Local Assistance and all subconsultants from previous ESE projects and Caltrans Work experience. 
Additionally, Mr. Collins previously worked in the Design department in Caltrans District 9 and will 
coordinate with them on the Lone Pine (US-395) rehabilitation project planned for 2023. 

Deliverable: N/A 

Task 2 - Preliminary Engineering Studies - ESE/GTS 
The preliminary engineering phase (PA&ED) will refine project scope in the context of available 
funding and ensure the Environmental Document is geared toward an appropriate and feasible 
project scope. The County has identified approximately 5,500 feet of existing and 4,500 feet of 
proposed sidewalk eligible for improvements in this project. There is approximately $1.6 million 
dollars available for construction.  

The primary objective of this task is to identify which sidewalk segments will be included in this 
project. ESE will lead this work with input from GTS on traffic engineering and Geode on the 
environmental document. GTS will assist in prioritizing which improvements will have the greatest 
contribution to overall connectivity considering the project’s budget, determining cross walk locations 
& treatments, roadway striping, and signage. A figure of the project area will be prepared along with 
a table prioritizing all segments of existing and proposed sidewalk defined by the County and how 
they fit into the overall connectivity. The table will define rough cost to rehabilitate or construct 
sidewalk as well as existing condition and other considerations such as drainage or existing utilities. 
We understand that certain segments of sidewalk such as the safety corridor along Jackson Street 
have already been identified as the highest priority for improvements. Curb ramps and crosswalk 
locations will also be determined. With this information, ESE and the County will establish the scope 

SCOPE OF WORK 



13 
Eastern Sierra Engineering 

RFP for Environmental, Design, PS&E and Construction Support Services in support of 

ATP Lone Pine Sidewalk Construction and ADA Improvement Project 

of the project. ESE will propose additive‐alternates as necessary for maximizing the scope of work 
within the funding limitations. Once the scope has been defined, ESE will assemble a preliminary set
of 30% plans to be reviewed by the County. 

Preliminary plans to include: 

• Title Sheet

• Notes, Legend and
Abbreviations

• Utilities Index

• Plan Sheets (10 Scale)

• Signing and Striping

• Detail Sheets

Construction Cost Estimate. An
estimate of probable construction
costs will be prepared with the 
preliminary plans. A standard table 
format will be used to develop the 
costs, which will include
descriptions, quantities, unit costs,
and total costs. 

ESE can provide geotechnical 
investigations as-needed on this
project, but we do not expect any
formal studies as this project is
focused on pedestrian facilities and
not the roadway structural section.

Deliverables: Sidewalk connectivity figure and table.  30% PS&E Package (Layouts at 10 scale). All 
plans will be D size drawings 24” x 36.

Task 3 - ATP Required User Counts – GTS 
GTS will collect pre-construction and post-construction pedestrian count data at up to three locations 
within the project limits. The data collection will be based on the Interim Count Methodology
Guidance for Active Transportation Program (ATP) of September 2019. This budget is based on
collecting count data at each location for 4-total Hours on 3 Weekdays (T, W, TH) at 7 – 9 AM and 4 
– 6 PM and 1 Weekend day 11 AM - 1 PM before and then after construction.

Deliverable: Pedestrian Count Report

Task 4 - Surveys and Mapping – Bear/ESE 
The base map will be a compilation of the field survey, record of surveys, aerial photo, record 
drawings, utility information, and existing constraints. John Langford will perform the field survey 
(horizontal datum CCS Zone IV NAD 83(2011) US Survey feet and vertical datum NAVD 88) and 
provide existing right-of-way and easements within the area. The proposed project survey limits will
be quite broad to provide enough room for all potential sidewalk scenarios and include adjacent 
roadways at 50’ intervals to ensure the new designs tie into existing improvements. All existing 
pedestrian facilities within the project area will be surveyed to verify compliance with ADA design 
standards. John Langford has extensive experience surveying in Inyo County for more than 40 years 
and has previously worked with ESE on a number of Inyo County Projects. Michael Collins and 
Daniel Sandoval will contact the utility agencies for utility mapping. Michael will compile all of the 
topo survey, utility information and aerial photo for a comprehensive project base map 



14 

Eastern Sierra Engineering 

RFP for Environmental, Design, PS&E and Construction Support Services in support of 

ATP Lone Pine Sidewalk Construction and ADA Improvement Project 

Deliverable: Base map in electronic format (AutoCAD 2019)  

Task 5 - Environmental Studies and Documentation – Geode 

A- CEQA Categorical Exemption (CE) 
Geōde Environmental (Geōde), will complete the environmental review of the anticipated CEQA 
Categorical Exemption (CE) per PRC 21084; 14 CCR 15301.  As the footprint of the project area 
identified for new sidewalks in Lone Pine appears to have previously been disturbed by grading, 
parking and pedestrian use, and no native vegetation is established in these areas, no environmental 
technical studies are anticipated.  

B- Environmental Commitments Record (ECR) 
Should the project scope change due to project site conditions or at the discretion of jurisdictional 
agencies, Geōde will provide all required professional environmental services necessary to obtain 
environmental clearance per CEQA and NEPA, if a federal nexus is established. Geōde will ensure 
the project design and construction documents comply with the CEQA environmental document and 
any regulatory permits through memorialization in the Environmental Commitments Record (ECR). 
The ECR is a matrix noting the necessary environmental provisions and the associated Caltrans 
2018 Standard Plans and Standard Specifications, which guide in the implementation of the 
provisions and avoidance measures. This document will assist both the Inyo County Public Works 
department, the Resident Engineer on the project, and the contractor, track and monitor the 
implementation of the ECR measures. These collective efforts fulfil the project’s CEQA requirements. 

C- Coordination 
Within the project scope, Geōde will assume a project initiation meeting to coordinate with Inyo 
County Public Works and the time necessary to communicate with CDFW’s Edith Martinez, Inland 
Dessert Regional Coordinator to obtain concurrence on a CEQA Categorical Exemption (CE) per 
PRC 21084; 14 CCR 15301.  

OPTIONAL TASKS (OT) – Through coordination with Inyo County Public Works and jurisdictional 
agencies like CDFW or the Lone Pine Paiute-Shoshone Tribe, should additional surveys be required, 
the following will be performed These optional tasks are considered beyond the scope of this project 
and would require an amendment from the County to complete: 

OT 1- Biological Resource Efforts 

• A California Natural Diversity Data Base (CNDDB) search for state and federally listed
species;

• A focused botanical and species surveys will be performed; and

• A biological report will be drafted to address any potentially significant impacts and
associated avoidance measures to minimize significant adverse environmental effects to the
extent feasible (the NEPA equivalent of mitigation).

OT 2- Cultural Resource Efforts 

• Pedestrian field survey to verify archaeological resources;

• A cultural resources records search from the California Historic Resources Information
System (CHRIS) at the Eastern Information Center (EIC) at UC Riverside; and

• A Phase I Cultural Resources Assessment with associated avoidance measures to minimize
significant adverse environmental effects; and

• Possible AB 52 Coordination with Lone Pine Paiute-Shoshone Tribe if document level is
elevated above a CE.

OT 3- Supplemental Coordination with Jurisdictional Agencies 



15 
Eastern Sierra Engineering 

RFP for Environmental, Design, PS&E and Construction Support Services in support of 

ATP Lone Pine Sidewalk Construction and ADA Improvement Project 

• CDFW

• USFWS (if federal nexus is established)

• Lone Pine Paiute-Shoshone Tribe

• Presence at the Inyo County Board of Supervisors Meeting

• Other agencies

Deliverable: Drafting of CEQA Categorical Exemption, required agency permits as necessary 

Task 6 - Utility Coordination – ESE 
As part Task 4, ESE will obtain existing utilities mapping and 
incorporate them into the Base Map. Additionally, all existing 
overhead utilities will be identified and utility pole numbers will be 
noted on the base map. This task will include potholing existing 
and abandoned utilities to determine their precise location. ESE 
has technicians based in Bishop to assist with potholing.  

ESE will work to design coherent pedestrian infrastructure that 
meets all design standards while minimizing impacts to existing 
utilities especially expensive pole relocations. All utility plans will 
meet design standards as defined by the owner. Preliminary and 
final plans will be submitted to the utilities for approval. 
Additionally, ESE will conduct two utility coordination meetings 
for all effected entities.  ESE will adjust project schedule based 
on final scope of utility relocation. We will also work to 
accommodate utilities that plan to update aging facilities within 
the project area. ESE will provide the County with all utility 
correspondence from this project. 

Deliverable: Utility Mapping included on Base Map, Utility Improvement Plans 

Task 7 - Right of Way Phase & Determination – ESE/Bear 
We understand that additional Right of Way (ROW) is not anticipated for this project. Preliminary 
inquiry indicates that there may not be sufficient record in mapping to establish clear right of way on 
this project. Bear will use field investigation and review existing mapping to establish County right of 
way as clearly as possible. ESE and Bear have encountered similar difficulties constructing 
sidewalks on Home Street in Bishop, CA.  If additional ROW is necessary, ESE will work with Bear 
Engineering to define proposed additional ROW. 

Deliverable: Right of Way certification 

Task 8 - Design – ESE 
ESE will design the improvements and prepare the plans, specifications, and estimates in 
accordance with Caltrans Standards and AASHTO Geometric Design guidelines to meet the project 
scope as defined in Task 2. During this phase ESE will determine how improvements will tie into 
existing asphalt and adjacent properties Drainage will also be reviewed to update existing facilities 
so that they accommodate new flow patterns. The Plans will be submitted to the Division of the State 
Architect’s (DSA) Office for review of ADA compliance. The Consultant will be responsible for 
submitting the review package to the DSA in accordance with applicable guidelines and will address 
any comments or changes stemming from the review. ESE also anticipates County reviews and will 
address all comments from the County.  



16 

Eastern Sierra Engineering 

RFP for Environmental, Design, PS&E and Construction Support Services in support of 

ATP Lone Pine Sidewalk Construction and ADA Improvement Project 

This project will require minimal improvements on Caltrans right of way. We anticipate applying for 
a Caltrans encroachment permit to complete this work. We also understand Caltrans has a 
rehabilitation programmed on US-395 through Lone Pine and we will need to coordinate with their 
improvements. 

Final plans to include: 

• Title Sheet

• Notes, Legend and Abbreviations

• Plan Sheets (10 scale)

• Intersection Detail Sheets (5 scale)

• Ramp Detail Sheets (5 scale)

• Striping and Sign Sheets

• Roadway, Sign and Striping Details

• Construction Area Signs

• Erosion Control Plans

• Traffic Control Plans

Specifications. Front-end specifications will be provided by the 
County.  The technical specifications will be a combination of 
Caltrans specifications and special provisions developed by 
ESE and the County.   

Construction Cost Estimate. An estimate of probable 
construction costs will be prepared at each submittal stage of the design process. A standard table 
format will be used to develop the costs, which will include descriptions, quantities, unit costs, and 
total costs. The final estimate will be correlated with the bid schedule. 

Deliverables: PS&E at 60%, 90%, and final contract documents. All plans will be D size drawings 
24” x 36”. ESE will submit to County: 1 Mylar original, 2 copy sets and 1 copy on USB drive for 
review. Caltrans Encroachment Permit 

Task 9 - Coordination with Adjacent Properties – ESE/Bear 
ESE will work with adjacent properties to establish driveway locations and other modifications 
required in front of their property such as fence relocations, mailbox relocation, or tree removal. We 
anticipate much of the right of way is poorly defined and establishing temporary construction 
easements will be difficult. Temporary construction easements will be put in place, as necessary to 
allow construction. Designs will work to maintain existing parking and minimize tree disturbance as 
much as possible.  We anticipate minimal impact to owner’s improvements due to the flat slopes and 
wide width of existing streets. ESE understands there may be one public meeting and will work with 
the County to organize the meeting.   

Deliverables: Construction Easements, Public meeting figures 

Task 10 - Bid Process – ESE 
As part of Task 8 ESE will provide an electronic copy of the final approved plans and specifications, 
a Mylar copy of the final approved plans, and a hard copy of the final approved specifications. The 
electronic copy of the plans shall be provided as both AutoCAD files and PDF files, and the electronic 
copy of the specifications shall be provided in both Microsoft Word format and PDF format will provide 
the following assistance during the period of time between advertising and receipt of bids for the 
project. 

ESE designed ADA compliant 

ramp, Reno, NV 



17 
Eastern Sierra Engineering 

RFP for Environmental, Design, PS&E and Construction Support Services in support of 

ATP Lone Pine Sidewalk Construction and ADA Improvement Project 

• Assistance During Bidding. ESE will provide assistance to the County during bidding of the
project. The work shall include answering questions from prospective bidders, preparation of
addenda (as required) during the advertisement period, and providing ongoing consultation and
interpretation of the construction documents.

• Attend Pre-Bid Conference. ESE will attend one pre-bid conference. The County will lead the
meeting and ESE will answer questions and discuss intent of the plans.

• Attend Bid Opening. ESE will attend the bid opening for the project and provide assistance in the
evaluation of the bid summary as requested by the County.

• Contract Award Recommendation. ESE will provide comments and assist the County with the
evaluation of the bidders. A recommendation will be made regarding apparent successful
bidder.

Deliverable: N/A 

Task 11 - Construction Services – ESE 
This task is optional as needed by the County. ESE will provide contract administration assistance 
during the construction phase of the project.   

• Attend Pre-construction Conference. ESE will attend one pre-construction conference, answer
questions as directed by the County.

• Review Contractors Submittals. ESE will review and comment on acceptability of Contractor
submittals for the County. All submittals will be logged and returned to the submitter through
the County to maintain continuity and lines of communication.

• Prepare Design Clarifications and RFI's. As part of the submittal review process, ESE will
respond to contractor RFI's or requests for clarifications as requested by the County.

Materials testing, full time on-site inspection and construction survey are not included in this 
proposal. 

Deliverables: Submittal Reviews, Construction support 



County of Inyo Contract No. 146.1 - Actual Cost-Plus Fixed Fee 
(Independent Consultant – Local Assistance Federal Aid Projects)  

Page 18 of 21  07012018 

ATTACHMENT B 

CONTRACT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 

FOR THE PROVISION OF CONSULTANT SERVICES 

TERM: 

FROM: ______________________________ TO:_____________________________ 

SCHEDULE OF FEES: 

August 18, 2020 August 18, 2023

The consultant shall be compensated for actual costs plus a fixed fee (10%) at the rates shown in the
attached cost proposal, submitted by Eastern Sierra Engineering of Bishop, CA, dated July 7, 2020 
for the services described in Attachment A to the Contract, Scope of Work.  The rates and costs 
indentified herein shall constitute full compensation for providing all services, labor, equipment, 
materials and other incidentals necessary to perform all work described in Attached A to the 
Contract, Scope of Work.

The hours and associated costs allotted to each task in the cost proposal are projected estimates of 
probable costs incurred by the consultant.  The total compensation provided shall not exceed 
$317,473.44.  If an increase to the project cost is expected, request for approval of the increase must 
be made in writing by the Consultant to the County prior to incurring the increase, and approved 
by the Board of Supervisors.  Any increase will be effective by written Amendment to the contract 
only.

AND __Eastern Sierra Engineering__ 

















































Safe Harbor Rate Form - Revised 5/2019 1

SAFE HARBOR RATE
CONSULTANT CERTIFICATION OF ELIGIBILITY; 

CONTRACT COSTS AND 
FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

Consultant Firm Name: 

Local Agency (if applicable):

Contract # (if applicable):

Federal Project #:

Contract Total:    $

For Subconsultants - estimated % of work to be performed: %

Safe Harbor Rate (Indirect Cost Rate): 110%

CERTIFICATION OF ELIGIBILITY:
I, the undersigned, certify that I am eligible to use the safe harbor indirect cost rate as I:

1. Do not have relevant contract cost history to use as a base for developing a Federal
Acquisition Regulations (FAR) of Title 48, Code of Federal Regulations (CFR), Part 31
compliant indirect cost rate (ICR).

OR

1. Do not have a previously accepted ICR by a cognizant agency, or with an audited/accepted
actual ICR, and do not have an existing contract with a provisional rate

2. Am not a Prime Consultant on a Caltrans’ contract > $3.5M OR Local Government
contract > $1M, regardless of the participation amount.

CERTIFICATION OF FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM:

I, the undersigned, certify that our financial management system in place for this contract and 
moving forward meets the standards for the Safe Harbor Rate requirements and financial 
reporting, accounting records, internal and budget control as set forth in the FAR of Title 
49, CFR, Part 18.20. These standards require consulting firms have an accounting system 
adequate to accumulate, and track allowable, allocable, and reasonable direct labor and other 
direct costs by contract; segregate indirect costs, and remove unallowable costs.



* Consultant Certification Signature:
(Sign in blue ink only)

Consultant Certifying (Print):

Name: Title:

Consultant Contact Information:

Email: Phone:

Safe Harbor Rate Form - Revised 5/2019 2

Business Mailing Address:

Date of Certification:

*An executive or financial officer of the contractor’s organization who has authority to represent
the financial information utilized to establish the proposal submitted in conjunction with the
contract.

ALSO REQUIRED IF PARTICIPATING ON A CALTRANS’ CONTRACT

Attach a copy of your completed:

Safe Harbor Rate Questionnaire for Evaluating Consultant’s Financial 
Management System



Safe Harbor Rate
Questionnaire for Evaluating Consultant’s Financial Management System

Consultant Name:

Headquarter Address:

Location of Accounting Records:

Name: Title:

Email: Phone:

Safe Harbor Rate Form - Revised 5/2019 3

Mailing Address:

To be eligible for a Safe Harbor Rate the Consultant’s financial management system must be adequate 
to accumulate and track direct labor and other direct costs by contract, segregate indirect costs, and 
remove unallowable costs in accordance with 48 CFR Part 31.

Instructions:
1. This questionnaire should be completed by personnel (e.g. accounting staff) with working knowledge

of the Consultant (Company)’s financial management system.

2. Answer all questions and provide an explanation and additional supporting documentation where
requested.

3. If additional space is required, please attach a separate sheet and refer to items being answered by
number.

References:
Title 48 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 31 -Federal cost principles (48 CFR Part 31)
Title 48 CFR Chapter 99, Subchapter B - Procurement Practices and Cost Accounting Standards
Title 23 United States Code (U.S.C.), Chapter 1, Section 112 - Letting of Contracts
Title 23 CFR, Chapter 1, Part 172 - Procurement, Management, and Administration of Engineering and 
Design Related Services
American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials (AASHTO) Uniform Audit & 
Accounting Guide (2016 Edition)

Definition of Terms:
Direct cost is any cost that is identified specifically with a particular cost objective. Direct costs are not 
limited to items that are incorporated in the end products as material or labor. Costs identified specifically 
with a contract are direct costs of that contract. All costs identified with other final cost objectives of the 
contractor are direct costs of those objectives. (48 CFR Part 31.202)
Indirect or overhead cost is any cost that is not directly identified with a single final cost objective, but is 
identified with two or more final cost objectives or with at least one intermediate cost objective. (48 CFR 
Part 31.203)



Has the Company developed an indirect cost rate in the past?

Safe Harbor Rate Form - Revised 5/2019 4

Yes No
If “Yes,” you are not eligible to use the Safe Harbor Rate. Do not 
continue with this Questionnaire and please complete the 
AASHTO Appendix-B ICQ and provide an ICR Schedule.

Is the Company a Prime Consultant on a Caltrans’ contract ≥ $3.5M 
OR Local Government contract ≥ $1M, regardless of the participa-
tion amount?

Yes No

If “Yes,” you are not eligible to use the Safe Harbor Rate. Do not 
continue with this Questionnaire and please complete the AASHTO 
Appendix-B ICQ and provide an Audited ICR Report.

1. What form of business entity is the Company?

Sole Proprietorship Partnership C Corporation S Corporation

Other

2. What types of services will the Company provide for this contract? (Select all that apply.)

Architectural and Engineering 
services Program Management

Preliminary Engineering Design Engineering

Surveying Feasibility Studies

Mapping or Architectural 
related services Other

3. Does the Company have prior government contracting experience? Yes No

4. Does the general ledger contain separate direct and indirect accounts for the following?

• Labor Yes No • Non-Labor Yes No

Note: This will support that all direct costs are accounted for and traceable from the job cost  
ledger to the general ledger.

5. Do you have written policies on the following cost categories?

• Accounting Yes No

• Billing Yes No

• Timesheet Preparation Yes No

• Overtime Yes No

• Direct/Indirect Expenses Yes No

• Prevailing Wage Yes No



6. What types of employee status will the Company provide for this contract?

Non-exempt Exempt-salaried Exempt-hourly Contract Employee

Other

7. Premium Overtime. Does the Company pay overtime at a premium to any employees?

Yes No

If yes, answer questions below. If no, continue to question 8.

• What premium rate is paid for Non-Exempt employees:

Time-and-a-half and double-time Straight rate

Other (Please explain) 

• What premium rate is paid for Exempt-Hourly employees:

Time-and-a-half and double-time

Other (Please explain) 

Straight rate

• How is premium overtime accounted for and billed?

As part of Direct Labor 
(overhead is applied)

As an indirect labor cost (included in the 
indirect cost rate and not directly billed)

As an Other Direct Cost
(no overhead applied) Other

(Please explain)

Safe Harbor Rate Form - Revised 5/2019 5

  

8. Is indirect and direct labor separated by contract/project/cost objectives on employee timesheets
with reporting codes?

Yes No

9. Are contracts/projects assigned a unique identification/project number in your accounting system?

Yes No



Safe Harbor Rate Form - Revised 5/2019 6

10. Besides labor, does the Company normally bill/invoice the following as direct contract/
project costs? (Select all that apply.)

Vehicle Shipping

Computer/CADD Lab

Printing Travel

Specialty Equipment
(List Below)

 Other (List Below)

10a. Is Vehicle normally billed/invoiced as a direct contract/project costs? Yes No

• Are mileage logs maintained for all vehicles? If “No,” please explain below.

Explanation:

• What is the recovery/billing rate used for Company or personal vehicle mileage reimbursement?

$              per mile

I certify that to the best of my knowledge and belief the responses to this questionnaire are 
accurate.

Print Name:

Signature: 
(Sign in blue ink only)

Title:

Date Completed:















County of Inyo Contract No. 146.1 - Actual Cost-Plus Fixed Fee 
(Independent Consultant – Local Assistance Federal Aid Projects)  

Page 19 of 21  07012018 

ATTACHMENT C 

CONTRACT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 

FOR THE PROVISION OF CONSULTANT SERVICES 

TERM: 

FROM: ______________________________ TO:_____________________________ 

SCHEDULE OF TRAVEL AND PER DIEM PAYMENT: 

August 18, 2020 August 18, 2023

The consultant shall be compensated at the rates shown in Eastern Sierra Engineering's 
Exhibit 10-H1 Cost Proposal (Attachment B) for Travel and Per Diem expenses.

AND __Eastern Sierra Engineering__ 



County of Inyo Contract No. 146.1 - Actual Cost-Plus Fixed Fee 
(Independent Consultant – Local Assistance Federal Aid Projects)  

Page 20 of 21  07012018 

ATTACHMENT D 

CONTRACT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 

FOR THE PROVISION OF CONSULTANT SERVICES 

TERM: 

FROM: ______________________________ TO:_____________________________ 

SEE ATTACHED INSURANCE PROVISIONS 

August 18, 2020 August 18, 2023

AND __Eastern Sierra Engineering__ 



Specifications 2  

Insurance Requirements for Professional Services 

Consultant shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract insurance against claims 

for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the 

performance of the work hereunder by the Consultant, its agents, representatives, or employees. 

MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMIT OF INSURANCE 

Coverage shall be at least as broad as: 

1. Commercial General Liability (CGL):  Insurance Services Office Form CG 00
01 covering CGL on an “occurrence” basis for bodily injury and property damage,
including products-completed operations, personal injury and advertising injury,
with limits no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence. If a general aggregate limit
applies, either the general aggregate limit shall apply separately to this
project/location or the general aggregate limit shall be twice the required
occurrence limit.

2. Automobile Liability:  Insurance Services Office Form Number CA 0001
covering, Code 1 (any auto), or if Consultant has no owned autos, Code 8 (hired)
and 9 (non-owned), with limit no less than $500,000 per accident for bodily injury
and property damage.

3. Workers’ Compensation insurance as required by the State of California, with
Statutory Limits, and Employer’s Liability Insurance with limit of no less than
$1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury or disease.

(Not required if consultant provides written verification it has no
employees) 

1. Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions) Insurance appropriates to the Consultant’s

profession, with limit no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence.

If the Consultant maintains higher limits than the minimums shown above, the Entity 

requires and shall be entitled to coverage for the higher limits maintained by the Consultant. 

Any available insurance proceeds in excess of the specified minimum limits of insurance and 

coverage shall be available to the Entity. 

Other Insurance Provisions 

The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions: 

Additional Insured Status 

1. The Entity, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers are to be covered
as additional insureds on the CGL policy with respect to liability arising out of work
or operations performed by or on behalf of the consultant including materials, parts,
or equipment furnished in connection with such work or operations. General liability
coverage can be provided in the form of an endorsement to the Consultant’s
insurance (at least as broad as ISO Form CG 20 10 11 85 or both CG 20 10 and CG
20 37 forms if later revisions used).



Other Insurance Provisions 

The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions: 

Primary Coverage 
For any claims related to this contract, the Consultant’s insurance coverage 
shall be primary insurance as respects the Entity, its officers, officials, 
employees, and volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the 
Entity, its officers, officials, employees, or volunteers shall be excess of the 
Consultant’s insurance and shall not contribute with it. 

Notice of Cancellation 
Each insurance policy required above shall state that coverage shall not be 
canceled, except with notice to the Entity. 

Waiver of Subrogation 
Consultant hereby grants to Entity a waiver of any right to subrogation which any insurer of said 

Consultant may acquire against the Entity by virtue of the payment of any loss under such 

insurance.  Consultant agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to affect this 

waiver of subrogation, but this provision applies regardless of whether or not the Entity has 

received a waiver of subrogation endorsement from the insurer.   

Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions 
Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by 
the Entity. The Entity may require the Consultant to provide proof of ability to pay 
losses and related investigations, claim administration, and defense expenses 
within the retention.   

Acceptability of Insurers 
Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best’s rating of no less 
than A:VII, unless otherwise acceptable to the Entity. 

Claims Made Policies 
If any of the required policies provide coverage on a claims-made basis:    

1. The Retroactive Date must be shown and must be before the date of the contract
or the beginning of contract work.

2. Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for
at least five (5) years after completion of the contract of work.

3. If coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-
made policy form with a Retroactive Date prior to the contract effective date,
the Consultant must purchase “extended reporting” coverage for a minimum of
five (5) years after completion of contract work.

Verification of Coverage
Consultant shall furnish the Entity with original certificates and amendatory
endorsements or copies of the applicable policy language effecting coverage
required by this clause.  All certificates and endorsements are to be received and
approved by the Entity before work commences.  However, failure to obtain the
required documents prior to the work beginning shall not waive the Consultant’s
obligation to provide them.  The Entity reserves the right to require complete,



certified copies of all required insurance policies, including endorsements 
required by these specifications, at any time.  

Subcontractors 
Consultant shall require and verify that all subcontractors maintain insurance meeting all the 

requirements stated herein. 

Special Risks or Circumstances 

Entity reserves the right to modify these requirements, including limits, based on 
the nature of the risk, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other special 
circumstances.     



County of Inyo Contract No. 146.1 - Actual Cost-Plus Fixed Fee 
(Independent Consultant – Local Assistance Federal Aid Projects)  

Page 21 of 21  07012018 

ATTACHMENT E 

CONTRACT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO  
AND ______________________________________________________ 

FOR THE PROVISION OF CONSULTANT SERVICES 

TERM: 

FROM: ______________________________ TO:_____________________________ 

FEDERAL/STATE FUNDS ADDENDUM 

1. Covenant Against Contingent Fees.  The Consultant warrants that he/she has not employed or retained any
company or person, other than a bona fide employee working for the consultant, to solicit or secure this
Contract, and that he/she has not paid or agreed to pay any company or person other than a bona fide
employee, any fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift, or any other consideration, contingent upon
or resulting from the award, or formation of this Contract. For breach or violation of this warranty, the local
agency shall have the right to annul this Contract without liability, or at its discretion; to deduct from the
Contract price or consideration, or otherwise recover the full amount of such fee, commission, percentage,
brokerage fee, gift, or contingent fee.

2. Delays and Extensions.  The term of the contract may be extended in the case of unavoidable delays,
changes in the scope of work or level of effort required to meet the project objectives, and for consideration
of corresponding warranted adjustments in payment.  An extension of contract time is granted as described in
Section 30, Amendment/Change in Terms, of the contract.

3. Consultant’s Endorsement on PS&E/Other Data.  The consultant’s responsible engineer shall sign all
plans, specifications, estimates (PS&E) and engineering data furnished by him/her, and where appropriate,
indicate his/her California registration number.

4. Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Considerations. (if NO federal funds will be used for the project, DBE
consideration does not apply) Consultants must give consideration to DBE firms as specified in 23 CFR
172.5(b), 49 CFR, Part 26.  The Consultant shall comply with the applicable provisions of Exhibit 10-I,
“Notice to Proposers Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Information,” and Exhibit 10-J, “Standard Contract
for Subcontractor/DBE Participation,” that were included in the Request for Statements of Qualifications,

5. Safety.  The consultant shall comply with OSHA regulations applicable to the Consultant regarding
necessary safety equipment or procedures.  The Consultant shall comply with safety instructions issued by
the county’s project manager and other county representatives.  Consultant personnel shall wear hard hats
and safety vests at all time when working on the construction project site.

Pursuant to the authority contained in Section 591 of the Vehicle Code, the county has determined that such
areas are within the limits of the project and are open to public traffic.  The Consultant shall comply with all
of the requirements set forth in Divisions 11, 12, 13, 14, and 15 of the Vehicle Code.  The consultant shall
take all reasonably necessary precautions for safe operation of its vehicles and the protection of the traveling
public from injury and damage from such vehicles.

Any subcontract entered into as a result of this contract shall contain all of these provisions.

Eastern Sierra Engineering, Inc.

August 18, 2020 August 18, 2023



County of Inyo

Child Support Services
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  August 18, 2020 

FROM:  Regional Director, Susanne Rizo 
 
SUBJECT:  Proclamation Declaring August 2020 as Child Support Awareness Month In Inyo County 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve a proclamation declaring August 2020 as Child Support Awareness Month in Inyo 
County.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
Child Support Awareness Month is a national and state-wide initiative focused on raising awareness of the 
importance of Child Support.

Child Support is an important safety net program in our community. If families don’t have money for food and 
essentials, they will have to resort to cash aid or other programs. In our caseload of 1056 cases, a large majority 
are currently not receiving cash aid. That means a majority of our cases depend on the hard work of child support 
professionals who ensure needed child support orders are established and pursued for collection. A majority of 
our cases rely on child support to meet the economic needs of the family and underscore the importance of the 
child support program as a safety-net for families.

Last federal fiscal year, our agency collected over $2.6 million dollars for cases we manage. Among our caseload 
where public assistance is expended, our agency also performs an important revenue recovery function. During 
the same period, we recouped over $190,000 of federal ,state, and county public aid expended to families on our 
caseload. 

Child support’s aim is to increase family self-sufficiency, reduce childhood poverty, and positively effect a child’s 
educational and personal achievement. We do this by assisting both parents in establishing court orders that are 
reasonable and sustainable and by reviewing our cases to ensure the order is appropriate for each family’s 
circumstances. 

The Department is staffed by six (6) employees in the region with a total of over fifty-six (56) years of combined 
experience working within the child support program.  As a safety-net program, our staff continue to work through 
the COVID-19 pandemic to adjust child support orders as needed due to parents with reduced income or 
employment as a result of COVID. 

The attached proclamation recognizes the many child support professionals, parents, caregivers, and child 
advocates that make a difference in the lives of our region’s children.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
N/A
 
FINANCING:
No fiscal impact.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Child Support Awareness Month 2020 Proclamation
 
APPROVALS:
Susanne Rizo Created/Initiated - 8/11/2020
Darcy Ellis Approved - 8/11/2020
Susanne Rizo Approved - 8/11/2020
Sue Dishion Final Approval - 8/11/2020



PROCLAMATION
OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS,

COUNTY OF INYO, 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

DECLARING AUGUST 2020 AS
CHILD SUPPORT AWARENESS MONTH

IN INYO COUNTY

WHEREAS, Eastern Sierra Department of Child Support serving Inyo and Mono Counties, actively seeks to 
provide Family-Centered Services through partnerships with other State and County agencies, to establish and 
collect consistent child support payments to families; and,

WHEREAS, Child Support is an important safety net program in our community; and,

WHEREAS,  in 2019, Eastern Sierra Department of Child Support Services collected over $2.6 million dollars 
for cases they manage. During the same period, the agency recouped over $190,000 of federal ,state, and county 
public aid dollars expended to families on their caseload; and, 

WHEREAS,  Child Support’s aim is to increase family self-sufficiency, reduce childhood poverty, and 
positively effect a child’s educational and personal achievement. The agency does this by assisting both parents 
in establishing court orders that are reasonable and sustainable and by reviewing each case for appropriate 
orders for each family’s circumstances; and,

WHEREAS,  Child Support Awareness Month recognizes the important emotional and financial parental 
support needed for children to create a brighter future for our children,  and help them to become healthy, 
productive, and well-adjusted adults; and,

WHEREAS, The Inyo County Board of Supervisors wishes to recognize the many child support professionals, parents, 
caregivers, and child advocates that make a difference in the lives of our region’s children; and,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Inyo County Board of Supervisors does hereby 
unanimously proclaim August 2020 as Child Support Awareness Month in Inyo County and commends this 
observance to all our residents.

Matt Kingsley,
Chairperson, County of Inyo Board of Supervisors

Attest:  CLINT C. QUILTER
           Clerk of the Board

By:_____________________________
            Assistant Clerk of the Board

    



County of Inyo

County Administrator
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  August 18, 2020 

FROM:  Leslie Chapman, Alisha McMurtrie, Amy Shepherd, Denelle Carrington 
 
SUBJECT:  Restoring Vital & Valuable Inyo County Commerce (REVIVE) Grant Program for Small Businesses. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board:
A) Adopt the Restoring Vital & Valuable Inyo County Commerce (REVIVE) grant program to be funded with up to 
$800,000 of CARES Act funding, as proposed or amended, contingent upon funds being received by the County;
B) Authorize CAO Clint Quilter to sign agreements with grantees; and 
C) Authorize staff to make non-substantive changes to the grant documents.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
Staff recommends using up to $800,000 of the CARES Act, Coronavirus Relief Fund payment to Inyo County for 
the Restoring Vital & Valuable Inyo County Commerce (REVIVE) Grant program for local small and 
independently owned businesses. The objective of this program is to offer immediate financial assistance to 
small businesses located in Inyo County to aid in maintaining their business and workforce. 

Eligible expenses include payroll; lease payments for business premises; business telework equipment costs; 
inventory acquisition, personal protective equipment; facility readiness (social distancing preparedness, business 
modifications, etc.); and reimbursement of loss of income for sole proprietors due to business interruption costs. 
All expenses must be incurred between March 1, 2020 and December 31, 2020. Assuming funding is received by 
the County as scheduled, applications will be accepted from Sept. 1st through Sept. 18th, and awards will be 
disbursed by November 6th.   

Grants are proposed to go to Inyo County small, independently owned businesses with less than 100 employees. 
Businesses will be divided into three tiers with Tier 1 businesses scoring highest on that portion of the evaluation 
matrix (attached).Tier 1 includes businesses that were closed and then reopened at reduced capacity due to 
COVID-19 modifications. Tier 2 includes businesses that were closed, then reopened and have remained open; 
and Tier 3 are businesses that never closed. Details are in the attached Grant Guidelines and Grant Application.  
Other considerations will be whether the business received any other disaster funding and the degree of 
economic injury they suffered. Economic injury will be documented by the businesses using the attached 
Economic Injury Worksheet. The selection committee will use a score sheet with designated point values to 
provide a consistent methodology for evaluating applications and awarding grants. The composition of the 
selection committee has not yet been determined, so staff will announce the committee during department head 
reports during the August 25th Board of Supervisors Meeting.



Agenda Request 
Page 2

In order for this process to be as quick and efficient as possible, there will be a web page where businesses can 
get information about the program, apply online and those that are selected for grant funding will electronically 
sign the contracts. Any qualified business without the ability to do the online process can make arrangements for 
paper documents and processing.

The name of the program was chosen to reflect the County’s purpose in sponsoring this program. The definition 
of REVIVE is to renew and restore life and the intent of this grant program is to Restore Vital & Valuable Inyo 
County Commerce.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
On March 27, 2020, the Coronavirus Air, Relief and Economic Security (CARES) Act was established along with 
the Coronavirus Relief Fund (CRF). CRF funds are allowed to be used for necessary expenditures incurred due 
to the COVID-19 public health emergency for direct response such as Public Health and Public Safety, or for 
second order effects such as economic support. Inyo County staff is proposing the use of up to $800,000 for 
economic support in the form of a small business grant program to provide financial assistance for the costs of 
business interruption such as rent, utilities, and payroll expenses. 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:

 
FINANCING:
The funding for this grant program is expected to be up to $800,000, and it will be included in the CAO 
Recommended COVID-19 Budget for fiscal year 2020-21.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. REVIVE Grant Guidelines
2. REVIVE Grant Application
3. REVIVE Application Checklist
4. REVIVE Economic Injury Worksheet
5. REVIVE Electronic Payment Form
6. REVIVE Contract
 
APPROVALS:
Leslie Chapman Created/Initiated - 8/12/2020
Darcy Ellis Approved - 8/13/2020
Alisha McMurtrie Approved - 8/13/2020
Denelle Carrington Approved - 8/13/2020
Amy Shepherd Approved - 8/13/2020
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 8/13/2020
Clint Quilter Approved - 8/13/2020
Leslie Chapman Final Approval - 8/13/2020



             

REstoring VItal & ValuablE Inyo County Commerce (REVIVE) 
Small Business Assistance Grant Program

Overview & Objective
To mitigate the impact of COVID-19 on Inyo County businesses and their 
employees, the County has committed up to $800,000 in one-time CARES Act 
Coronavirus Relief Funds (CRF) to create the REVIVE Small Business Assistance 
Grant Program. The objective of this program is to offer immediate financial 
assistance to small, independently owned, businesses located in Inyo County, 
to aid in maintaining their business and workforce; thereby restoring vital and 
valuable Inyo County commerce. 

The Program: Inyo County will convene a grant administration committee to administer the 
COVID-19 REVIVE program, which will provide grants up to $25,000 each to 
qualifying Inyo County businesses.

The federal funds are provided locally through the CARES Act. Applicants should 
thoroughly review the eligibility and application process. Applications will be 
scored using a combination of the 3-Tier system, with Tier 1 having the highest 
designation as well as additional criteria defined below and in the REVIVE Grant 
Evaluation Sheet. 

Submission of an incomplete or inaccurate application may result in ineligibility 
for program funding. Inyo County is committed to timely review and processing 
to ensure award recipients can apply this resource to the successful continuation 
of business operations.

Applicants awarded grants will be required to enter into a contract with the 
County setting forth applicable terms and conditions of receiving funding.

Terms: Inyo County will provide grants up to $25,000 to eligible businesses that have 
been impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic. If a business closes permanently 
before receiving the REVIVE Grant, or if a business is currently closed and does 
not open within 30 days of receiving this grant funding (or within 30 days of 
Governor’s announcement to lift closure orders), the REVIVE Grant funds must 
be returned to the County.

COUNTY OF INYO
P. O. DRAWER N   INDEPENDENCE, CALIFORNIA 93526

TELEPHONE (760) 878-8457
businessinfo@inyocounty.us



REVIVE Small Business Assistance Grant Program

Tier/Priority:  Inyo County will prioritize applications based on the following three tiers, with 
Tier 1 having the highest priority.

Tier 1: Businesses that were closed and reopened at reduced capacity 
due to COVID-19 modifications, or businesses that were required to 
reclose. Examples include: dine-in restaurants; child care facilities; 
personal services (hair and nail salons, massage therapy, tattoo parlors 
and skin care services); gyms & fitness studios; movie theaters; family 
entertainment (bowling alleys, arcades, etc.); Indoor zoos and 
museums, cardrooms, indoor and outdoor operations of bars, 
brewpubs, breweries & pubs. 

Tier 2: Businesses that were required to close, reopened and continue 
to remain open such as hotels, motels, short term lodging; 
campgrounds; tribal casinos & gambling ; “non-essential” retail and 
shopping centers; office based businesses; car washes; pet grooming; 
landscape gardening; and film, music and TV production.   

Tier 3: Essential business that remained open during the executive order 
including grocery stores; hardware stores; sporting goods stores; 
manufacturers and logistics.

The following priorities will be used in the application review process:

 Businesses that have not received either SBA Paycheck Protection 
Program (PPP) or SBA Economic Injury Disaster Loan (EIDL) or other SBA, 
government or other grant source related to COVID-19.

 Applicants operating out of a physical storefront within the County limits 
of Inyo will be prioritized.

 Nonprofit and government entities are not eligible for this program at this 
time. 

Timeline: Application process: Three-week window, Sept. 1st – Sept. 18th by 5:00 p.m. 
Application Review: Sept. 21st – Oct. 16th.
Notification to Business: Oct. 19th – Oct. 23rd  
Funding no later than, Friday, November 6th.



REVIVE Small Business Assistance Grant Program

Eligibility:
1. Businesses must be located in Inyo County to be eligible.
2. Applicants must verify the business has experienced a loss of income due to 

COVID-19 by completing the Estimated Disaster Economic Injury Worksheet.
3. Applicants must have active licenses, or applicable permits, certificates, or 

registrations, or other evidence demonstrating to the County’s satisfaction 
that they are a bona fide business, and be in good standing with the local 
jurisdiction(s) and State.  

4. Applicant must have complied with all state and local health orders, 
requirements, and guidances applicable to its business (including those issued 
in the past as well as those currently in effect) and will continue to do so 
(including any future health orders, requirements, or guidances).

5. Applicants who have certain criminal histories, active bankruptcy proceedings, 
outstanding judgments, or tax liens may not qualify.

6. Applicants must have been in operation in Inyo County for at least one year as 
of March 1, 2020 and have less than 100 full-time employees.

7. Applicants must submit a current W-9 form.

Use of Funds: The grant funds must be solely used for expenditures that occur between March 
1, 2020 and December 30, 2020 and fall under one or more of the following 
categories:
 Payroll;
 Business Lease or Rent;
 Business telework equipment costs;
 Inventory Acquisition (inventory needed to reopen or maintain open 

status);
 Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) purchase; and
 Facility Readiness (social distancing preparedness, business modifications, 

etc.)
 Reimbursement of sole proprietor’s loss of income due to business 

interruption cost (must provide a Schedule C)

Business Post-award Audit: Grant recipients must report how the funding was spent 45 days 
after funding is received, including documentation to substantiate grant expenditures. All 
grants are subject to audit for five years after the final expenditure report is submitted and 
approved by the County.

Application submission: Grant submissions must be done electronically through the CARES 
REVIVE Grant web page unless other arrangements are made.

1. Application 
a. Reimbursement of lost revenue due to business interruption cost (sole 



REVIVE Small Business Assistance Grant Program

proprietors must provide a Schedule C)
2. Estimated Economic Injury Worksheet,
3. W-9 Form for business, and
4. Electronic Payment Form with Voided Business Check.



INYO COUNTY REVIVE GRANT APPLICATION
Restoring Vital & Valuable Inyo County Commerce

INTRODUCTION

To mitigate the impact of COVID-19 on Inyo County small businesses and their employees, the 
County of Inyo has committed up to $800,000 in one-time funds to create the REVIVE Grant 
Program for small business assistance.

The objective of this program is to offer immediate financial assistance to small businesses 
located in the County of Inyo to aid in maintaining their business and workforce.

OVERVIEW
1. Grant funds may only be used to cover the following items:

• Payroll
• Lease payments for business premises.
• Business telework equipment costs;
• Inventory Acquisition (inventory needed to reopen or maintain open status);
• Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) purchases; and
• Facility Readiness (social distancing preparedness, business modifications, 

etc.).
• Reimbursement of loss of income for sole proprietors due to business 

interruption cost (must provide a schedule c)

2. Grants will be awarded to qualified applicants based on a point system using the Inyo County 
REVIVE Grant Score Sheet. Submission of an incomplete or inaccurate application may result 
in ineligibility for program funding. Inyo County is committed to timely review and processing 
to ensure award recipients can apply this resource to the successful continuation of business 
operations.

3. Grants of $5,000, to $25,000 will be issued to qualified small businesses applicants with 
less than 100 full-time employees.

4. Applicants awarded grants will be required to enter into a contract with the County setting 
forth applicable terms and conditions of receiving funding.

ELIGIBILITY

Please carefully review the eligibility requirements below:

 Business must be locally and independently owned.

 Applicants must establish the business has incurred an economic loss due to COVID-19 
by completing the Estimated Disaster Economic Injury Worksheet.

 Applicants must have been in operation in the County of Inyo for at least one year
as of March 1, 2020 and have less than 100 full-time employees.



2

INYO COUNTY REVIVE GRANT APPLICATION

ELIGIBILITY CONTINUED:

 Applicants awarded grants must remain open at least 30 days after receiving grant 
funding, or reopen within 30 days of Governor’s announcement to lift closure orders; 
otherwise, the business must return the REVIVE Grant funds.

 Applicants must have an active Business License (if required by City or County ordinances), 
or applicable permits, certificates, or registrations, and be in good standing with the local 
jurisdiction(s) and State.  If applicant’s business entity is not required to have any such 
license, permit, certificate, or registration, then it shall provide other evidence demonstrating 
to the County’s satisfaction that it is a bona fide business operating within the County. 

 Applicant must have complied with all state and local health orders, requirements, and 
guidances applicable to its business (including those issued in the past as well as 
those currently in effect) and will continue to do so (including any future health orders, 
requirements, or guidances).

 Applicants with certain criminal histories, active bankruptcy proceedings, outstanding 
judgments, or tax liens may not qualify. 

 Applicants that have not received either SBA Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) or 
SBA Economic Injury Disaster Loan (EIDL) or other SBA, government or other grant 
source related to COVID-19 will be prioritized.

 Applicants operating out of a physical storefront within the County limits of Inyo will be 
prioritized.

 Nonprofit and government entities are not eligible for this program at this time.



3

INYO COUNTY REVIVE GRANT APPLICATION

TO BE COMPLETED BY APPLICANT

Name of Business:   

Name of Business Owner(s):   

Business Address:  

Contact Person Name and Title: 

Contact Person E-mail:   

Contact Person Phone:   

Business Type (select one):

□ Sole Proprietorship ☐ Limited Liability Entity

□ Partnership ☐ Nonprofit Corporation

□ Limited Partnership ☐ Cooperative Corporation

□ Corporation

Please mark what type of assistance you are seeking grant funding for:

☐Payroll ☐Lease Payment ☐ Telework equipment costs

☐ Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) ☐ Facility Readiness

☐ Reimbursement of income loss due to business interruption cost
 (sole proprietors must provide a schedule C)

ELIGIBILITY VERIFICATION

1. What type of business do you operate?  

2. Is your business a small business with less than 100 full-time employees that has 
been deemed non-essential under the Governor’s Executive Order N-33-20?

Yes ☐ No ☐



4

INYO COUNTY REVIVE GRANT APPLICATION

3. Is your business a small business with less than 100 full-time employees that has 
been deemed essential under the Governor’s Executive Order N-33-20?

Yes ☐ No ☐

4. Have you enclosed a completed copy of the Estimated Disaster Economic Injury Worksheet 
and certify that the business has experienced a loss of income as a result of COVID-19?

Yes ☐ No ☐

5. Have you enclosed a current copy of the W-9?

Yes ☐ No ☐

6. Do you operate out of a physical commercial storefront within the County limits of Inyo 
County?

Yes ☐ No ☐

Please list the address of the location:

7. Has your business been in operation in the County of Inyo for at least one year as of 
March 1, 2020?

Yes ☐ No ☐ Business Start Date:  

8. Is your business part a chain with two or more locations (national or local)?

Yes ☐ No ☐

9. Is your business in good standing with the County of Inyo?

Yes ☐ No ☐

10. Has the business or any of its owners ever been involved in a bankruptcy or 
insolvency proceeding?

Yes ☐ No ☐

If “yes,” please explain (attach additional sheets if necessary): 
_________________________________________________________________________ 



5

INYO COUNTY REVIVE GRANT APPLICATION

11. Does the business or any or its owners have any outstanding judgments, tax 
liens, or pending lawsuits against them?

Yes ☐ No ☐

If “yes,” please explain (attach additional sheets if necessary): 
_________________________________________________________________________

12. Is the business or any of its owners delinquent on any federal taxes, direct or guaranteed 
federal loans (SBA, FHA, VA, student, etc.), federal contracts or federal grants?

Yes ☐ No ☐

If “yes,” please explain (attach additional sheets if necessary): 
_________________________________________________________________________

13. Is your business currently suspended or debarred from contracting with the 
federal government or receiving federal grants or loans?

Yes ☐ No ☐

If “yes,” please explain (attach additional sheets if necessary): 
_________________________________________________________________________

14. Is the business or any of its owners presently a) subject to an indictment, criminal 
information, arraignment, or other means by which formal criminal charges are brought in 
any jurisdiction; b) been arrested in the past six months for any criminal offense; c) or for 
any criminal offense - other than a minor vehicle violation - 1) been convicted, 2) plead 
guilty, 3) plead nolo contendere, 4) been placed on pretrial diversion, or 5) been placed on 
any form of parole or probation (including probation before judgment)?

Yes ☐ No ☐

If “yes,” please explain (attach additional sheets if necessary): 
_________________________________________________________________________

15. Can we share your contact information with our local business organizations providing 
services and advocating on behalf of the business community?

Yes ☐ No ☐



6

INYO COUNTY REVIVE GRANT APPLICATION

DESCRIPTION OF HOW GRANT FUNDS WILL BE USED

Describe in detail what the grant funds will be used for and how it will help sustain your 
business. For example, how many months of lease payments will the grant award allow 
you to pay and/or how many full-time employees will the grant award allow you to retain. 
Was your business required to close? If so, list the duration and monetary impact? If 
you need additional room, please submit an additional sheet.

Have you received SBA Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) or SBA Economic Injury 
Disaster Loan (EIDL) or other SBA, government or other grant source related to COVID-19 or 
grant funding from the County of Inyo in the past? If yes, please describe when, how much 
was received, and how the funds were used. Describe what other forms of assistance you 
have sought, are seeking, or have obtained?



7

INYO COUNTY REVIVE GRANT APPLICATION

GRANT APPLICATION PROCESS AND TERMS

1. Grant applications must be submitted online (unless other arrangements are made) 
from SEPT. 1, 2020 TO Sept. 18, 2020 AT 5:00 PM.
Businesses must complete and include the following with this application:

□ Copy of recent financial statements (and schedule C if applicable)
□ Estimated Disaster Economic Injury Worksheet
□ Electronic Payment information Form (Please attach a copy of a Voided check)
□ Current copy of a W-9

2. If application is found complete, application will be reviewed for eligibility and applicants will 
receive a notice of award between Oct. 19th and Oct. 23rd.

3. Submission of an application in no way obligates the County to award a grant and the 
County reserves the right to reject any or all applications, wholly or in part, at any time, 
without penalty.

4. Awards will be scored by a grant selection committee based on the tiered system and other 
outlined criteria using the Inyo County REVIVE Grant Score Sheet. 

5. If awarded, a binding contract between the entity named above and the County of Inyo 
must be entered into as a condition of receiving funding.

6. If awarded, funds may only be used for applicant’s payroll expenses, lease payments or rent, 
Business telework equipment costs, Inventory Acquisition (inventory needed to reopen or 
maintain open status, Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) purchase, and Facilities 
Readiness (social distancing prepares, business modifications, etc.).

7. Businesses receiving funding are required to:
a. Certify via a written statement how many jobs were retained or how many months of 

lease payments for the business premises were paid allowing the business to 
continue operations.

b. Submit evidence that the grant funds have been spent in the manner and for the 
purposes stated in this application within Thirty (30) days of grant receipt. Evidence 
provided must be to the satisfaction of the County.

c. The County reserves the right to audit the applicant’s books and records for five years 
from the date the funds were distributed by the County and for compliance with the 
contract between the County and the applicant.

8. Businesses receiving funding are required to adopt and follow Federal and State guidance for 
operating their businesses (masking, social distancing, cleaning procedures, limiting in-store 
occupancy, etc.).

9. Grant funds will be issued as soon as practicable upon execution of the contract between the 
County and the applicant.



8

INYO COUNTY REVIVE GRANT APPLICATION

10. The program will remain in effect while funds are available or until December 31, 2020, 
whichever is first. 

11. Applicants will be disqualified for providing false information.

Please direct any questions to businessinfo@inyocounty.us or call (760) 878-8457.

By my signature below, I have read and understand the REVIVE Grant Program, and I 
declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the 
information contained in this application is true and correct. I further make the following 
representations and acknowledge agreement to the following terms and conditions:

 Upon approval of this application, a binding contract must be entered into between the 
entity named above and the County of Inyo setting forth the terms and conditions of receiving 
funding.

 I am the duly authorized representative of the entity named above and can bind the entity to 
the terms of any contract that will be required by the County in order to receive funding.

 If funds are provided by the County, the funds will be used for the purposes set forth  above.

 In no event shall the County’s financial responsibility exceed the approved amount, 
set forth below.

 I bear full responsibility for any and all tax consequences of receiving grant funds including, 
but not limited to, issuance of a 1099 by the County.

 There is no agency, employment, joint venture or other such relationship created by virtue 
of award of the grant. The County does not endorse the specific business.

 Applicant shall defend and indemnify the County and its employees from and against 
any claim, injury, liability, loss, cost and/or expense or damage including all costs and 
reasonable attorney’s fees, arising from or alleged to arise from applicant’s receipt and/or 
use of any funding awarded.

 The representations made by applicant in this Application are material terms that will be 
incorporated into any contract with County as a condition of funding , as is compliance 
with REVIVE Grant Program. The County may cancel  the grant award and/or contract at 
any time and/or seek reimbursement of any funds provided pursuant to said contract upon 
discovery that any of the information set forth above is inaccurate, that these terms have 
been violated, or any provision of the Small Business Assistance Grant Program has been 
violated.

Applicant Signature: Date:  

mailto:businessinfo@inyocounty.us%20


9

INYO COUNTY REVIVE GRANT APPLICATION

TO BE COMPLETED BY COUNTY STAFF

Grant Application Received Date?  

Grant Application Granted? Yes ☐ No ☐

If yes, list amount of grant:  

If no, provide reason for denial:  

Grant Payment Date:  

If no, has notification been sent to applicant? Yes ☐ No ☐

County Administrative Officer Signature: Date:  

Post-award Audit Completion Date:  

Signature of Staff Person Completing the Post-award Audit:                                          



INYO COUNTY REVIVE GRANT PROGRAM
APPLICATION CHECKLIST

Grant applications will be accepted from Sept. 1, 2020 to Sept. 18, 2020 at 5:00 
p.m. All applications must be submitted online unless other arrangements are made 
in advance.

Businesses must complete and include the following along with the REVIVE Grant 
Application. Please note that incomplete applications will be disqualified.

□ Completed and Signed REVIVE Grant  Application

□ Completed Estimated Economic Injury Worksheet

□ Current copy of a W-9 (signed and dated)

□ Electronic Payment Information Form (attach voided business check)

□ Last and Current Fiscal Year Financial Statement, Profit & Loss Statement, 
and Balance Sheet or schedule C of tax return for Sole Proprietors claiming 
loss of income. 

1



1

ESTIMATED ECONOMIC INJURY WORKSHEET

Please complete and include this form along with the REVIVE Grant Program Application. For non-applicable items, please 
indicate N/A.

Name of Business:  

Type of Business (i.e., retail, personal service, restaurant):   

Last Name: First Name:   

Work Phone: Home Phone:  

Email:  

Address:  

City: State: Zip Code: County:

Address:
Same as Above

City: State: Zip Code: County:

When did the impact start and what is the estimated end date? From: To: 

(If damages are ongoing, enter date of application)

What were your businesses' revenues during the affected damage period?  

What were your businesses' revenues during that SAME period of the prior year?  

Amount of business interruption insurance received or anticipated, if any:   

Please provide a brief explanation of what adverse economic effects the disaster had on your business:

How many people did you employ prior to the disaster? How many do you currently employ (at time of application):  

Do you anticipate additional employee loss?                 If so, how many?                          



2

Last Name: First Name:   

Phone: Email:  
\

Monthly Rent Amount: $

Number of months rent payments are delinquent, if any 

Form Completed By: Title:

Date Form
Completed:     



INYO COUNTY REVIVE GRANT PROGRAM
Electronic Payment Information

Thank you for submitting your application for the COVID-19 REVIVE Grant 
Program. We will evaluate and score timely, completed applications in 
accordance with the Program guidelines. In order to process payment 
efficiently if funding is awarded, please complete the following information. 
In addition, please submit a voided business check with the application.

Account Name:

Bank Name: 

Routing Number: (must be 9 digits)

Account Number: 

Account Type:  Checking Savings 

Email where confirmation of payment should be sent:

How to find your account number and routing number:



County of Inyo Standard Contract -  No. 159 (modified)
(Grant award contract – REVIVE Grant Program)

Page 1 of 11
08/11/2020

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND______________________________________________________________________

FOR  THE REVIVE SMALL BUSINESS GRANT AWARD

INTRODUCTION

This Agreement is entered into this                day of                                             , by and 
between the County of Inyo, hereinafter referred to as "County", and                                                                  , 
hereinafter referred to as "Applicant".  This Agreement, upon execution by both the County and Applicant, is a 
Grant Award. 

WHEREAS, County desires to allocate CARES Act Coronavirus Relief Funds (CRF) for economic 
support in the form of grants to small businesses for costs of business interruption due to COVID-19-related 
business closures and other impacts. The County has established the Restoring Vital and Valuable Inyo 
County Commerce (REVIVE) Grant program;
  

WHEREAS, Applicant has requested County funding to mitigate the impact of reduced business as a 
result of business closures and reduced revenues directly impacted by the pandemic from March 1, 2020 
through December 30, 2020 as described in the Grant Application attached hereto as Attachment A and by 
reference incorporated herein;  

WHEREAS, Applicant has been approved by the County to receive funding in the amount set forth 
below in Section 5 (also referred to herein as “the Grant,” “Grant Funds,” and/or “Funding”) for the specific 
expenditures (past or future) described in Attachment B (referred to herein as “the Project”); 

WHEREAS, by maintaining small and independent Inyo County businesses and their workforce, 
REVIVE Grant funds will help restore vital and valuable Inyo County Businesses, thereby serving a public 
purpose;
 

NOW, THEREFORE, County and Applicant, in consideration of the mutual benefits, promises, 
covenants, terms, and conditions hereinafter contained, do agree as follows:

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. BACKGROUND FUNDING INFORMATION     

Funds for this program are contingent on Inyo County’s receipt of Federal Funds provided by The 
Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security (CARES) Act that was established on March 27, 2020. These 
funds are required to be used for certain authorized expenditures incurred due to the COVID-19 public health 
emergency, including economic support in the form of grants to small businesses for costs of business 
interruption. Qualified expenditures made from March 1, 2020 through December 30, 2020 are eligible for 
grant funding. 

2. FUNDING AND FUNDING LIMITATIONS.

A.  Use of Funds. 

1. Grant funds shall only be used for the approved expenditures described in Attachment B 
(“the Project”) and in compliance with the Grant Guidelines as approved by the Board of Supervisors, the 
Grant Administration Committee, and/or the Inyo County CAO, which are incorporated herein by this 
reference.  Grant funds can only be used for approved expenditures between March 1, 2020, and 
December 30, 2020; any Grant funds remaining after such expenditures must be returned to the County.  
The Project shall be deemed completed when all Grant Funds have been spent by Applicant or on 
December 31, 2020, whichever occurs first.   Applicant understands that the County provides no 
warrantee on any purchases of goods or services made with grant funds.



County of Inyo Standard Contract -  No. 159 (modified)
(Grant award contract – REVIVE Grant Program)

Page 2 of 11
08/11/2020

2. Applicants awarded grants must remain open at least 30 days after receiving 
grant funding, or reopen within 30 days of Governor’s announcement to lift closure orders; 
otherwise, the business must return the Grant funds.

3. APPLICANT’S CERTIFICATIONS. 

Applicant made various representations about itself to the County in its Grant Application 
(Attachment A), upon which the County has relied in deciding to award funding.  Applicant certifies and 
warrants that each and every such representation was true and shall remain true during the term of this 
Agreement.  Any change in such a representation during the term of this Agreement shall be immediately 
reported to the County.  The County reserves the discretion and right to modify or revoke its grant award 
in light of any such change.  Furthermore, Applicant does hereby certify that is has fully complied with all 
state and local health orders, requirements, and guidances applicable to its business (including those 
issued in the past as well as those currently in effect) and will continue to do so (including any future 
health orders, requirements, or guidances).

4. TERM.   

The term of this Agreement shall be from ___________________________________________, to 
January 31, 2021, unless sooner terminated as provided below.

5. PAYMENT TO APPLICANT.

A. Grant Award.   County agrees to pay, as set forth below, a sum not to exceed 
$__________________________________________, (Grant Award) to Applicant for the purpose of 
providing relief from economic loss due to COVID-19 for approved uses as described in Attachment B.

B. No Additional Consideration.   Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, Applicant 
shall not be entitled to, nor receive, from County, any additional consideration. 

C. Limit Upon Amount Payable Under Agreement.   The total sum of all payments made by the 
County to Applicant under this Agreement shall not exceed $______________________________________ 
Dollars  and _____________________________ cents 
$________________________________________) (hereinafter referred to as "contract limit").  County 
expressly reserves the right to deny any payment or reimbursement requested by Applicant which is in 
excess of the contract limit. 

D. Payment. 
 

1. Upon the County and Applicant executing this contract, the Applicant will within 30 calendar 
days receive 100% of the amount of their Grant Award; provided, however, that Applicant still meets all 
eligibility requirements specified in the Grant Guidelines and Application.

2. Within 30 days of completion of the project (see Section 2(A)(1) above), the Applicant will 
provide the County a Written Final Report describing how the grant funds were spent and the amount of any 
remaining funds (which will be returned to the County).  Applicant shall also include with the final report 
invoices, paid bills and other documentation showing costs and expenses that total the grant amount spent 
by Applicant. These invoices and other documentation will be held in the office of the Inyo County 
Auditor/Controller. 

3. If the county staff and CAO determine any of the grant funds have been used for purposes 
other than those outlined in Attachment B or used in violation of applicable county regulations, state or 
federal laws or regulations, Applicant will be required to repay the full amount of the grant. 

4.    Applicant shall indemnify and hold County harmless from any liability or damage resulting 
from any failure to make, withholding of, or delay in making payments. 

5.    Applicant agrees to abide by all laws, regulations and requirements applicable to the 
expenditure of County Funds, including, but not limited to, the audit of the expenditure of these funds for 



County of Inyo Standard Contract -  No. 159 (modified)
(Grant award contract – REVIVE Grant Program)

Page 3 of 11
08/11/2020

compliance with such laws, regulations, and requirements, including compliance with all labor laws and 
regulations pertinent to public funds, and further, to assure compliance with the anti-discrimination provisions 
of the law, including County Ordinances. Grant expenditure records are subject to audit for five years from 
the date of receipt.

E. Federal and State Taxes.    

1. Except as provided in subparagraph (2) below, County will not withhold any federal or state 
income taxes or social security from any payments made by County to Applicant under the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement. 

2. County will withhold California State income taxes from payments made under this 
Agreement to a non-California resident Applicant when it is anticipated that total annual payments to 
Applicant under this Agreement will exceed one thousand four hundred ninety-nine dollars ($1,499.00). 

3. Except as set forth above, County has no obligation  to withhold any taxes or payments from 
sums paid by County to Applicant under this Agreement.  Payment of all taxes and other assessments on 
such sums is the sole responsibility of Applicant.  County has no responsibility or liability for payment of 
Applicant's taxes or assessments. 

4. The total amounts paid by County to Applicant, and taxes withheld from payments to a non-
California resident, if any, will be reported annually to the Internal Revenue Service and the California State 
Franchise Tax Board.  To facilitate this reporting, Applicant shall complete and submit to the County an 
Internal Revenue Service (IRS) Form W-9, upon executing this Agreement.

6. REQUIRED LICENSES, CERTIFICATES, AND PERMITS.

A. Any licenses, certificates, or permits required by the federal, state, county, or municipal 
governments for Applicant to lawfully operate as a business must be procured by Applicant and be valid at 
the time Applicant enters into this Agreement or as otherwise may be required.  Further, during the term of 
this Agreement, Applicant must maintain such licenses, certificates, and permits in full force and effect.  
Licenses, certificates, and permits may include, but are not limited to, professional licenses or certificates, 
and business licenses. Such licenses, certificates, and permits will be procured and maintained in force by 
Applicant at no expense to the County.  Applicant will provide County, upon execution of this Agreement, with 
evidence of current and valid licenses, certificates and permits which are required to conduct business in the 
County of Inyo.  Where there is a dispute between Applicant and County as to what licenses, certificates, and 
permits are required, County reserves the right to make such determinations for purposes of this Agreement.  

B. Applicant warrants that it is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, 
declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in covered transactions by any federal 
department or agency.  Applicant also warrants that it is not suspended or debarred from receiving 
federal funds as listed in the List of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement or Non-procurement 
Programs issued by the General Services Administration available at: http://www.sam.gov. 

7. INSURANCE.

For the duration of this agreement, applicant shall procure and maintain insurance in all 
appropriate forms and lines of coverage sufficient to fully defend and indemnify the County for any cause 
related to the use of funds provided through this grant. Applicant shall provide the County with proof of 
such insurance upon request.

8. STATUS OF APPLICANT.

All acts of Applicant, its agents, officers, employees, and volunteers, relating to the performance of 
this Agreement, shall be performed as independent contractors, and not as agents, officers, or employees of 
County.  

Applicant, by virtue of this Agreement, has no authority to bind or incur any obligation on behalf of 
County.  Applicant has no authority or responsibility to exercise any rights or power vested in the County.  No 
agent, officer, or employee of the Applicant is to be considered an employee of the County.  It is understood 

http://www.sam.gov/


County of Inyo Standard Contract -  No. 159 (modified)
(Grant award contract – REVIVE Grant Program)

Page 4 of 11
08/11/2020

by both Applicant and County that this Agreement shall not under any circumstances be construed or 
considered to create an employer-employee relationship or a joint venture.  

9. DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFICATION.

Applicant shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless County, its agents, officers, and employees, 
from and against all claims, damages, losses, judgments, liabilities, expenses, and other costs, including 
litigation costs and attorney's fees, arising out of, resulting from, or in connection with, the performance of this 
Agreement by Applicant, or Applicant's agents, officers, employees, or volunteers.  Applicant's obligation to 
defend, indemnify, and hold the County, its agents, officers, and employees harmless applies to any actual or 
alleged personal injury, death, or damage or destruction to tangible or intangible property, including the loss 
of use.  Applicant's obligation under this paragraph extends to any claim, damage, loss, liability, expense, or 
other costs which is caused in whole or in part by any act or omission of the Applicant, its agents, employees, 
volunteers, suppliers, or any one directly or indirectly employed by any of them, or anyone for whose acts or 
omissions any of them may be liable.

Applicant's obligation to defend, indemnify, and hold the County, its agents, officers and employees 
harmless under the provisions of this paragraph is not limited to, or restricted by, any requirement in this 
Agreement for Applicant to procure and maintain a policy of insurance.

10. RECORDS AND AUDIT.

A. Records.    Applicant shall prepare and maintain all records required by the various 
provisions of this Agreement, federal, state, and municipal law, ordinances, regulations, and directions.  
Applicant shall maintain these records for a minimum of five (5) years from the termination or completion of 
this Agreement.  Applicant may fulfill its obligation to maintain records as required by this paragraph by 
substitute photographs, microphotographs, or other authentic reproduction of such records.

B. Inspections and Audits.   Any authorized representative of County shall have access to any 
books, documents, papers, records, including, but not limited to, financial records of Applicant, which County 
determines to be pertinent to this Agreement, for the purposes of making audit, evaluation, examination, 
excerpts, and transcripts during the period such records are to be maintained by Applicant.  Further, County 
has the right, at all reasonable times, to audit, inspect, or otherwise evaluate the work performed or being 
performed under this Agreement and further, to submit to the County Administrative Officer a written report 
upon completion of the Project detailing the record of expenditures under this Agreement. 

11. NONDISCRIMINATION.

During the performance of this Agreement, Applicant, its agents, officers, employees and volunteers 
shall not unlawfully discriminate in violation of any federal, state, or local law, against any employee, or 
applicant for employment, or person receiving services under this Agreement, because of race, religion, 
color, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, age, or sex.  Applicant 
and its agents, officers, employees, and volunteers shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment
and Housing Act (Government Code section 12900, et seq.), and the applicable regulations promulgated 
thereunder in the California Code of Regulations.  Applicant shall also abide by the Federal Civil Rights Act of 
1964 (P.L. 88-352) and all amendments thereto, and all administrative rules and regulations issued pursuant 
to said act.

12. ASSIGNMENT.

County has relied upon the representations of Applicant as an inducement to enter into this 
Agreement.  Applicant shall not assign or subcontract this Agreement, or any part of it, without the express 
written consent of County.  Further, Applicant shall not assign any monies due or to become due under this 
Agreement without the prior written consent of County.

13. DEFAULT.



County of Inyo Standard Contract -  No. 159 (modified)
(Grant award contract – REVIVE Grant Program)

Page 5 of 11
08/11/2020

If the Applicant fails to adhere to grant guidelines and timelines, abandons or fails to proceed with the 
Project, or breaches any other term of this Agreement, then the County may declare the Applicant in default 
and terminate this Agreement upon five (5) days written notice to Applicant.

14. WAIVER OF DEFAULT.

Waiver of any default by either party to this Agreement shall not be deemed to be waiver of any 
subsequent default.  Waiver of any breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a 
waiver of any other or subsequent breach, and shall not be construed to be a modification of the terms of this 
Agreement unless this Agreement is modified as provided in paragraph Eighteen (18) below. 

15. CONFLICTS.

Applicant agrees that it has no interest, and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which 
would conflict in any manner or degree with its performance of the Project as described in this Agreement.

16. SEVERABILITY.

If any portion of this Agreement or application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be 
declared invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, or if it is found in contravention of any federal, state, or 
county statute, ordinance, or regulation, the remaining provisions of this Agreement, or the application 
thereof, shall not be invalidated thereby, and shall remain in full force and effect to the extent that the 
provisions of this Agreement are severable.

17. FUNDING LIMITATION.

The ability of County to enter this Agreement is based upon available funding from various sources.  
In the event that such funding fails, is reduced, or is modified, from one or more sources, County has the 
option to cancel, reduce, or modify this Agreement, or any of its terms within ten (10) days of its notifying
Applicant of the cancellation, reduction, or modification of available funding.  Any reduction or modification of 
this Agreement made pursuant to this provision must comply with the requirements of paragraph Eighteen 
(Amendment).

18. AMENDMENT.

This Agreement may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or subtracted from, by the mutual 
consent of the parties hereto, if such amendment or change is in written form and executed with the same 
formalities as this Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement to maintain continuity.

19. NOTICE.

Any notice, communication, amendments, additions, or deletions to this Agreement, including 
change of address of either party during the terms of this Agreement, which Applicant or County shall be 
required, or may desire, to make, shall be in writing and may be personally served, or sent by prepaid first 
class mail to, the respective parties as follows:

County of Inyo:
  County Administrative Officer                          Department
  P.O. Drawer N                                           Address
  Independence, CA 93526                                 City and State

Applicant:
                                                                              Name
                                                                              Address
                                                                              City and State



County of Inyo Standard Contract -  No. 159 (modified)
(Grant award contract – REVIVE Grant Program)

Page 6 of 11
08/11/2020

20. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.

This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties, and no representations, inducements, 
promises, or agreements otherwise between the parties not embodied herein or incorporated herein by 
reference, shall be of any force or effect.  Further, no term or provision hereof may be changed, waived, 
discharged, or terminated, unless the same be in writing executed by the parties hereto.

//// ////



County of Inyo Standard Contract -  No. 159 (modified)
(Grant award contract – REVIVE Grant Program)

Page 7 of 11
08/11/2020

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND______________________________________________________________________

FOR THE REVIVE SMALL BUSINESS GRANT AWARD

IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THIS 
                       DAY OF                                        ,                     .

COUNTY OF INYO APPLICANT

By:                                                                 By:                      
                  Signature 

Dated:__________________________________                 ______________________________________ 
Type or Print Name 

               Dated:                                          



County of Inyo Standard Contract -  No. 159 (modified)
(Grant award contract – REVIVE Grant Program)

Page 8 of 11
08/11/2020

ATTACHMENT A

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND______________________________________________________________________

FOR THE REVIVE SMALL BUSINESS GRANT AWARD

TERM:

FROM: ______________________________ TO:___________________________________

 GRANT APPLICATION:

Any grant application attached hereto is incorporated by reference, but terms contained in 
these attachments, if any, which are inconsistent with provisions of this contract will not be binding 
over terms of this contract as otherwise set forth.  Any budget contained in the attachment is merely 
an estimate of costs, and informational. 



County of Inyo Standard Contract -  No. 159 (modified)
(Grant award contract – REVIVE Grant Program)

Page 9 of 11
08/11/2020

ATTACHMENT B

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND______________________________________________________________________

FOR THE REVIVE SMALL BUSINESS GRANT AWARD

TERM:

FROM: ______________________________ TO:___________________________________

 PROJECT DESCRIPTION:

Applicant shall use its Grant Award for only the following approved expenditures: 

                                            



County of Inyo

County Administrator - Information Services
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  August 18, 2020 

FROM:  Scott Armstrong 
 
SUBJECT:  Sole-Source Contract with California Broadband Cooperative, Inc. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board: A) declare the California Broadband Cooperative, lnc. (CBC) of Vallejo, CA a sole-source 
provider of symmetrical lnternet Access Services; B) ratify and approve the corrected Service Agreement 
between the County of lnyo and the CBC for the provision of symmetrical lnternet Access Services in an amount 
not to exceed $141,200 ($20,160 annually for 7 years, paid monthly at $1,680) for the period of June 1, 2020 
through May 31, 2027, contingent upon the Board's approval of future budgets; and C) authorize the lnformation 
Services Director or Deputy Director to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
This request is to increase our existing CBC Internet bandwidth from the from 50Mbps to 100Mbps for both of our 
symmetrical Internet Access connections (one in Bishop, one in Independence). This increased bandwidth will 
support our Voice-over-lP telephone system project and the increased use of hosted applications supporting 
several County Departments. This will increase our costs for the symmetrical Internet Access connections from
$1,050 to $1,680 monthly.

ln January 2014, the County of lnyo initially entered into a Master Services Agreement and three specific service 
agreements with CBC for Internet Access services as well as for point-to-point extensions to our Count network. 
We have entered into additional service agreements since that time to further extend our County network. Each 
specific service agreement has a five-year term with two automatic, one-year extensions. 

Sole Source justification: County Purchasing Policy, Section F (lV), I (Sole Source Requests for independent 
Contractors), d) Proposed contractor has a substantial investment that would have to be duplicated at the 
County's expense by another contractor entering the field. The County network is connected to the CBC network 
with equipment and fiber-optic cabling owned by the CBC. Establishing an alternate service provider for our two 
symmetrical lnternet Access connections would be costly and quite disruptive.

The County of lnyo is a founding member of the Anchor Institution of the California Broadband Cooperative with a 
permanent seat on the CBC Governing Board.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
Your Board approved the CBC Internet Services Upgrade on May 26, 2020, but the amount approved was based 
on an incorrect cost proposal of $1600 per month.  This request includes the corrected costs of $1680 per month 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

for Internet services.  The original cost proposal did not include the 5% fees for Cost Recovery and Property 
Surcharge that were supposed to be included.
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose to not approve this request and our bandwidth will not change, resulting in congested 
Internet access and intermittent issues with VoIP connections and hosted applications.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
N/A
 
FINANCING:
The funding for the services in FY 2019-2020 is budgeted in the Board approved Information Services FY 2019-
2020 budget  (Utilities). Funding for subsequent fiscal years will be requested in the Information Services budget 
for those years.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Inyo County Internet Bandwidth Upgrades Quote
2. CBC Property Surcharge Cost Recovery Fee
3. CBC Master Agreement - Corrected
 
APPROVALS:
Lavon Sargent Created/Initiated - 8/10/2020
Darcy Ellis Approved - 8/10/2020
Scott Armstrong Approved - 8/10/2020
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 8/12/2020
Amy Shepherd Final Approval - 8/12/2020



1001 Nimitz Ave, Vallejo, CA., 94592

Quote Number: 2733484000002155013}
Inyo County Information Services
P.O. Box 477
Independence, CA, {Quotes.Billing Code}

Quote Date: May 1, 2020
Quote Type: #

Dear Scott Armstrong,

Below is your quote Inyo County_Info Services-Bish Library_Internet Upgrade for services as discussed, if the terms meet your
approval please sign and return.  Once signed this document will serve as your binding Service Agreement.  Thank you for your
business and continued support.

S.No. Product Details Quantity List Price Total
1. Internet 1000

224 N. Edwards Independence CA 93526

THIS IS AN UPGRADE FROM 50Mb to 100Mb

DOES NOT INCLUDE 5% FEES and SURCHARGES

FEES and SURCHARGES ADD $40.00

100 $ 8.00 $ 800.00

2. Internet 1000

210 Academy Bishop CA 93514

THIS IS AN UPGRADE FROM 50Mb to 100Mb

DOES NOT INCLUDE 5% FEES and SURCHARGES

FEES and SURCHARGES ADD $40.00

100 $ 8.00 $ 800.00

Sub Total $ 1,600.00
Tax $ 0.00

Adjustment $ 0.00
Grand Total $ 1,600.00

Product Installs, NRC:

Term: 5 Year

Terms and Conditions

CBC agrees to provide and Customer agrees to accept Services described above for the Service Term, MRC, and NRC (if applicable), subject to the terms and 
conditions of the CBC Master Service Agreement.  This quote is valid for the next 30 days.

Signatures



 Customer Signature CBC Signature   

 Printed Name & Title  Printed Name and Title

 Date  Date



 
 

1101 Nimitz Avenue   ·   Vallejo, CA 94592   ·   Phone (707) 551-8201   ·   Fax (707) 552-8120 
 

 

PROPERTY SURCHARGE 

A tax-related surcharge in addition to the other charges for service will apply equal to 2 percent of the 

total interstate, international and unregulated charges (including usage and non-usage) after the 

application of applicable discounts and credits, which allows the Company to recover a portion of the 

property tax that it pays to state and local jurisdictions.  Federal Universal Service Fund (FUSF) applies. 

 

COST RECOVERY FEE 

A tax related surcharge equal to 3 percent of all applicable charges, excluding Taxes, appearing on a 

Customer’s invoice will apply to interstate and international telecommunications services subject to 

direct regulation by the Federal Communications Commission as well as to Interconnected VoIP service 

charges treated as interstate under FCC rules.  This charge is being imposed to recover amounts incurred 

by the Company for regulatory fees and expenses, such as FCC regulatory fees, telecommunications 

services for the speech and hearing impaired, North American Numbering Plan administration, various 

State Public Utilities Commission (PUC) fees, various state and local business licenses, and various state 

annual regulatory fees.  Federal Universal Service Fund (FUSF) applies.  

 
 

 



.{jie6'.
?J.FFtr

callfornia bf oadband cooperaHve

Master Services Agreement for the Delivery of Telecommunications and Information Services
Between California Broadband Cooperative, Inc. and COUNTY of IIIYO (,.Customer") dated JANUARy l,

2014 (the I rAgreement")

This Agreement shall apply to and will be considered a part of any "Customer Order" signed by Customer for Services
delivered by California Broadband Cooperative, INC. ("CBa"), a California corporation rith * odce at ll0l Nimitz Ave.,
Vallejo, CA 94593. This Agreement (including the specific terms for each Service as attached) are applicable to sales oi
Service located in, originating or terminating in the United States. The use of the term "part5r" in itrls egreement includes the
named participant and its employees, agents and/or contractors.

1 DELTVERY OF SERVICE
1.1 Service[s]: Services as used in this Agreement shall mean the telecommunications and information services and /or

ancillary services described in any fully executed Exhibit. Any and all Exhibits upon full execution shall become a part
of this Agreement. The Exhibits applicable, to the extent fully executed by bo*r paii.r, are as follows:

Exhibit B
Exhibit F

Internet Access Services
Point to Point

1.2

1.3

1.4

2.1

Submission of Customer Order: To order any Service, Customer must submit to CBC a "Customer Order,', in the form
attached hereto and made as an attachment to the relevant Exhibit, speciffing the requested Service and specifiing the
duration of the requested Service ("Service Term") and any renewal periods. Wi*r tfri exception of any Cuitomir droer
made pursuant to Exhibit D, upon expiration of the Service Term, the applicable Customei Order shail renew upon the
same terms and conditions as set forth in the original Customer Order on an annual basis, not to exceed a total of two (2)
renewals, unless and until either party provides the other with sixty (60) days prior written notice of its desire to
terminate the applicable Service. CBC shall use commercially reasonable efforts io diliver the Service(s) to Customer on
the schedule set forth in the Customer Order(s).

Acceptance by CBC: Upon receipt of a Customer Order, if CBC determines (in its sole disuetion) to accept the
Customer Order in writing, CBC will become obligated to deliver the ordered Service and such Customer Ordei shall
become a part of this Agreement. With the exception of any Customer Order made pursuant to Exhibit D, if CBC has or
intends to accept the Customer Order, CBC shall issue a firm order commitment (';FOC') notification setting forth the
date upon which it will deliver tlte Service to Customer. With the exception of any Customer Order made pLsuant to
Exhibit D, Customer shall be entitled to cancel the Customer Order without any liability, penalty, or further oltgation at
any time prior to the provision by CBC of a firm order commitment.

Credit Approval and Deposits: Customer will provide CBC with credit information as reasonably requested. CBC's
acceptance of any Customer Order is subject to CBC's reasonable credit approval. Excepting a Dark Fibir IRU ordered
pursuant to Exhibit D, CBC may require Customer to pake a non-interest bearing Oepoiit (which will not exceed
Customer's estimated charges for three months' Service) as a condition to CBC's acceptance of any Customer Order, or as
a condition to CBC's continuation of Service. The deposit will be held by CBC as security for payment of Customer's
charges. When Service to Customsr is terminated, the amount of the deposit will be credited to Customer's account and
any remaining credit balance will be refunded.

SUMMARY OF GENERAL COMMERCIAL TERMS

Commencement of Billing: Upon installation and testing of the ordered Service, CBC will deliver to Customer a
Connectiorr Notice. Upon receipt of the Connection Notice, Customer shall have a period of forty-eight, (48) hours to
provide CBC with writtenacceptflrce or rejection of the Service. Unless Customer dilivers written notice oirejection to
CBC within such period, indicating that the Service is not installed in accordance with the Customer Order and
tlnctioning properly and identiffing with specificity the basis for the rejection with reasonable supporting
documentation, billing of one hundred percent (l00yo) of the Non-Recurring Charge(s) and the Monthly Recunin!
Charge(s) shall commence, regardless ofwhether Customer has procured serviies aom oitrer carriers needei to op.tuti
the Service, and regardless of whether Customer is otherwise prepared to accept delivery of the ordered Service. In the

,

California Broadband Cooperative, Inc. Page I of9 Master Service Agreement



2.2

2.3

event CBC does not receive a written acceptance or rejection of the Service within the aforementioned time frame, the
Service shall be deemed accepted ('Acceptance Date").

If a Service, other than Dark Fiber Services ordered pursuant to Exhibit D, consists of more than one circuit, then CBC
will issue a sepaxate Connection Notice for each circuit. The terms and conditions outlined in the immediately preceding
palryraph shall apply to each individual circuit when the service consists of more than one circuit. Billing-for Moves]
Adds and Changes (MACs) for existing seryices will commence on the date CBC issues a Connection Notice to the
Customer for the MAC. Payment of Invoices: Except as otherwise provided for Dark Fiber IRUs ordered pursuant to
Exhibit D, invoices axe sent monthly, in advance for Services to be provided during the upcoming month. All invoices
are due for payment within thirty (30) days of the invoice Oate. niUing for partial m-onths is proratid based on a calendar
month. Past due amounts bear interest at a rate of l.5o/o per month (or-the highest rate allowed by law, whichever is less)
and continue to accrue until paid in full. CBC shatl be entitled to recover-all costs of collection ofpast due amounts,
including without limitation, reasonable attorney,s fees.

Billing Disputes: Customer must notii/ CBC in writing of any disputed charge within fifteen (15) calendar days from the
date of Invoice' Any charge not disputed within saii rrfteln 1is; calendi day period witt 

-t. 
deemed correct and

Customer will be deemed to have waived its right to dispute the same. CBC will review any disputed charge and, as
appropriate, credit customer's account for any charge erroneously billed to customer.

Taxes and X'ees: Taxes, surcharges, fees, universal service fund charges associated with the Service, and other payments
contractual or otherwise, for the use ofpublic streets or rights ofway, whether designated as franchise fees or otherwise
are not included in CBC's charges and will be billed and paid by Customer as separate line items to the extent imposed
on a pass-through basis wltlro_ut mark-up of any kind whatsoever. Customer shall not be liable for any taxes, feis, or
other charges based upon CBC's income. CBC will not invoice Customer for federal excise taxes or (if ipplicaLle) siate
sales taxss subject to Customer providing CBC with a valid Sales Tax Exemption. Should the Customer's Sales Tax
Exemption Certificate be declined by any taxing authority Customer will be obligated to remit to CBC the sales tax
associated with the Customer's impacted service. Notwithstanding the forgoing, bgC *ilt not accept any Sales Tax
Exemption Certificate based upon Customer's resale of Dark FibeiServiceJptoiided to Customer *iihin th. States of
Missouri or Tennessee.

Regulatory and Legal Changes: In the event of any condemnation or exercise of the right of eminent domain, change in
apalicable law, regulation, decision, rule or order that materially increases the costs or other terms of delivery of Seriice,
CBC and Customer will negotiate regarding the rates to be charged to Customer to reflect such increase in cost. ln the
event that the parties are unable to reach agreement respecting new rates within thirty (30) days after CBC' delivery of a
change of law written notice, then (a) CBC may p€rss zuch increased costs through io burtome., and (b) Customei may
terminate the aflected Customer Order without termination liability by delivering written notice of termination no later
than ttrirty (30) days after the effective date ofthe rate increase.

Termination Charges: In the event that, prior to the end of the Service Term, Customer terminates Service or in the
elent that the delivery of Service is terminated due to a failure of Customer to comply with this Agreement, Customer
shall pay a termination charge equal to l00Yo of the monthly recuning charge thaf would have bJen incuned for the
Service for the months remaining on the Service Term up to the first 36 monthJ of the Service Term, Customer shall pay
a termination charge equal to 50o/o of the monthly recurring charge that would have been incurred for the Service for the
months remaining on the Service Term for months 37 through 60 of the Service Term. Customer shall pay a termination
charge equal to 25o/o of the monthly recurring charge thai would have been incurred for the Service ior the months
remaining on the Service Term for months 61 and beyond. In addition Customer will be responsible for l00o/o of any
termination charge imposed.on CBC by a third party supplier whose facilities wero contracted for by CBC in order to
provide the Customer's Services.

Service Interruptions and Delivery: CBC provides specific remedies regarding the provision and performance of
Service as set forth in Section 5 and in Exhibit D and theiame are Customer'i sole iemediis in the event of CBC, failure
to provide Service. A violation of any Service Level Agreement ("SLA") is expressly not a breach of a representation or
warranty and is not a breach or default under this Agreement. Except as otherwise provided in Exhibitb, Customer's
sole remedy for any uncured breach of this Agreement by CBC is to terminate the use of Service without penalty (except
for payment of charges for Service provided through the effective date of termination). In the event of Customer's
laterial breach of any provision of this Agreement , CBC, in addition to all other .emedie, available to it hereunder, at
law, in equity, or under any applicable tariff may terminate the provision of Service to Customer.

2.4

2.5

2.6

California Broadband Cooperative, Inc. Page2 of9 Master Service Agreement



2'7 Limitation of Liability: Notwithstanding any other provision hereofl aeither party shall be liable for any indirec!incidental' special, consequential, exemplary or punitive damages linctuoing tut not iirit.a to damages for lost profits,lost revenues or the cost of purchasing repticernent services) iising out of the performance or failure to perform underany customer order, this Agreement or the cBC Acceptable'use poricy.

2.8 DiSCIAiMET Of WATTANTiES: CBC MAKES NO WARRANTIES OR REPRESENTATIONS, E)GRESS OR IMPLIED,EITIIER IN FACT OR BY OPERATION OF LAW, OR OTHERWISE, INCLUDING WARRANTIES OFMERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE.

2'9 Force Majeure: Neither party is liable for_any failure of perfolmance nor shall any credit allowance or other remedy beextended, for any failure ofperformance due to any cause or causes beyond such party's reasonaute control, includingwithout limitation, acts of God, fre, explosion, uandalism, cable cu! aduerse weather'conditions war, revolution, civilcommotion, acts of public enemies, terrorism or national emergency, governmental action or inaction (such actsincluding without limitation any regulatory or administrative iecisions making said performance or obligationeconomically or technically unfeasible), condemnation or the exercise of rights of'eminent- domain, labor difficulties,failure of any third party- (including any other ca:rier or. supplier) to provide sErvices, facilities or equipment required forsuch performance or obligation (or any other act o-r omissibn by'said ttriro p*fy). Eith;. p.at,s invocation of this clauseshall not relieve Customer of its obligation to pay for any Services actually provided up to customer,s demarcation point.In the event cBC is unable to deliver Service iot t.u.n, (7) consecutiv. auy, 
^ a result oi any ro.c, majeure events,customer shall not be obligated to pay cBC for the affectid Service forco loog ar cgc ls *aule to deliver; provided,however, that the Service Term ofJuch service shall be extendeJ for the periid of time trrat the force majeure eventcontinues.

2'10 Assignment and Resale: customer may not assign its rights and obligations to an unrelated third party under a Customerorder without the express prior written consent of cBC.-As a conditi-on to such *tlgn*;i, lij customer shall cause thepermitted transferee or assignee to be bound (in writing) by me rates, terms and conditions, set forth herein and (ii)customer shall remain primarily liable for-the puy*.nt -or 
uil charles due under each customer order. customer shallhave the right to assign, or otherwise transfer this Agreement, in wfrore or in par! to any parent, subsidiary or affiliate ofcustomer which shall control, be under the contrJl o{ or ie *c.. .or*on control with customer, provided suchassignee assumes in writing alt of the terms and conditions of this Agreement and such Assumption is delivered to cBCprior to the effective date of such permitted assignment. any purport?o assignment ano transrer made in violation of thisSection is void' Except for Dark Fiber services*oraereo pursu'anito Exhibitb, customer may.es"1 the Service to thirdpafiy "end users", provided that Customer agrees to indemnify, defend and hold CBC harmless from claimslnuO. uguinrtCBC by such end users or by any third party_(including rittout limitation -y gou.*-.ntal authority). Further,customer agrees to obtain a1l n...ttaty-c.rtifications,'licenses, franchises, .tr."fd;y public agency havingjurisdiction over the Customer,s resale operations.

2'11 Indemnification: Each parfy shatl indemniff, defend, and hold harmless (collectively, ,.Indemni$r,,) 
the other from anyand all claims, (whether made, asserted oi threatenid;, actions, judgments, d*,ugo, riutiiiti.r, costs and expenses,including without limitation reasonable attomeys' fees,'consulrantr' rJrr *a .*p;fi;A;;iuli rurr, chims collectivelyreferred to herein as "claims") arising from or in connection with loss_or damage to tangible property, personal injury ordeath caused by such party's negligence or willful misconduct ot *y l..u.tt bi such ;rtty ;ily obligation set forth inthis Agreement' customer shall indemnift cBC from *y *J uti ctuirn, arising from'or in connection with (i) anyfraudulent, unauthorized, or unlawful use of servicg (ii) ;t irrito p*ry chim based on the operation, resale, of orconnection to the service by customer (or by any p.oott oth.t trrair c-sc or its duly authorizid ..pr"Lntutiu., iiiljClaims for libel, slander, obscenity or indecency, *o 1iu) the content or use of any transmission, including withoutlimitation (a) claims by any domestic or foreign goui;-.ntut entities seeking t6 i*pot" p"nal sanctions for thetransmission of such content; (b) claims of infringement of any third parry's copy?ght-fitent, trade secret, trademark,service mark or other intellectual groperty right ariiing from or ielated to such transmitted content or use ofthe Service inconjunction with customer premises equipment, andlc; claims by third purti., relating to such transmitted content oruse.

2'12 Governing Law:. cBC has filed or may elect or be required to file with the appropriate regulatory agency tariffsrespecting the delivery of certain Service or cBC rnuy porf u Pricing Guide. Taritr(sj *" 1o. upon filing will be deemedto be) incorporated herein by this reference and made a part hereoiind the pricing duio" r)pon'posting on cBC, websitew-ill be incorporated herein by this reference and made a part hereof. Such tariifs and/or^pric,ing Guide as are then ineffect at the time of the customer order, are to be deemeo oiniing ;pon all Service ordered by customer, and, in theevent such provisions are inconsistent with the terms of a Customer 6rder the terms set forth in the applicable tariffor thePrice Guide shall control. This Agreement shall be govemed tv, ano construed and enforced in accordance with, as

Califomia Broadband Cooperative, Inc. page 3 of 9 Master Service Agreement



2.13

2.14

2.15

2.16

2.17

lnqflcable, (i) the Communications Act of 1934, as amended and (ii) the laws of the State of Califomi4 without regard toCalifornia's conflict of law principles. Price is fixed through trre ferm indicateJ ; ;; s;;;; afrr-.nt. If price is
changed during the contract term customer may terminate wiihout penalty.

Default: In addition to any other basis for suspension or termination of Service as set forth in this Agreement, each of thefollowing events shall constifute an event ofdefault:

a) Except as otherwise indicated in Exhibit D for Dark Fiber Services, the failure of Customer to make any payment
required pursuant to this Agreement hereof within thilty, (30) days of the date of invoice

b) A court or govemmental authg|tl ofcompetentjurisdiction shall enter an order appointing a custodian, receiver,
trustee, intervener, or other officer with similar powers with respect to a party or-with reslect to any substantiai
part.ofits proporty, or constituting an order for reliefor approving a petition in bankruptcy or insolvency law of
any jurisdiction, or ordering the dissolutioq winding up, oi iiquioalion of either party, oi ir'*y such petition shall
be filed against a parly and shall not be dismissed witirin sixtyiO0) days thereafter

c) The failure of a party to carry and maintain insurance in compliance with the provisions of any particular Exhibit

d) The failure ofa party to perform or observe any material covenant or agreement to be performed or observed by it
hereunder, and such failwe shall continue un-remedied for a period orinirty (30) days after *ritt.n notice given to
the defaulting party; provided, however, that where such failure cannot reasonably be cured within such10-day
period, if the defaulting party shall proceed promptly to cure the same and prosecutl such cure with due diligenci
the time for curing such breach shall be e"tenoea ror such period of time as may be necessary to complete such
curing up to a maximum cure period of sixty (60) days

e) The violation of the CBC Acceptable Use policy.

Authority to Bind: Each party represents to the other that it has full corporate power and authority to execute and deliver
this Agreement and to consummate the transactions,contemplated hereby. The execution and delivery of this Agreement
and the consummation ofthe transactions contemplated hereby have been duly and validly authorized by all necessary
corporate action.

Entire Agreement: This Agreemen! and any Exhibits and Customer Orders attached hereto or to be attached hereto, and
any-documents incorporated by reference herein, constitute the entire agreement between the parties hereto with rospect
to the subject matter hereof and supersede any and all prior negotiatiois, understandingr, *d ug..r*ents with respect
hereto, whether oral or written, and ihe terms oi any purchase orJer issued in connection rim trri, Lgreement.

Order of Precedence: In the event of a conflict between the terms and conditions of this Agreement and any Exhibit
attached hereto, the terms and conditions of the Exhibit shall control, but only to the extent of-any such conflict. In the
event of a conllict between the terms and conditions of this Agreement, attached Exhibit, and/ir any Customer order
attached hereto, the terms and conditions of the Customer order ihall control, but only to thi extent of any such conflict.

Confidentialifr: Th9 parties_ agree that they shall not publish, communicate, disclose or cause to be published,
communicated, or disclosed in any manner whatsoever or to any person whatsoever, this Agreement and any related
Customer order, with the exception that the parties may disclose this Agreement and any rJated Customer order as
necessary to fuIfilI the terms and obligations set forth herein and to their respective attomeys, accountants, auditors,
regulators or to comply with law. In addition, under federal law Customer has the right to, and CBC has the obiigation toprotect, the confidentiality of certain Customer Proprietary Network Information 1"C-tNI"j such as the Services Customer
is using, how Customer uses them and related billing information. In order to ensure that customer is able to benefit from
additional telecommunications services provided ty Cec and its afiiliates Customer authorizes CBC and its affiliates toutilize Customer's CPNI for the purpose of providing the Customer with information on such additional
telecommunications services. Customer understandithat the| may withhold such consent or withdraw this authorizationat.lly lgne by notifuing CBC in writing via the fax number provided in section 6. I of this Agreement, and that suchwithholding or withdrawal of consent will not affect the piovision of any services to whicl the customer already
subscribes but may result in customer no longer being abie to benefit from additional telecommunications servicesprovided by CBC or its affiliates.

Califomia Broadband Cooperative, Inc. Page 4 of9 Master Service Agreement



2.21

2.18

2.19

2.20

2.22

2.23

2.24

severability: In the event any 
lerm ofthis Agreement shall be held invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in whole or in par!neither the validity of the-remaining part of sich tcrm nor the validity of the remaining tenns of this Agreement shall inany way be affected thereby.

Amendments: This Agreement may be amended only by awritten instrument executed by the parties.

waiver: No failure to exercise and no delay in exercising, on tre part of either party hereto, any right, power, or privilegehereunder shall operate as a waiver thereof, except as exfressly provided herein.

Relationship to Parties: The parties hereto understand an d agreethat this Agreement does not create ajoint venture orpartnership between the parties and does not make cBC, on tf,e one ttu"J, *? customer on the other hand, an agont orlegal representative of each other f91 any pur?ose whatsoever. n; t*tt hffi is granted by this Agreemont any right orauthority to assume or create any obligaiion or responsibility, .*pr.r, o. i*pii.a, on berrar or o. in tjie name of any otherparty hereto, or to bind any other party hereto in any manner whatsoever.

Counterparts: This Agreement may be executed in two ormore countelparts, each of which shall be deemed an original,but all of which together shall consiitute one and the same instrument. thi, Ag...,n.nt is the joint work product of bothparties, and in the event of ambiguity no presumption shall b. ilp;;;l-"gainst any party by reason of documentpreparation,

Facsimile Signatures: This Agreement may be executed and clelivered by facsimile or other electronic means and uponsuch delivery the signature wili be deemed io have the same effect as if trre original signature had been delivered to bothparties. i

survival: Sections 2'4,2'6'2.9,2.11-2'13,2.15,2.17 3.1-3.3, 4.1 and4.4 shall survive termination or expiration of thisAgreement.

3 ACCEPTABLEUSE&CONTENT

3.t

3.2

3.3

Fraudulent use of services:. customer 
^is- 

respoasible for all charges attributable to customer incurred respectingService, even if incurred as the result of fraudulent or unauthorize? 
"* "r 

service by a representative, employee,contractor, agent or customer of the customer or by.any trriro party. Service is available for lawful use only.Notwithstanding any other 
-provision 

hereof, cBC may disctntinue s.*i., in the event that it determines, in its solereasonable discretion, that Service is being used for any fraudulenq unauthorized or unlawful purp;;;, that use of theservice violates cBC' AtrP or the AtlP--of any of cdc' internet's.rvi.es providers, that customer,s use thereof isinterfering with any other person, or that customer shall have used, uou..tir.o, transmitted or otherwise made availableany software program, product or service whose function violates tr" csC;up, including out not iimiieo to, facilitatingthe sending of Unsoricited commerciar E-mail ("ucE", also known * spaio.

contents of communications: cBC shall have no liability or responsibility for the content of any communicationstransmitted via the service, or for customer's use thereof. io trt. .itrnt trt. 
-service 

is used for access to the Intemet,cBC provides customer only with access to its backbone network that servLs as a transmission conduit through whichcustomer may connect its data seryers to the Internet. cBC does not operate, process or conhol the information,services' opinions or other content of the customer's data servers or the information, services, opinions or other contentof the Intemet; nor does 
9Bc^3qu.g. in. any protocol or information pr"*rri"g or conversion in connection therewith.customer acknowledges that cBC ii acting-as a bandwidth llrenneddt;;;iding transport to multiple intemet accessproviders' Should any internet ac.ess p.oiider elect to block Customer's address space or access to the intranet, suchdispute does not constitute a breach uy Cac of its obligatio* ,1tao trtir elrr"-rnt and the resolution of such disputes isthe sole and exclusive responsibility of customer. ctitomer srral aennJ]inoemnify ano rrora Cgc-narmtess from anyand all claims (including itaims ty governmentai entities seeking; irnp;; ;.nal sanctions) related to such content orfor claims-by third parties relating iotustomer's use of service. customer agiees that it shall make no claim whatsoeveragainst cBC relating to, a) the content of the Internet, or b) respecting any information, produc! service or softwareordered through or provided by virtue of the Internet, or c) the btoctilg of customer,s address space or customer,saccess to the intemet.

Acceptable Use Policy: Except for Dark Fiber Services ordered pursuant to Exhibit D, to the extent the service is usedfor access to the Intemet' cuitomer agrees to be bound by and conform to the published cBC Acceptable use policy

Califomia Broadband Cooperative, [nc. Page 5 of9 Master Service Agreement



("A[IP")' In the event of Customer's breach of the CBC AtlP, in addition to all other remedies available to it hereunder,
1t law o1 in equrty, or under_ any applicable tariff, may suspend or terminate the provision of service to customer.
Suspension of service due to Customer violation of the iBC ALIP shall not in any way abrogate Customer,s obligations
under this Agreement' CBC may from time to time amend its Acceptable Use Poiicy. if cust-o*". elects not to be bound

fr the nublished Acceptable Use Policy, Customer may terminate ihe Service and pay the termination charges set forth
nerern.

4 CUSTOMEROBLIGATIONS

4.1

4.2

4.3

Customer obligations for CBC Su_pplied Equipment: Customer provides and bears the cost for space and racks (needs
to be bolted down) to house CBC Supplied eleCtronic equipment, connector panels, splice boxes etc. (.,CBC SuppliedEquipment"). Customer. will be responsible for providing- and maintaining, at its own expensg the level of power,
heating and air conditioning necessary to operate tire CBC iuppried nquipm'ent and to maintain ttre proper environment
for all CBC Supplied Equipment. In the event Customer fails to do ,o, b*torn.. shall reimburse CBC for the actual cost
of repairing or replacing any CBC Supplied Equipment damaged or destroyed as a result of Customer,s failure.

9*t9!J T olherwise agreed, title to all CBC Supplied Equipment shall remain with cBC. cBC will provide and maintain
the CBC Supplied Equipment in good working order.- iustomer shall not, and shall not permit others to, rearange,
disconnect, remove' and attempt to repair, or otherwise tamper with any ieC supplied Equipment without the prior
written consent of CBC. Tle 

9-BC supptea Equipment shall not be used for any purpose other than that for which CBCprovides them. Customer shall not take any aition that causes the imposition of *y ti"n or encumbrance on the CBC
Supplied Equipment. In no event will CBi be liable to Customer or *y otfr.. person for intemrption of Service or forany other loss, cost or damage caused or related to improper ur. o, rnuint.nance of the CBC Supplied Equipment bycustomer o1 third parties provided access to the cBC supptea Equipment by customer in violation of this Agreement.
customer shall reimburse cBC for any damages incurred as a resuli thereof. 

'

Customer agrees (which agreement shall survive the expiration, termination or cancellation of this Agreement or of any
Customer order) to allow CBC to remove the CBC Supplied bquipment from the Customer faciliti after terminatiog
expiration or cancellation of the Service Term; or during ihe service Term, for repair, replacement or otherwise as CBCmay determine is necessary or desirable, but CBC will uie commercially reasonabG effoG to minimize disruptions to theService caused thereby.

Customer obligations for CBC x'iber Connection(s): Customer is responsible for securing Building Entrance
agreement(s) to permit CBC to construct a fiber connection from the CBC network to inside the Cuitomer's ficility or in
the altemative where the CBC demarcation point is located outside of the Customer building, Customer is responsible forconnectivity to the cBC demarcation point. customer is responsible for the installation and all costs for the Inside plant
("ISP") wiring from customer's Premise Equipment (*cPE'i to the cBC point of demarcation including all connections
b91y9en the CBC Supplied Equipment to the-defined point of interconnection. Customer will be responsible for anyadditional costs that may be incuned by CBC due to Cuitomer delay in completing ISp work ontime.

Customer obligations for CBC Access to Customer's Facility: As a condition to CBC's obligation to provide andmaintain the Service hereunder,_customer shall provide cBC 24 k z x ros access to the Customei facility to the extent
leasolallr- defermined by CBC for the instaliation, inspection and scheduled or emergency maintenance of CBCsupplied Equipment. CBC shall notifr Customer two 

-(2) 
business days in advance 

"or *y relurarry scheduled
maintenance that will require access to the Customer facility. Customer #[ provide a safe place to work and complywith-all laws and regulations regarding the working conditions at the customer facility. To facilitate CBC access fort$ul* and emergency service, Customer shall provide CBC in Section 6.2 of this Agreement the contact name withtelephone numbers where the contact can be reached by CBC on a 24 x 7 x 365 uasis. tt is the obligation of theCustomer to keep this contact information up to date. 

-CBC 
Supplied Equipment may be used to service other CBC

customers.

4.4 Customer Obligations for Customer Supplied Equipment CBC may install certain Customer-provided
communications equipment upon installation 

-of 
Service, but CBC shall not be responsible for the operation ormaintenance of any Customer-provided communication equipment, CBC undertakes no obligations and accepts nol]ability for the configuration, managemen! performance or any other issue relating to Custimer,s routers or other

Customer-provided equipment used for access to or the exchange of t umr in connection with the Service.

Califomia Broadband Cooperative, Inc. Page 6 of9 Master Service Agreement



4.5

4.6

Publicity a1{],9so, Usage: Customer grants to CBC at CBC's discretion: the ability to (a) identiff the Customer as a
c..us!ome,r of CBC, (b) hyperlink fuq * appropriate area within CBC's web site to ihe cuitomer's trome page; and (c)
display the Customer's logo on the CBC wil site (in accordance with the Customer's guidelines) for the use of such
mark.

Non Solicitation: During any Service Term under this Agreement and any subsequent renewal period, and for a period
of two (2) years thereafter, each party agees not to sofiJig accept soliciLtion from, offer employment to or hire any
employee of the other parfy or its affiliates. Each party fu.tlt.i ugt .r not to solici! u...pt ,oii.itution from, offer
employment to or hire any former employee of the othir party or its ahfiates who at the time oisolicitation, offer or hire
has not been severed from the employerparty or its afiiiiates for a minimum of twelve (12) months. In the event of abreach of this provision by eitheiparty the non-breaching party may seek any and alliemedies available at law andequity, including specific performance and injunctive reliefiwithout need to posia tond or other security.

5 CBC OBLIGATIONS

5.1

5.2

5.3

General cBC obligations: CBC will provide a design of the overall network with agreement on interface type, point ofcustomer demarcation, equipment placement, and s.riric. arr*ge*ents (cI& WANJ etc.).

cBC provides equipment as specified in the attached Exhibit$). CBC will configure and provision all agreed to network
service parameters. cBC will maintain in good working oraii ttre cBC suppfel Equipment to be in conformance with
the specific Service Level Agreements (SLAs) for a particular Service ur rp".in.a in the attached exhibits. In the event itis determined that any Service outage or customer alaj:T was caused by the act or omission of Customer, its agents,
employees or contractors, then Customer shall pay CBC for its costs incuneA in responding to such Service outage orCustomer alarm.

CBC obligations as a Result of a Service outage or SLA Violations: After receiving notification of the Service
outage or a SLA violation, cBC shall restore the Sei,rice on its failed systsm as follows:

(i) Electronic Restoration.
For Services other than Dark Fiber Services ordered pursuant to Exhibit D, in the event of an electronic
failure, CBC shall use commercially reasonable efforti to restore Service to the aflected electronics within
four (4) hours ofarrival ofmaintenance personnel on site.

(ii) CBC X'iber Network Restoration.
In the event of a failure of the CBC fiber optic network, CBC shall begin restoral within four (4) hours after
CBC is notified about the fiber optic network outage.

(iii) Emergency Reconliguration.
For Services other than Dark Fiber Services ordered pursuant to Exhibit D, if the Customer,s network
architecture a1O cep hT 4. capability to support route reconfiguration to maintain Service, CBC willprovide reconfiguration if other msans of restoral will not restore Service within the time frames stated in
subparagraph (i) and (ii) above. Reconfigl,mllon will begin one (l) hour after the need to reconfigure is
determined. CBC shall maintain a twenty-lour (24) hours i duy, s.u.n, (7) days a week point-of-contact for
Customer to report to CBC system troubles.

Service outage and SLA Violation Exclusions: All calculations of Service outage or SLA Violation duration do not
include periods of service intemrption resulting in whole or in part from on. or more the following causes:

' Any act or omission on the part of the Customer, its contractors, agents or vendors, including, but not
limited to any violation of the CBC AUP, or any refusal to release the Service to CgC or its ;gents for
maintenance, t-"ttlng o-. repllr, or any period in which CBC or its agents are not given access to the Service
facility at the site(s) where the Customir's Service terminates.

r The Customer's applications, equipmenl or facilities including any customer third party facilities or
equipment.

r CBC or Customer'scheduled maintenance, or in the event Customer's Order includes third party facilities,
the third parly provider's scheduled maintenance.

California Broadband Cooperative, Inc. PageT of9 Master Service Agreement



r Labor strikes

o service outages athibutable to the instalation ofa new circuit.

r Failure or malfunction of third party circuits or alternate access ilrangements.

5'4 credit Allowances and customer Remedies for service outages or sLA violation: In the event that cBC is unableto restore a portion of the Service as required hereunder, o. ii th" event of a Service Outage or a SLA Violation,
Customer shall be entitled to a credit against the monthly recuning charges as specified in the auached Exhibits. Thecumulative total of credits for a particular month will noi exceed t"oox ortrre toiat m.c for the impacted Service(s) forthe particular month in which the Service outage or sLA violation occurs.

A service outage or a SLA violation begins when CBC is notified or becomes aware of the service outage or SLAviolation, whichever occurs flrst' A Service outage or a SLA viotation ends when the affected line and/or associatedCBC Supplied Equipment is operational, subtractin! any delay time associated with CBC or its agent,s inability to accessthe equipment at the customer's site. If the cusiomi. ..po.tr i.*ices or a circuit to be inoperative but declines torelease it for testing and repair, it is considered to be impaired, but shall not be deemed a service outage or a SLAViolation.

(A) Credit Allowances do not apply to Service outages and SLA Violations caused by:

i' The acts or omissions of Customer and/or end user or its agents including, but not limited to, any violation
of the CBC AUp

ii. Failure of power

iii' Failure or malfunction of non-CBC equipment or systems, third party circuits or alternate access
arrangements.

iv. circumstances or causes beyond the control of cBC or its agents;

v' During any period in which CBC or its agents are not given access to the Service facility at the Customer
site(s) where the CBC Service terminates;

vi' A planned service outage unscheduled emergency maintenance or scheduled maintenance by CBC or anythird party facility provider (alteration or implementation as described herein, which last more than 30
days).

@) Customer must request a Credit Allowance for a Service outage and/or a SLA Violation within thirty, (30) days' 
after the service outage or SLA violation occurs or *t ;fu. for a credit Allowance is waived. unlessotherwise specifically stated, Service Outages and SLA Violations are not aggregated for purposes ofdetermining
the Credit Allowance.

(c) Service outage and SLA violation Credit Allowances are calculated according to the Exhibit for the particular
Service.

6 NOTICES, MAINTENAT\CE CONTACT AIID SIGNATT]RES6'1 Notices: AII notices and communications concerning this Agreement shall be in writing and addressed as follows:If to CBC: If to Customer:

Califomia Broadband Cooperative, Inc.
ll0l NimitzAvenue
Vallejo, CA 94592
Attn: Chief Executive Officer

CustomerName: Services
Address 1: P.O. Box 477

2:

Code:93526CA ZioCity. State:
Attention: Title: Director
Attention Name:
Fax:760-872-2712

Califomia Broadband Cooperative, Inc. Page 8 of9 Master Service Agreement



Invoices shall be delivered to Customer at:

Customer Name: Inyo CounW Information
Address l: P.O. Drawet 477
Address 2
City, State: Independence CA ZipCode:93526
Attention: Title:
AttentionName

Or at such other address as may be designated in writing to the other party. Unless otherwise provided herein, notices
shall be sent by certified U.S. Mail, return receipt requested or by commercial ovemight deliviry service, and shall be
deemed delivered: if sent by-U.S. Mail, three (3) days after dbposit; or, if sent by commercial overnight delivery
service, one (1) business day after deposit.

Maintenance Contact: As specified in Section 4.3,1o facilitate CBC access to Customer facilities on a24X7X365
basis Customer has designated the following individual as its point of contact for all communications relating to
scheduled and emergency maintenance:

Contact Name: Brandon Shults

Phone Number: 760-878-03 t4
Cell Phone Number: 7 60-937 -1032

E-Mail Address: bshults@inyocounty.us

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the day and year first above written.

Pucci

6.2

Company:
Date:

Chairperson, Board of Supervisors
Inyo County

I_2T-L4

Name: Robert Volker
Title: CEO
Company: California Broadband Cooperative,
Inc.
Date:

California Broadband Cooperative, Inc. Page 9 of9 Master Service Agreement



california bf o-dbtndcooperative

MSA for Telecommunications Services
Exhibit B

CBC lnternet Access Services

1 Service Definition

1'1 CBC lnternet Access Service will provide a connection with a Bandwidth Profile, Committed lnformation Rate (ClR) from 1
Mb to 1'000 Mb to the lnternet backbone. Each circuit will have a total Bandwidth Profile, which indicates its miximirm data
throughput. Gustomer may request a change to the Bandwidth Profile at any time provided it does not exceed the physical
line rate of the port 

91. .ry!'gh th€ circuit is provisioned (e.g. customer coud not hlve a 1S0 Mbps Bandwidth profile on a
circuit delivered via 1 0/1 00BaseT connection).

1.2 CBC Ethernet lnternet Access (ElA) and T1 lnternet Access Services are defined as follows:

Ethernet lnternet Access (ElA): Available at any CIR from 3 Mb to i,ooo Mb. lnternet access at a specified
bandwidth is offered to the Customer in mutually agreeable increments. Handoff to the Customer for EIA Service is
with a mutually agreed to native Ethernet lnterface. EIA service is offered by CBC at any CBC On-Net location (With
and Without Transport) and/or an Off-Net location established by CBC utiliiing Type Il iccess circuits. EIA Service
includes management of one Customer Domain Name. Customei is assigned o-ne (iy to eight (g) lp Addresses.

EIA has two different service options: Standard and Burstable:

Standard EIA Service is offered with Service Level Agreements that cover Committed lnformation Rate, Layer 2
and Layer 3 Latency, Jitter and Packet Loss. There are different sets of Service Levels for Latency, jittei anO
Packet Loss depending on if service is delivered On-Net versus Off-Net with Type ll access facilities.

Burstable EIA Service provides an EIA Service with a Committed lnformation Rate (ClR) and offers the
opportunity to use additional bandwidth beyond the ClR. Customer may burst their usage ai any time provided it
does not exceed the contracted Peak lnformation Rate (PlR) and the fhysical line ratiof the iort on which the
circuit is provisioned (e.9. Customer cannot burst beyond'100 Mb'on a circuit delivered via 1OllOOBaseT
connection). Service is "Best Effort" for bandwidth above the agreed to ClR. CBC will measure bandwidth usage,
in five minute intervals, for each point of connection betweln the customer and the CBC Network in tilo
categories: incoming and outgoing. At the end of each month, all data samples in each category will be sorted
from highest to lowest and the top five per.cent (5%) of measurements will be discarded. The category with the
lowest value at the ninety-five percent (95%) will be discarded. The remaining data sample will theri be used for
billing purposes. The bandwidth at 95% is then subtracted from the CtR. ltre difference in bandwidth is the
amount billed for the month at the Burstable per Mb lP rate. Burstable Bandwidth is Best Effort. The service up to
the clR is offered with Service Levels that cover Commifted lnformation Rate, Layer 2 and Layer 3 Latency, Jitter
and Packet Loss.

Tl lnternet Access Service: Tl lnternet Access Service provides a CIR of 1.544 Mb delivered over a single DS1 circuit.
Handoff to the customer is with a single DSI connection. iustomer may optionally procure from CBC equi-pment tnit wiir
convert the handoff to a Native Ethernet lnterface. T1 lnternet Access-Service is dffered with Service Levels that cover
Committed lnformation Rate, Layer 2 and Layer 3 Latency, Jitter and Packet Loss. T1 lnternet Access Service includes
management of one Customer Domain Name. Customer is assigned one (1) to eight (8) lp Addresses.

Optional lnternet Access Services: Customer may purchase the following optional services from CBC:

o DNS Management: Management of additional Customer Domain Names

r Email Services: Provision of E-mail service with user mailboxes; including anti-SpAM and virus checking
services and additional-mail storage oapacity.

o Additional lP Addresses: Assignment of additional lp addresses

' BGP Peering: Border Gateway Protocol peering services per the CBC BGP Policy detailed in section 1.6
of this Exhibit.

. Web Hosting Services

California Broadband Cooperative, lnc. Page I of4 Exhibit B/Enterprise - January l, 2014



1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

All of the above service types described in Section 1 .2 are referred herein as ,,service[s]".

Customer and CBC will execute a separate Customer Order as an attachment to Exhibit B for every separate Service to be
ordered by the Customer.

The lP Addressees assigned to the Customer remain.the property of CBG and are for use by the customer during the term
of the applicable service. At the conclusion of the servibe ihe ip Rddresses may be reasiigned uv Cec at cBC's sole
discretion.

ln order to establish a BGP peering session with CBC, Customer must meet the following requirements:

3 CBC SLAs and Service Outage Gredits for lnternet Access Service Outages

The following table details the service Level Agreements for lnternet Access service:

Service Level Aqreement SLA Value

Service with Fiber Lateral or Fiber Lateral 99.99%

with Diverse Lateral 99.999%

2 Packet Loss 1o/o

2 Less msec

2

3 Service for Round for North

Lessthan 10msec

Less than 60 msec

4 Hours

r Customer must be multi-homed (two or more lnternet connections)o Customer must have an autonomous system number (ASN).r Customer's router must support BGp4.r Customer must work with CBC in advance of the service implementation to determine if the customer will
receive a default route to the lnternet, partial or full lnternet routes which are both provided Oy CeC lnternet
Access suppliers.

r lf Customer is to receive partial or full lnternet routes from CBC, Customer router must be capable and
configured to contain these additional routes and the associated overhead.o Customer must provide CBC (using associated CBC forms) with all the net-blocks Customer wishes to
announce to the lnternet.

r Customer should include outbound route filtering as part of their configuration, to help prevent improper route
announcements.

r Customer requesting a change from their currently configured routing protocol, bandwidth and future
adds/moves/changes require an "ElA Customer Configuration dhange nequisi rorm" io ue completeo.

2 customer Remedy for Ghronic lnternet Access service outage
lflhree (3) or more Service outages in excess of thirty (30) minutes occur in a contiguous forty-five (45) day period, and the cause
of the.Service Oulage is determined to be in CBC' fib-eropiic network or CBc Suppiieo Equipment, iucn Service will be deemed achronic Trouble service, customer may, with thirty (3oj day notice disconnect'the affeited circuit, as described in this Exhibit
without incurring Termination Charges.

Pe-r the terms specified in Paragraph 5.4 of Master Services Agreement for the Delivery of Telecommunications andlnformation services, the Service Outage Credit per lnternet Access Service Circuit is calculated iccording to following taOre. -

California Broadband Cooperative, lnc. Page 2 of 4 Exhibit B/Enterprise - January 1, 2014



Service Outaqe Duration Credit per Circuit
or None

15 Minutes 2%of
Each 2 Hour period above 1 Hour An additional 3% of the CBC monthty reorrringr.narge

for the circuit, capped at 75o/o of the CBC monthly
recurring charge for any single Service Outage and
cumulatively 100o/o ol the CBC monthly recurring
charge for all Service Outages to that same circuit in
any month

Outage Gredit for Service Exclusively Utilizing CBC Owned Fiber Facilities with a Single Fiber Optic Laterat or
DualFiber Lateral

Outage Gredit for Service Excl CBG Owned Fiber Facilities with Diverse Fiber Optic Lateral

Credit for Packet Loss and Jitter: lf the actual monthly average packet delivery on the CBC lnternet Access Service fails to meet
the sLA for Layer 2 Packet Loss and Layer 2 Jitter, cBC will cr;ditthe customeifive per cent ts*l oitne monthly recurring charge
for the applicable month for the affected service.

4 Outage Credits for Internet Access Services Utilizing Third Party Facilities:

To the extent the Customer's Order includes the use of third party facilities, Customer acknowledges that CBC is purchasing
such facilities, on custome/s behalf, from a-third party provider. NonetheJess CBC will diligenfly riorf win Customer and thethird party provider to minimize the impact of any service outage on customer and, to the extEnt witnin the control of CBC. GBC'
NOC will provide status updates to Customer as and when rec6ived ftom the third party provider.

Service Outage
Duration Credit per Gircuit

All Outages CBC shall pass through to Customer a proportionate share of any Outage
Credits CBC receives from the Third party Facilities provid'er.

5 Maintenance of Third party Facilities

To the extent that the Customer's Order includes the use of facilities from a third party supplier, the Customer acknowledges thatmaintenance of such facilities is solely the responsibility of the third party supplidr ana liit ceC witt frovide such maintenance
notice as it receives, if at all,.from the underlying third pirty supplier. busiomei strail not be entiged tJ i-ny Outage Creoiis ioi an,outage resulting from such third party maintenance.

6 Facsimile Signatures
This Exhibit and all subseq.uent Orders may be executed and delivered by facsimile and upon such delivery the facsimile
signature will be deemed to have the same effect as if the original signature hld been delivered tJ botn p"rti"".

Service Outage Duration Credit per Gircuit
15 Minutes or Less None

15 Minutes 2
Each 2 Hourperiod above 1 Hour An additional 3.5o/o ol the CBC monthly recuiring

charge for the circuit, capped at 75% of the CBC
monthly recuning charge for any single Service
Outage and cumulatively 100% of the CBC monthly
recurring charge for all Service Outages to that same
circuit in any month

Galifornia Broadband Cooperative, lnc. Page 3 of4 Exhibit B/Enterprise - January l, 2014



By:
Title:
Company:

7 Gustomer Signature and CBC Acceptance

Pucck
irperson, Board of Supervisors
Inyo County

Dated: / -!/-/*

BY: Robert Volker
Title: CEO
Company: California Broadband Cooperative, lnc.

Dated

California Broadband Cooperative, Inc. Page 4 of 4 Exhibit B/Enterprise - January 1, 2014



calltornra ttroadblnd cooperatrve

MSA for Telecommunications and lnformation Seruices
Exhibit F

Point to Point

I Service Definition

1.1 General Service Definition
lnter-City Private Line Service (the "Service") provides Point-to-Point connectivity between city pairs (for example, Las Vegas - Salt
Lake City) on the CBC Network. Service is available with either native Ethernet or TDM based transport. Availability will be
confirmed with Customer at the time of order.

Customer will execute a separate Customer Order as an attachment to Exhibit G for every separate Service to be ordered by the
Customer.

The Service is further subdivided between "POP-to-POP", "POP-to-Premise" and "Premise-to-Premise" Service categories.
Gustomer's agreement with the selection between these three options shall be indicated on the Customer Order Form.

POP-Io-POP service is defined as intercity transport between two CBC POPs. Hand-off between CBC and the Customer
is at the demarcation point agreeable to CBC within the facilities housing the CBG POPs. The Customer is responsible
for establishing both interconnections and all third parties cross-connect fees for the interconnection.

POP-to-Premise service is defined as intercity transport between one CBC POP in one city, and a location either On-Net
or Off-Net to the CBC metropolitan network in the second city. Hand-off between CBC and the Customer is at a
demarcation point agreeable to CBC within the facilities housing the CBC POP. The Customer is responsible for
establishing the interconnection and all third parties cross-connect fees for the interconnection. Hand-off at the Premise
location is defined by CBC in the Customer Order.

Premise to Premise service is defined as intercity transport between two locations either On-Net or Off-Net to the CBC
metropolitan network in both cities. Hand-off at the Premise location is defined by CBC in the Customer Order.

lf the local loop access at both ends of the circuit to the Customer's interface point is supplied by CBC on an CBC Owned Metro
Fiber Network, the Service will be classified as "On-Net. "Off-Net" incorporates one or more local loop connections from the
Customer's interface points to an GBC POP over facilities not owned by CBC. Availability of "Off-Net' service is dependent upon
availability of local access circuits from third party suppliers, which can 

-or 
cannot be obtained by CBC. Where "Off-Net'acces's is

requested from CBC over leased local access circuits, CBC selects the third party supplier. Due to the nature of various Type ll
access circuits there are SLA and service differences when at least one portion of the circuit is established with a Type ll access
circuit. ln the event Customer specifies a local access supplier not approved by CBC, the Latency and "Off-Net" SLA Credits
specified in Sec.tion 3 are not applicable.

1.2 Ethernet Transport Service Definitions
Ethernet Private Line Service (EPL) is a dedicated data service that interconnects two locations. Connections at each
end location are made using a native Ethernet interface with a set Committed Information Rate (ClR). The EPL service
configuration provides the Customer with a logical point-to-point connection between two Gustomer locations, using a
physical connection to the CBC network. EPL Service is Route Protected across the entire circuit. Port Protection for EPL
service is available on an individual case basis. lnter-City EPL Service is available at a CIR of 10 Mb or 100 Mb. EPL
service is only available when the entire circuit is On-Net with CBC.

Ethernet Virtual Private Line Service (EVPL) is an optically switched data service that interconnects two locations.
Connections at each end location are made using a native Ethernet interface with a set Committed lnformation Rate (ClR)
of 10 Mb or 100 Mb. The EVPL service configuration provides the Customer with either a logical point-to-point, or
point-to-multipoint connection between two or more Customer locations using a physical connection to the CBC network
and a switched connection through the CBC Network. EVPL service is offered by CBC for either a POP-to-Premise or a
Premise-to-Premise configuration. lnter-City EVPL Service is available at a CIR of 10 Mb or 100 Mb. Route protection and
Port Protection for EVPL service is offered on an individual case basis.

1.3 TDM Transport Service Definitions
TDM Private Line Service is a point-to-point private line service which provides the Customer with the transmission of synchronous
serial data. Transport circuits are available at speeds of DSI , DS3 and OC-3. TDM Service is available without and with Route
Protestion, and Protected and Un-Protected Data Channel/Client Side configuration options.

California Broadband Cooperative, lnc. Page I of3 Exhibit F/Enterprise - January 1, 2014



2 Customer Remedy for Chronic Optical Carrier Private Line Service Outage

lf three (3) or more Service Outages in excess of thirty (30) minutes occur in a contiguous forty-five (a5) day period, and the cause
of the Service Outage is determined to be in CBC' fiber optic network or CBC Suppiied Equipment, such Service will be deemed a
Chronic Trouble Service. Customer may, with thirty (30) day notice, disconnecf ihe affected Circuit, as described in this Exhibit
without incurring Termination Charges.

3 Customer Service Outage Gredits for lnter-Gity Transport Service Outages

3.1 POP-Io-POP lntercity Transport Service SLAs
The following table details the Service Level Agreement ("Sl-A") for POP-Io-POP lntercity Transport Service:

Service Level Agreement SLA
Value

Service for 99.9997o
Service Availability with Diverse Dual Fiber Ootic Laterals to CBC On-l.let Premise 99.999%

Service Availability with Single Fiber Optic Lateral or "Collapsed" Dual Fiber Optic Lateral to One or Both
CBC On-Net Premise Locations

99.99%

.ocation 99.9%
4 Hours

3.2 POP-Io-POP lntercity Transport Service Latency SLA Credit
lf the actual monthly average latency on the CBC lnter-City Service fails to meet the agreed to SLA for Latency, CBC will credit the
Customer five per cent (5%) of the applicable Circuit Charge for the applicable month for the affected circuit(s).

3.3 POP-to-POP lntercity Transport Service Outage SLA Gredit
Outage Credit for POP-Io-POP Service, and POPto-Premise and Premise-to-Premise Services with Diverse Entrance Fiber Optic

Outage Credit for POP-to-Premise and Premise-to-Premise Services with a Single Fiber Optic Lateral or a "Collapsed" Entrance
Fiber

4 Facsimile Signatures

This Exhibit and all subsequent Orders may be executed and delivered by facsimile and upon such delivery the facsimile
signature will be deemed to have the same effeci as if the original signature had been delivered to both parties.

Service Outage Duration Credit per Circuit
l5 Minutes or Less None

Between 15 Minutes and 1 Hour 3.5% of CBC monthlv recuninq charqe for the circuit.
Each 2 Hour period above 1 Hour An additional 4% of the CBC monthly recurring charge

for the circuit, capped al 75o/o of the CBC monthly
recurring charge for any single Service Outage and
cumulatively 100o/o of the CBC monthly recurring
charge for all Service Outages to that same circuit in
anv month.

Service Outaqe Duration Gredit per Gircuit
15 Minutes or Less None

Between 15 Minutes and 1 Hour 3% of CBC monthlv recurrinq charoe for the circuit.
Each 2 Hour period above 1 Hour An additional 3.5% of the CBC monthly recurring

charge for the circuit, capped al 75o/o of the CBC
monthly recurring charge for any single Service
Outage and cumulatively 100o/o of the CBC monthly
recurring charge for all Service Outages to that same
circuit in any month.

California Broadband Cooperative, Inc. Page 2 of3 Exhibit F/Enterprise - January l, 2014



5 Gustomer Signature and GBC Acceptance

Rick Pueci
Title: Chairperson Board of Superv.
Company: rnyo County

Dated; /-// - //

By: Robert
Title: CEO
Company: California Broadband Cooperative, lnc.

Dated

California Broadband Cooperative, lnc. Page 3 of3 Exhibit F/Enterprise - January 1, 2014



SERVICE AGREEMENT

Customer Request Lead Source

3. Collocation Site
OrcM Oil

Authorized Personnel:

Total MRG/NRC $ 1,000.00 ____$9{9_

Os

GBC Slgnature

ROBERT VOLKER P*orca+1, A SHvut\
Printed Name

cEo

Prinied Name

5 years
Length of Contract

-og-r"t*"*t. 

t/t'If1
Title & Date

Company Name
INYO COUNTY INFORMATION SERVICES

Date:

Street Numher
168

Direction
NORTH

Building Name

Streef ,Varne
EDWARDS

Suffix
STREET

Room FIoor

City
INDEPENDENCE

state
CA

ztp
93s26

lnitiator
BRANDON SHULTS

Title
Dir. lnfo. Sen

County
INYO

Telephone
760-878-0314

Fax

Email Address
hchrillsdinvlMUrtu-us

Alternate Contact

Biil To lPrefened Billing Date
INYO COUNTY INFORMATION SERVICES

Building NameAddress
PO BOX 477

RoomCity
INDEPENDENCE

L;OUnrystare
CA

ziD
+i*r* tfsutp

Title
Director lnformation Services

Billing Contact
BMNDON SHULTS

Fax Bill FormatsTelephone
760-878-0314

Deposit RequiredAdditional Billing To:

Phone NumberCompany Name

Building NameAddress

FIoorRoomAddress

Sfate zipcw

TelephoneContact

TelephoneTechnical Contact

Up to Class c lP address

-must justifi/ amount

-subject to CBc and ARIN approval

Projected service turn-up date July 1, 2013

COORDINATE SERVICE ACTIVATION IAIITH CUSTOMER

Billing will commence as service is tumed up per location

lnternet Access Service lncludes:

ISP Services

cBc IURC

and

aOM b I N TERN ET A CCESS SERY'CE $ 500.00 $0.00

location: lnyo Countv Admin HUB 224 N. Edwards St. lndependence, CA KMZ#226
$ $

'OMb INTERNETACCESS SERVICE $ 500.00 $0.00

location: Bishoo Librarv 210 Academv Ave. Bishop. CA KMZ#142

$ $

$ $

Sub Total $ 1,000.00 $

Promotions
$ $

$ $-

Tifle & Date

CALIFORNIA BROADBAND COOPERATIVE 1101 N.NIMITZ AVE. VALLEJO CA 94592 707.551-8200



*a,

Date:Company NAttte

HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
Street Number
't55

Direction
EAST

Building Name

Streef /Vame
MARKET

Suffix
STREET

Room FIoor

cw
INDEPENDENCE

5-(ate
CA

zrp
93526

lnitiator
BRANDON SHULTS

Title
Dir. lnfo. Sen

County
INYO

Telephone
760-878-0314

Fax

Email Address
bshufts@inv@unly-uq

Altemate Contact

SERVICE AGREEMENT

Reguesf Lead

Oad Otr s

n

3. Collocation

Authorized Personnel:

cBc signature

ROBERTVOLKER
Printed Name

cEo

and

zOMb V.LAN POINT to PQINT $0.00

HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 1

localion: Admin HUB 224 N. CA KMZ#226 $

tLo .<r\

Sub Total -ffin $

$

Total MRC/NRG $0.00
t ao'05

$ '?!F

*##
5 v€ars

(
Length of Conlract & Date

Preferred Billing DateBiil To
HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

Building Name

i8E:**' Drr*w uA it
RoomCity

INDEPENDENCE

tlSr-(eCA
county

TitleContact
BRANDON

Deposit RequiredAdditional Biillng To:

Phone NumberCompany Name

Building NameAddress

Room FIoorAddress

State zipCity

TelephoneContact

TelephoneTechnical Contact

WILL COORDINATE SERVICE ACTIVATION WITH CUSTOMER

Billing will commence as service is tumed up per location

Title & Date

CALIFORNIA BROADBAND COOPERATIVE 1101 N.NIMITZ AVE. VALLEJO CA 94592 707-551-8200

t- ttslfl



ComPanY
PINE

Neme
Number

FloorSufflx
STREET

Sfreet

Title
LUTZ

Addres,s

SERVICE AGREEMENT

CBC Signature

ROBERTVOLKER
Printed Name

cEo 5 Years

Title & Date

CALIFORNIA BROADBAND COOPERATIVE 1 101 N'NIMITZ AVE' VALLEJO CA 94592

Customer Lead

3. dM

Authorized Personnel:

$ {80.00 $0.00
Total MRC/NRG

06

WilLlaq R, lutzc
Printed Name

Sheriff
Title & Date

707-551{200

Date

PINE
Name

sPO
City

cf 7:

Biil

RequiredBilling

Number
ComPanY Name

Name

ISP Services

Up to Class C lP address

-must iustify amount

-sublect to CBC and ARIN aPProval

SERVICE ACTVATION WITH CUSTOMER

will commence as service is lumed up per localion

nternet Access Service lncludes:

service turn-up date JulY 1, 2013

lvRcMRC

St. Lone

& Rescue

1

to
CAN.Sheriff

60.00

KMZCA

180
Total

2/3/20f4



AMENDMENT NUMBER 1 TO
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF'II\"YO AND CALIFORNIA BROADBAND

COOPERATIVEO INC' FOR THE DELIVERY OF TELECOMMUNICATIONS AND
INFORMATION SERVICES

WHEREAS, the County of Inyo (hereinafter refened to as "County") and California Broadband
Cooperative, Inc., of Vallejo, CA (hereinafter referred to as "CBC"), have entered into an Agreement for
the Delivery of Telecommunications and Information Services dated January 1,2014;

WHEREAS, Section 2.19 Amendments, of such Agreement provides that it may be amended by a written
instrument executed by the parties;

WHEREAS, County and CBC do desire and consent to amend such Agreement as set forth below;

County and Contractor hereby amend such Agreement as follows:

Services provided are invoiced as defined below:

The effective date of this Amendment to the Agreement is

Amendment to
County of Inyo/CBC Contract

Page 1 of2

Inyo County
Information
Services

Inyo County Information Services - 224N
Independence CA93526Edwards INT-10002

5OMb CBC
INTERNET

Bishop Library - 210 Academy Ave. Bishop, CA
93514 rNT-10048

5OMb CBC
INTERNET

Inyo County
Health and
Human Services

Health and Human Services 380 N. Mt. Whitney
Dr. Lone Pine CA 93545

ELAN-
10052

2OMb CBC
PTP

Inyo County Information Services 224N. Edwards
c1.93526

Inyo County
Sheriff Lone Pine

Inyo County Sheriff Lone Pine 726 Main St. Lone
Pine CA 93545

ELAN-
10050

2OMb CBC
PTP

Inyo County Information Services 224N. Edwards
Independence CA93526

Search and Rescue 350 Airport Rd. Bishop CA
935t4

ELAN-
1005 1

IOMb CBC
PTP

Inyo County Information Seryices 224N. Edwards
cA93s26

Service Agreement
Name

Product
TypeService Locations Service Il)



All the other terms and conditions of the Agreement are unchanged and remain the same.

IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THIS
DAY OF

COUNTY OF'I]YYO CBC

Signature Signature
By:By:

Type or Print
Dated:

Approved as to form and legality:

Approved as to accounting form:

Type or Print
Dated:

Approved as to personnel requirements:

Personnel Services

Approved as to risk management:

County Risk ManagementCounty Auditor

Amendment to
County of Inyo/CBC Contract

Page2 of 2



County of Inyo

Clerk of the Board
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  August 18, 2020 

FROM:  Assistant Clerk of the Board 
 
SUBJECT:  Approval of Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve the minutes of the regular Board of Supervisors meeting of August 11, 2020.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The Board is required to keep minutes of its proceedings. Once the Board has approved the minutes as 
requested, the minutes will be made available to the public via the County’s webpage, www.inyocounty.us.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
N/A
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
N/A
 
FINANCING:
N/A
 
ATTACHMENTS:

 
APPROVALS:
Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 8/11/2020
Darcy Ellis Final Approval - 8/11/2020



Strengthening Resilience & Well-Being in Our Community 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

Letter to the Community from Dr. James Richardson, Inyo County Health Officer 

 

I write today to provide some insight into the efforts the Inyo County Public Health Department is taking to help 

protect our communities and visitors from the COVID-19 pandemic.  

 

But first, I want to acknowledge the numerous effects this pandemic has on our communities.  Not only does 

COVID-19 directly threaten the physical health of our citizens and visitors, but the necessary health precautions 

taken to reduce the transmission of COVID-19 also affect the economic and psychological health of our 

communities.  A key County priority during these difficult times is to keep businesses open so long as the public is 

protected from the spread of COVID-19. This priority is why we must all adhere to the local and state public 

health orders and industry guidance including face covering, social distancing, and avoiding gatherings.  If you 

would like to learn more about how these orders help prevent the spread of COVID-19, please review the 

materials found here: https://www.preprints.org/manuscript/202004.0203/v1.  

 

The enforcement process in Inyo County is not about punishing small businesses.  Our process seeks to support 

our local business while also protecting the health care system and our residents and visitors.   

Upon receiving a complaint about a local business, we reach out to the owners of businesses to provide education 

about the health orders, and to support them if they need help changing their operations to comply with those 

orders.  For example, when the State announced the closure of outdoor dining, we immediately worked with the 

Inyo County administration to help streamline the encroachment permit process so our restaurant businesses could 

continue to operate.  We’ve also provided businesses with free masks and face shields, free county-produced 

signs, and we provide one-on-one technical assistance to support planning and operationalizing the state’s 

COVID-19 industry guidance. 

 

While nearly every Inyo County resident and business owner is doing their best to comply with the face covering 

and distancing requirements, we do occasionally run across businesses where the owners are adamantly opposed 

to taking these small steps to prevent the spread of COVID-19.  When those businesses will not work with us, will 

not participate and will not listen, only when we have no other recourse will we pursue civil and criminal penalties 

against a business who is breaking the law.  We do this not to punish the business, but to protect our population.  

We do this only after providing education, free services, free supplies, and giving a business many, many chances.   

 

Businesses of Inyo County – we are here to support you.  When others are making decisions that endanger all of us 

and our County’s ability to stay open and contain the spread of this disease, we will enforce the law and ensure 

they can no longer put us all in danger.  When we enforce our Public Health orders, it is in SUPPORT of us 

continuing to stay open and in SUPPORT of our small business.   

 

Sincerely, 

 
Dr. James Richardson 

Inyo County Health Officer 

 

 County of Inyo 

 

HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES DEPARTMENT 
James Richardson, M.D. 

Public Health Officer, Inyo County 

760-873-7868 

 

 

https://www.preprints.org/manuscript/202004.0203/v1


SHERIFF
INYO COUNTY, CA

"A Professional Serwrce Agency"

Memorandum
Sheriff Hollowell, U/S Pritchard, Lt. Sparks, Sgt. Carter

Riannah Reade, Administrative Assistant to the Sheriff

Board of Supervisors, CAO, Assistant to the Board

August 6,2020

June 2020 overtime

OFFICE OF THE

To:

From:

GG:

Dater

Re:

JEFF R HOLLOWELL
SHERIFF

ERIC PRITCHARD
UNDERSHERIFF

Following, please find the amount of overtime expended and overtime balances for the month
of June 2020.

Budqet # Budget Expended

022700 Sheriff General $3,974.62

022701 Kitchen Services $ 2,494.27

022710 Sheriff Safety $ 46,768.25

022900 Jail General $ 4,006.67

022910 Jail Safety $ 16,290.78

Grand Total $ 73,534.59

Account Director Reports are attached. lf you have any questions, please do not hesitate to
contact me.

Thank you

P.O. Drawer "S" (550 South Clay Street) Independenc e, CA 93526
Phone:760-878-0383 Fax:760-878-0389



JUNE OVERTIME TOTAL: 73,534.59

Reference Transaction Source
BUDG

TRNS

TRNS

TRNS

TRNS

BUDG

TRNS

TRNS

TRNS

TRNS

BUDG

TRNS

TRNS

TRNS

TRNS

BUDG

TRNS

TRNS

TRNS

TRNS

s003

5003

s003

s003

s003

022700

022700
022700

022700
022700

3,974.62

3,974.62

3,974.62

3,974.62

3,974.62

27,766"49

27,766.49

27,766.49

27,766.49

27,766.49

6/s/zo2o
6/t9/2O2O
6/28/2O2O

6/28/2020

SHERIFF GRS.

SHERIFF GRS.

7/02 PAYROLL ACCRUAL

7/17 PAYROLL ACCRUAL

oz120DP

02130DP

lOOPYACCRUALO62S

40PYACCRUALO628

02120DP

02130DP

lOOPYACCRUALO62S

40PYACCRUALO623

02120DP

02130DP

lOOPYACCRUALO62S

40PYACCRUALOS2S

OZL2ODP

02130DP

lOOPYACCRUALOS2S

40PYACCRUALOS2S

oz720D?

02130DP

lOOPYACCRUALO62S

40PYACCRUALO62S

EARN REG

EARN REG

EARN REG

EARN REG

EARN REG

EARN REG

EARN REG

EARN REG

EARN REG

EARN REG

ss0.33
1,358.s1

1,447.26

618.52

3,974.62

L,450.47

265.32

657.58
720.96

2,494.27

12,706.77

26,155.65

7,663.53

442.96

46,768.25

300.84

957.24

2,347.45

40r.74
4,006.67

3,880.92

9,544.r9
r,316.43
7,549.24

76,290.78

550.33

1,3s8.s1

7,447.26

618.52

r,450.4r
265.32

657.58

r20.96

72,706.77

26,155.65

7,663.53

842.96

72,000.00

72,000.00

72,000.00

72,OOO.OO

72,000.00

25,000.00

2s,000.00

25,000.00

25,000.00

25,000.00

280,000.00

280,000.00

280,000.00

280,000.00

280,000.00

44,433.51

44,833.57

44,833.5r
44,833.51

44,833.51

62.27

62.27 3
62.27 3
52.27 JE

62.27 JE

95.80

9s.80 3

9s.80 3

95.80 JE

95.80 JE

roo.77
700.77 3

700.77 3

toa.77 JE

roo.77 )E

57.80

57.80 3
57.80 3
57.80 JE

57.80 JE

9s.39

95.39 3
95.39 3
95.39 JE

95.39 JE

BUDG

TRNS

TRNS

TRNS

TRNS

5003

5003

5003

5003

s003

072707

022707

022707

022707
02270t

2,494.27

2,494.27

2,494.27

2,494.27

2,494.27

6/s/2O2o
6/79/2O2O

6/28/2020
6128/2O2o

KITCHEN SERVICES GRS.

KITCHEN SERVICES GRS.

7/02 PAYROLL ACCRUAL

7/17 PAYROLL ACCRUAL

23,950.54

23,950.54

23,950.54

23,950.54

23,9s0.s4

282,r49.t8
282,r49.L8
282,749.r8
282,149.78

242,749.78

r,o49.46
t,o49.45
L,049.46

7,049.46

L,049.46

54,860.76

54,460.76

54,860.76

54,460.76

s4,860.76

5003

5003

5003

5003

s003

s003

s003

5003

s003

5003

022770

0227LO

0227rO

0227rO

022770

6/s/2020
6/19/2020
6/2812020
6/28/2O2O

46,764.25

46,764.25

46,768.25

46,768.25

46,768.25

(2,149.18].

(2,149.78\

12,t49.78l.

12,L49.r8l
(2,149.78\

SHERIFF - SAFETY GRS.

SHERIFF - SAFETY GRS.

7/02 PAYROLL ACCRUAL

7/17 PAYROLL ACCRUAL

5003

5003

5003

5003

5003

022900
022900
022900

022900
022900

300.84

957.24

2,347.45

407.74

130,000.00

130,000.00

130,000.00

130,000.00

130,000.00

4,006.67

4,006.67

4,006.67

4,006.67

4,006.67

75,I39.24
75,r39.24
75,139.24

75,139.24

75,139.24

6/s/2O2O JA|L GRS

6/Lg/2020 JA1L GRS.

6128/2020 7/02 PAYROLL ACCRUAL

6/28/2020 7/17 PAYROLL ACCRUAL

022970

022910
oz29ro
022970

022970

6/s/2O2O

6/r9/2O2O
6/28/2020
512812020

3,880.92

9,544.19

7,376.43

L,549.24

120,000.00

120,000.00

120,000.00

120,000.00

120,000.00

76,290.78

\6,290.78
16,290.78

16,290.78

16,290.7a

174,467.14

114,457.74

774,467.74

174,467.74

714,467.14

5,s32.86

5,532.86

5,532.86

s,532.86
5,532.86

JAIL.SAFETY GRS.

JAIL-SAFETY GRS.

7/02 PAYROLL ACCRUAL

7/17 PAYROLL ACCRUAL



 

 

 

FY Year Budget July August Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. 

 

Jan Feb March April May June TOTAL 

2017-18 Sheriff $11,065.59 $20,242.12 $28,944.73 $29,481.41 $27,744.11 $24,477.64 $28,103.35 $41,421.02 $37,375.94 $37,296.86 $47,159.24 $34,444.74 $367,756.75 

2018-19 Sheriff $30,007.83 $35,105.63 $32,851.89 $39,974.03 $46,069.22 $18,481.91 $20,315.85 $18,250.43 $46,228.30 $39,287.64 $17,562.91 $36,859.08 $380,994.72 

2019-20 Sheriff $30,505.68 $27,102.42 $48,174.77 $20,478.69 $18,120.11 $28,402.31 $16,585.07 $44,501.81 $20,315.35 $17,162.45 $20,078.10 $50,742.87 $342,168.63 

               

               

               

               

               

               

               

               

               

               

               

               

               

FY Year Budget July August Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. 

 

Jan Feb March April May June TOTAL 

2017-18 Jail $6,456.03 $7,481.47 $20,798.28 $22,187.15 $23,548.13 $21,273.98 $16,028.87 $19,182.45 $21,053.83 $24,706.53 $37,581.31 $30,039.82 $250,337.85 

2018-19 Jail $16,098.14 $25,807.03 $20,102.75 $17,466.66 $34,254.65 $10,148.91 $15,772.70 $17,163.57 $41,910.65 $22,077.99 $23,275.03 $40,418.72 $284,496.80 

2019-20 Jail $19,396.13 $12,299.11 $31,263.71 $19,587.92 $18,504.72 $20,213.93 $17,962.32 $24,428.52 $15,968.64 $8,546.82 $10,127.23 $22,791.72 $220,820.77 

               

               

               

               

               

               

               

               

               

               

               

               

               

TOTAL FY 2017-18 $618,094.60 Average for 12 months $51,507.88 

TOTAL FY 2018-19 $665,491.52 Average for 12 months $55,457.63 

TOTAL FY 2019-20 $562,989.40 Average for 12 months $46,915.78 

    

    

RECAP - SHERIFF AND JAIL OVERTIME REPORTS 

 

 

 

 



 

 

FY Year Budget July August Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. 

 

Jan Feb March April May June TOTAL 

2001-02 Sheriff $17,568.00 $29,776.00 $24, 716.00 $13,106.00 $20,122.00 $16,130.00 $15,730.00 $22,121.00 $14,773.00 $15,321.00 $17,440.00 $22,507.00 $229,310.00 

2002-03 Sheriff $26,409.00 $18,875.00 $14,597.00 $20,582.00 $16,614.00 $15,196.00 $18,846.00 $12,354.00 $24,390.00 $17,704.00 $16,251.00 $9,712.00 $211,530.00 

2003/04 Sheriff $20,652.00 $10,562.00 $14,292.00 $14,577.00 $13,484.00 $12,317.00 $22,540.00 $17,773.00 $13,934.00 $7,070.00 12,782.00 10,218.00 $170,201.00 

2004/05 Sheriff $19,859.00 $9,096.00 $10,036.00 $9,072.00 $11,197.00 $6,305.00 $15,019.00 $9,794.00 $11,564.00 $17,223.00 $17,635.00 $13,940.00 $150,740.00 

2005-06 Sheriff $24,078.00 $18,496.00 $12,444.00 $15,841.00 $11,371.00 $15,300.00 $19,108.00 $16,384.00 17,515.00 $13,259.00 16,317.00  $180,113.00 

2006-07 Sheriff $26,310.00 $22,120.00 $24,151.00 $20,575.00 $24,085.00 $17,224.00 $23,530.00 $17,540.00 $15,848.00 $22,461.00   $213,844.00 

2007-08 Sheriff $35,499.00 $17,506.00 $31,975.00 $15,535.00 $20,842.00 21,968.00 $21,705.00 $26,047.00 $21,586.00 $37,145.00 $25,116.00 $24,931.00 $299,855.00 

2008-09 Sheriff $47,862.00 $14,850.00 $19,384.00 $12,552.00 $14,621.00 $15,865.00 $13,449.00 $17,531.00 $17,629.00 $12,665.00 $17,567.00 $21,566.00 $225,541.00 

2009-10 Sheriff $25,480.00 $17,722.00 $18,686.00 $16,444.00 $23,697.00 $24,697.00 $23,352.00 $13,600.00 $16,924.00 $13,187.00 $15,917.00 $11,942.00 $221,648.00 

2010-11 Sheriff $23,723.00 $18,506.00 $20,983.00 $19,556.00 $17,956.00 $31,825.00 18,752.00 $19,447.00 $19,552.00 $27,651.00 $20,855.00 $22,994.00 $261,800.00 

2011-12 Sheriff $19,382.00 $21,152.00 $26,936.00 $25,339.63 $22,334.58 $20,445.96 $15,581.82 $13,929.99 $15,565.63 $19,021.51 $22,352.19 $16,685.35 $238,726.66 

2012-13 Sheriff $27,357.13 $28,796.44 $34,839.37 $24,645.46 $8,302.70 $22,742.47 $20,293.68 $27,727.58 $20,608.20 $18,933.99 $32,740.81 $16,712.41 $283,700.24 

2013-14 Sheriff $22,010.90 $30,004.58 $21,924.03 $25,386.25 $27,705.70 $19,269.13 $19,804.12 $23,103.59 $12,812.62 $40,657.55 $19,427.50 $25,615.56 $287,721.53 

2014-15 Sheriff $26,463.99 $25,110.54 $24,133.06 $29,228.12 $19,759.97 $18,506.19 $16,919.22 $22,563.18 $15,225.74 $22,238.43 $38,242.59 $15,773.84 $274,164.87 

2015-16 Sheriff $24,435.78 $24,224.23 $25,543.55 $38,122.69 $21,301.83 $17,036.08 $17,675.83 $17,567.44 $24,144.24 $23,878.96 $35,380.97 $16,053.54 $285,365.14 

2016-17 Sheriff $21,623.98 $19,972.64 $53,767.93 $32,462.80 $25,088.47 $18,533.84 $23,097.23 $44,673.95 $28,923.44 $39,488.09 $36,205.62 $33,903.65 $278,559.30 

FY Year Budget July August Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. 

 

Jan Feb March April May June TOTAL 

2001-02 Jail $6,278.00 $10,218.00 $10,673.00 $5,077.00 $6,422.00 $5,562.00 $5,194.00 $11,007.00 $11,644.00 $10,001.00 $8,082.00 $5,706.00 $95,864.00 

2002-03 Jail $9,902.00 $8,624.00 $8,077.00 $8,169.00 $11,434.00 $6,581.00 $11,095.00 $5,996.00 $9,036.00 $8,107.00 $6,863.00 $5,583.00 $99,467.00 

2003-04 Jail $12,206.00 $12,147.00 $10,471.00 $9,547.00 $10,858.00 $5,343.00 $7,927.00 $4,693.00 $7,235.00 $3,568.00 $5,118.00 $7,077.00 $96,190.00 

2004-05 Jail $9,905.00 $5,186.00 $8,294.00 $5,080.00 $5,598.00 $3,972.00 $7,773.00 $5,178.00 $5,490.00 $9,208.00 $6,489.00 $6,684.00 $78,857.00 

2005-06 Jail $9,945.00 $9,954.00 $7,576.00 $10,669.00 $10,621.00 $6,505.00 $10,788.00 $9,434.00 13,564.00 $9,968.00 $10,325.00  $109,349.00 

2006-07 Jail $18,236.00 $12,222.00 $14,583.00 $12,005.00 $11,769.00 $6,129.00 $16,260.00 $13,128.00 $8,156.00 $12,013.00   $124,501.00 

2007-08 Jail $23,401.00 $13,877.00 $17,485.00 $13,537.00 $10,586.00 $7,076.00 $6,721.00 $6,914.00 $12,160.00 $22,521.00 $14,780.00 $17,172.00 $166,230.00 

2008-09 Jail $14,812.00 $14,465.00 $12,613.00 $7,671.00 $9,841.00 $9,357.00 $7,643.00 $12196.00 $9,702.00 $9,997.00 $15,558.00 $9,581.00 $133,436.00 

2009-10 Jail $14,060.00 $13,756.00 $12,679.00 $9,414.00 $7,094.00 $8,186.00 $4,464.00 $4,316.00 $5,379.00 $9,334.00 $7,729.00 $8,418.00 $104,829.00 

2010-11 Jail $10,231.00 $7,691.00 $7,797.00 $4,241.00 $5,946.00 $7,441.00 $7,761.00 $8,759.00 $8,013.00 $10,387.00 $7,855.00 $7,666.00 $93,788.00 

2011-12 Jail $7,868.00 $9,148.00 $13,791.00 $13,821.61 $11,131.78 $6,091.73 $6,358.72 $7,627.21 $16,459.92 $8,133.22 $3,511.28 5,396.13 $109,338.60 

2012-13 Jail $9,851.94 $22,987.52 $9,693.45 $10,652.10 $7,537.09 $12,630.63 $7,947.40 $9,120.59 $9,585.65 $6,475.67 $14,055.81 $8,517.89 $129,055.74 

2013-14 Jail $7,229.83 $11,249.70 $11,630.13 $7,756.07 $20,472.26 $14,211.87 $16,385.86 $8,399.09 $9,993.15 $25,089.23 $13,038.21 $22,289,16 $167,760.40 

2014-15 Jail $14,641.52 $15,248.17 $19,078.03 $23,753.40 $17,004.70 $14,894.58 $12,924.38 $15,169.08 $15,819.74 $13,511.76 $27,217.52 $18,414.59 $207,677.47 

2015-16 Jail $17,646.35 $20,388.98 $10,739.47 $24,152.37 $14,887.81 $13,140.45 $15,147.73 $13,187.70 $16,463.62 $11,935.64 $28,695.13 $13,643.97 200,029.22 

2016-17 Jail $11,727.04 $15,302.99 $20,904.69 $14,220.17 $13,782.16 $9,788.37 $11,808.54 $18,898.78 $12,321.48 $19,361.13 $18,131.76 $13,376.70 $126,025.57 

TOTAL FY 2005-06 $289.456.00 Average for 12 month $26,314.00 

TOTAL FY 2006-07 $338,345.00 Average for 11 months $30,758.64 

TOTAL FY 2007-08 $466,805.00 Average for 12 months $38,840.31 

TOTAL FY 2008-09  $358,977.00 Average for 12 months $29,914.75 

TOTAL  FY 2009-10 $326,477.00 Average for 12 month $27,206.41 

TOTAL FY 2010-11 $355,588.00 Average for 12  month $29,632.33 

TOTAL FY 2011-12 $346,065.26 Average for 12 month $28,831.77 

TOTAL FY 2012-13 $412,755.98 Average for 11 month $34,396.33 

TOTAL FY 2013-14 $455,482.93 Average for 12 month $37,956.91 

TOTAL FY 2014-15 $481,842.34 Average for 12 month $40,153.53* 

TOTAL FY 2015-16 $485,394.36 Average for 12 months $40,449.53* 

TOTAL FY 2016-17 $404,584.87 Average for 12 months $33,715.41 

*Does not 

include jail 

kitchen 

services 

overtime – 

began 

including 

kitchen 

services 1-16 

 



 

 

FY 

Year 

Budget July August Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. 

 

Jan Feb March April May June TOTAL 

1990-91 Sheriff       $11,431.27 $16,517.07 $11,888.82 $10,438.75 $10,805.87 $9,310.89 $70,392.67 

1991-92 Sheriff $15,462.13 $13,296.38 $16,410.77 $16,611.39 $16,590.17 $10,124.27 $19,472.29 $20,262.10 $18,235.05 $21,753.68 $17,614.92 $13,814.82 $199,647.97 

1992-93 Sheriff $22,655.27 $21,269.55 $27,322.32 $14,728.53 $8,522.72 $11,767.60 $7,074.76 $8,183.73 $10,228.68 $16,106.16 $21,304.16 $12,040.58 $181,204.06 

1993-94 Sheriff $12,194.84 $12,880.26 $11,796.20 $19,656.88 $9,736.05 $10,453.40 $14,047.46 $10,747.67 $13,729.75 $15,248.90 $13,850.25 $12,729.83 $157,071.49 

1994-95 Sheriff $19,768.43 $17,650.58 $16,382.17 $8,178.84 $7,514.05 $5,283.38 $8,265.57 $6,077.04 $4,821.38 $7,312.77 $5,826.53 $8,107.30 $115,188.04 

1995-96 Sheriff $10,267.77 $8,811.96 $7,581.31 $8,941.34 $5,194.86 $2,945.02 $7,671.86 $6,285.61 $3,953.81 $6,757.84 $7,095.62 $4,022.16 $79,529.16 

1996-97 Sheriff $5,717.13 $9,947.00 $7,858.83 $8,458.00 $15,222.00 $14,247.00 $9,382.00 $6,171.00 $11,184.51 $12,575.00 $15,159.00 $11,174.00 $127,095.47 

1996/97 Holiday $7,483.00 Not Available $12,293.84 $4,296.00 $5,250.00 -0- $14,033.00 $11,063.00 -0- -0- $5,387.00  $59,805.84 

1997-98 Sheriff $9,946 $10,073.00 $8,826.00 $11,306 $5,821.00 $6,832.00 $5722.00 $11,354.00 $12,618.00 $18,161.00 $11,419.00 $11,603.00 $123,681.00 

1998-99 Sheriff $14,265 $13,893.00 $13,762.00 $12,770.00 $10,203.00 $10,119.00 $17,714.00 $14,606.00 $16,394.00 $9,834.00 $15,710.00 $15,312.00 $164,582.00 

1999-20 Sheriff $18,980.00 $15,700.00 $18,380.00 $12,235.00 13,968.00 $12,751.00 $15,919.00 $10,134.00 $18,225.00 $14,697.00 $13,545.00 $21,715.00 $186,249.00 

2000-01 Sheriff $17,948.00 $13,273.00 $12,379.00 $15,270.00 $12,629.00 $13,537.00 $15,019.00 $18,333.00 $9,206.00 $15,085.00 $10,156.00 $14,809.00 $167,644.00 

               

 

FY 

Year 

Bud

get 

July August Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. 

 

Jan Feb March April May June TOTAL 

1990-91 Jail       $8,961.35 $9,734.76 $8,144.51 $8,780.58 $7,034.26 $8,454.56 $51,110.02 

1991-92 Jail $7,535.08 $6,561.64 $6,702.07 $9,498.79 $10,559.57 $6,237.61 $10,220.51 $5,694.12 $5,838.63 $7,923.09 $7,170.30 $5,339.41 $89,280.82 

1992-93 Jail $10,231.09 $10,595.77 $11,379.12 $10,598.70 $5,363.46 $4,054.21 $4,434.02 $4,036.28 $5,468.12 $7,344.10 $8,404.39 $9,468.65 $91,377.91 

1993-94 Jail $11,816.15 $7,687.97 $7,186.15 $8,495.28 $8,325.29 $9,581.32 $22,451.63 $12,318.18 $13,524.36 $16,935.94 $13,848.56 $11,728.60 $143,899.43 

1994-95 Jail $12,943.44 $9,290.30 $8,195.87 $2,714.16 $4,408.35 $1,527.37 $5,078.75 $4,340.92 $5,800.83 $3,493.95 $3,031.58 $2,151.83 $62,977.35 

1995-96 Jail $7,984.10 $3,228.28 $5,486.78 $2,338.29 $5,459.02 $2,536.07 $4,421.55 $3,424.93 $2,674.10 $2,420.38 $1,293.52 1,498.51 $42,765.53 

1996-97 Jail $2,649.57 $1,745.00 $3,771.33 $3,472.00 $9,341.00 $7,985.00 2,620.00 $1,367.00 $2,344.00 $39,551 $2,561.00 $3,089.00 $80,495.90 

1997-98 Jail $4,991.00 $9,012.00 $4,454.00 $6,044.00 $7,794.00 $7,849.00 $9,830.00 $12,752.00 $8,034.00 $7,836.00 6,958.00 $5,427.00 $90,981.00 

1998-99 Jail $4,125.00 $5,707.00 $8,030.00 $6,044.00 $6,680.00 $3,879.00 $4,800.00 $4,839.00 $4,051.00 $7,145.00 $10,199.00 $6,301.00 $71,800.00 

1999-00 Jail $6,853.00 $6,196.00 $6,465.00 $5,768.00 9,512.00 $5,066.00 $4,447.00 $1,828.00 $4,381.00 $21,862.00 $4,020.00 $6,281.00 $82,679.00 

2000-01 Jail $4,117.00 $3,719.00 $7,353.00 $7,095.00 $6,491.00 $9,549.00 $5,751.00 $9,965.00 $6,111.00 $8,085.00 $5,360.00 $7,218.00 $80,814.00 

               

               

 TOTAL  6 months  FY 1990-1991 $121,502.69 average per month for 6 months $20,250.44 

TOTAL FY 1991-1992  $288,928.79 average per month $24,077.39 

TOTAL FY 1992-1993 $272,581.97  average per month $22,715.16 

TOTAL FY 1993-1994 $300,970.92 average per month $25,080.91 

TOTAL FY 1995-1996 $122,295.49 average per month $10,191.29 

TOTAL FY 1996-1997 

Holiday 

$207,591.37 

$59,805.84 

average for 12 months without Holiday 

average for 12 months including Holiday 

$17,299.28 

$22,283.10 

TOTAL FY 1997-98 $214,662.00 average per  month $17,888.50 

TOTAL FY 1998-99 $236,382.00 average per month $19,698.50 

TOTAL FY 1999-2000 $268,928.00 average for 12 month $22,410.67 

TOTAL FY 2000-2001 $248,458.00 Average for 12 month $20,704.83 

TOTAL FY 2001-2002 $325,174.00 Average for 12 month $27,097.93 

TOTAL FY 2002-2003 $310,997.00 Average for 12 month $25,916.47 

TOTAL FY 2003094 $266,391.00 Average for 12 month $22,199.25 

TOTAL FY 2004-05 $229,597.00 Average for 12 month $19,133.08 

    

RECAP - SHERIFF AND JAIL OVERTIME REPORTS 

 

 


	 Call to Order
	1. PUBLIC COMMENT (Join meeting via Zoom here)

	 Closed Session
	2. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL &ndash; EXISTING LIT

	 Open Session
	3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	4. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION AS REQUIRED BY LAW.
	5. PUBLIC COMMENT
	6. COUNTY DEPARTMENT REPORTS (Reports limited to two 
	7. COVID-19 STAFF UPDATE

	 Departmental - Personnel Actions
	8. Request Board find that, consistent with the adopt
	Agenda Request Form


	 Consent Agenda
	9. Request Board authorize payment of the County Beha
	Agenda Request Form
	CBHDA 2020-21 Annual Update
	CBHDA 20-21 Dues Invoice

	10. Request Board approve and award the contract for E
	Agenda Request Form
	Lone Pine Sidewalks Contract - ESE


	 Departmental
	11. Request Board approve a proclamation declaring Aug
	Agenda Request Form
	Child Support Awareness Month 2020 Proclamation

	12. Request Board:

A) Adopt the Restoring Vital & Val
	Agenda Request Form
	REVIVE Grant Guidelines
	REVIVE Grant Application
	REVIVE Application Checklist
	REVIVE Economic Injury Worksheet
	REVIVE Electronic Payment Form
	REVIVE Contract

	13. Request Board: A) declare the California Broadband
	Agenda Request Form
	Inyo County Internet Bandwidth Upgrades Quote
	CBC Property Surcharge Cost Recovery Fee
	CBC Master Agreement - Corrected

	14. Request Board approve the minutes of the regular B
	Agenda Request Form


	 Comment
	15. PUBLIC COMMENT

	 Board Members and Staff Reports
	 Correspondence - Informational
	16. Inyo County Public Health - Letter to the Communit
	Letter to Community from Dr. Richardson 08.13.20

	17. Inyo County Sheriff - Sheriff 's and Jail Overtime
	Sheriff Overtime Report for June 2020



	ConsultantFirmName: General Technologies and Solutions (GTS)
	Local Agency: Inyo County
	Contract#: TR‐19‐028
	Federal Project#: ATPSB1L‐5948(096)
	ContractTotal: 17,061.50
	Subcon: 5.7
	ConsultantcertPrint: General Technologies and Solutions (GTS)
	Text Field 35: Rawad Hani
	Text Field 34: Principal
	Text Field 36: rawad.hani@gentecsol.com
	Text Field 37: 213 267 2332
	BizMailAdd: 830 Traction Ave - Suite 3A
	BizMailAdd 2: Los Angeles, CA 90013
	ConsultCertSig 2: 7/17/2020
	ConsultCertSig 1: General Technologies and Solutions (GTS)
	BizMailAdd 1: 830 Traction Ave - Suite 3A
	BizMailAdd 3: Los Angeles, CA 90013
	ConsultantcertPrint 1: same as above
	Text Field 30: Rawad Hani 
	Text Field 31: Principal
	Text Field 32: rawad.hani@gentecsol.com
	Text Field 33: 213 267 2332
	BizMailAdd 5: same as above
	BizMailAdd 6: 
	Check yes 16: Off
	Check no 16: No
	Check yes 46: Off
	Check no 46: No
	Check 1: Off
	Check 2: Off
	Check 3: Off
	Check 4: Off
	Text Field 29: LLC (single Member)
	Check 5: Yes
	Check 9: Off
	Check 6: No
	Check 10: Yes
	Check 7: Off
	Check 11: Off
	Check 8: Off
	Text Field 28: 
	Check 12: Off
	Check yes 48: Yes
	Check no 48: Off
	Check yes 49: Yes
	Check no 49: Off
	Check yes 50: Yes
	Check no 50: Off
	Check yes 51: Yes
	Check no 51: Off
	Check yes 52: Yes
	Check no 52: Off
	Check yes 53: Yes
	Check no 53: Off
	Check yes 54: Yes
	Check no 54: Off
	Check yes 55: Yes
	Check no 55: Off
	Check yes 56: Yes
	Check no 56: Off
	Check 13: Yes
	Check 14: No
	Check 15: Yes
	Check 16: Off
	Text Field 27: 
	Check yes 67: Off
	Check no 67: No
	Check 26: Off
	Check 27: Off
	Text Field 26: 
	Check 28: Off
	Check 29: Off
	Text Field 25: 
	Check 17: Off
	Check 18: Off
	Check 23: Off
	Check 24: Off
	Text Field 24: 
	Check yes 57: Yes
	Check no 57: Off
	Check yes 69: Yes
	Check no 69: Off
	Check 33: Yes
	Text Field 23: Mileage at IRS approved rates
	Check yes 70: Off
	Check no 70: No
	Text Field 21: We bill mileage based on IRS rates 
	Text Field 20: 0.575
	Check 20: Off
	Check 30: Off
	Check 21: Off
	Check 31: Off
	Check 22: Off
	Check 32: Off
	Check 25: Off
	Text Field 22: 
	ConsultCertSig 3: Rawad Hani
	Text Field 19: Principal
	ConsultCertSig 4: 7.17.2020


